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NOTICE OF 23R ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Members of MRS.
BECTORS FOOD SPECIALITIES LIMITED (‘The Company’) will be held at shorter notice
at the registered office of the Company situated at Theing Road, Phillaur, Distt. Jalandhar,
Punjab — 144410 on Wednesday, 1*'Day of August, 2018 at 5:00 PM to transact the following
Business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2018, the reports of the Board of directors and Statutory Auditors thereon:
and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018, and reports of the Statutory Auditors thereon:

To confirm the interim dividend of Re. 0.75/- per share paid during the year as the final
dividend for the year ended 31.03.2018

To Appoint Director in place of Mr. Ishaan Bector, Director (DIN NO. 02906180) who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

To Appoint Director in place of Mrs. Rajni Bector, Director (DIN NO. 00108730) who retires
by rotation and being eligible offers herself for reappointment.

To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditor:

To Consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the following as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the allied Rules framed thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) the
appointment of M/s. B S R & Co. LLP (ICAI Firm registration number 101248W/W100022),
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office as such till the conclusion of 24th
Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby ratified to hold office from the conclusion of the
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23rd Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting to
be held in the year 2019.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix
such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors in consultation with
the Statutory Auditors in connection with the audit and that the remuneration may be paid
on a progressive billing basis to be agreed between the Statutory Auditors and the Board
of Directors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAJIV DEWAN (DIN No: 00007988) AS AN INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:-

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 1 52,161, Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, relevant regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), and other applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such
approvals, consents, permissions, as may be required Mr. Rajiv Dewan (DIN: 00007988)
who was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-executive and Independent) on the
Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 10t July 2018 and who holds office upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), but who is eligible for appointment and has consented to continue to act
as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and in respect of whom the
Company has received a Notice in writing from a member under section 160 of the Act,
proposing his candidature for the office of a Director of the Company be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the Company to continue to act as Non-Executive Independent
Director for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the date of his appointment i.e.,
10.07.2018 and his office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din no. 00108589)
and/or Mr. Ishaan Bector, Wholetime Director (Din no. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all the acts, deeds and things which are necessary to the
appointment of Mr. Rajiv Dewan as an Independent Director of the Company.”

7. RAISING OF CAPITAL THROUGH AN INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:-

‘RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 62(1)(c), the provisions
of the memorandum of association of the Company and articles of association of the
Company and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, along with
the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force, the “Companies Act, the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956, and the rules framed thereunder, as amended (*SCRA"), the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
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Regulations, 2009, as amended (“SEBIICDR Regulations”), the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), other applicable regulations and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI"), other
applicable laws, regulations, guidelines, ordinances, policies, notifications, circulars or
clarifications issued from time to time by the Government of India (“Gol”), Department of
Industrial Policy and Promotion, Government of India (“DIPP”), the Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI"), Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, the Registrar of
Companies,Punjab and Chandigarh(‘Registrar of Companies”), the Department of
Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Government of India (‘DEA”) and the relevant
stock exchanges where the equity shares of the Company of face value Rs. 10/- each
(the “Equity Shares”) are proposed to be listed (the “Stock Exchanges”) (collectively
the “Applicable Laws”), and the enabling provisions of the Memorandum of Association
of the Company and the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to the
approval of relevant government, statutory, supervisory and/or regulatory authorities,
including the DIPP, the SEBI, RBI, the Registrar of Companies, DEA and the Stock
Exchanges, and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be necessary,
consents from third parties (including lenders of the Company) and subject to such
conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of them while
granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, the consent, approval, authority and
sanction of the members be and is hereby granted to create, issue, offer and allot Equity
Shares for cash up to an aggregate of upto ¥ 10,000 million by way of a fresh issue of
Equity Shares of the Company (the “Fresh Issue’) or an offer for sale of Equity Shares
("Offer for Sale”) by the shareholders of the Company (“Selling Shareholders"), or both
in the course of the initial public offering of the Equity Shares (the “Offer”) (provided that
such number of additional Equity Shares to the extent of up to 10% of the issue size or
such other extent as may be permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations may be issued
and allotted as may be required for the purposes of rounding off to the nearest integer
while finalising the basis of allotment, including the issue and allotment of Equity Shares
to the stabilizing agent pursuant to the Green Shoe Option, if any, in terms of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations), which shall include, without limitation, fresh Equity Shares issued
and allotted in any private placement to selected investors as permitted under the
applicable laws pursuant to any pre-IPO placement (“Pre-IPO Placement’), reservation
of a certain number of Equity Shares, for any category or categories of persons as
permitted under the applicable laws including eligible employees, discount to the issue
price to retail individual bidders or eligible employees and a Green Shoe Option of up to
a certain number of Equity Shares at a price to be determined by the book building
process in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations or otherwise in accordance with
Applicable Laws, at such premium or discount per Equity Share as may be fixed and
determined by the Board in consultation with the book running lead managers (‘BRLMs”)
and the Selling Shareholders in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, to any
category of persons who are eligible investors, who may or may not be the shareholder(s)
of the Company as the Board and the Selling Shareholders may, in consultation with the
BRLMs decide, including anchor investors and qualified institutional buyers as defined
under Regulation 2(1)(zd) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, foreign/ resident investors
(whether institutions, incorporated bodies, mutual funds and/or individuals or otherwise),
Hindu undivided families, employees working in India or abroad, non-resident Indians,
registered foreign portfolio investors (‘FPIs") as defined under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, as amended,
alternative investment funds, venture capital funds, foreign venture capital investors,
state industrial development corporations, insurance companies, insurance funds,
provident funds, pension funds, national investment fund, insurance funds,
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trusts/societies registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860, development
financial institutions, multilateral and bilateral financial institutions, bodies corporate,
companies, private or public or other entities whether incorporated or not, authorities and
to such other persons, including high net worth individuals, retail individual bidders or
other entities, in one or more combinations thereof, or any other category of investors
who are permitted to invest in Equity Shares as per Applicable Law, through an offer
document, prospectus and/or an information memorandum, if any, and the decision to
determine the category or categories of investors to whom the allotment/transfer shall be
made to the exclusion of all other categories of investors and in such manner as the
Board and the Selling Shareholders may in its discretion, deem fit, including in
consultation with BRLMs, underwriters, placement agents and/or other advisors as may
be appointed for the Offer on such terms as may be deemed appropriate by the Board.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board may invite the existing shareholders of the
Company to participate in the Offer by making an Offer for Sale in relation to such number
of Equity Shares held by them, and which are eligible for the Offer for Sale in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as the Board may determine in consultation with the
BRLMs, subject to the receipt of consent of SEBI, Gol, RBI, the Registrar of Companies
and/or such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of all other concerned regulatory
authorities and departments, if and to the extent necessary, and subject to such
conditions and modifications as may be prescribed in granting such approvals,
permissions and sanctions, at a price to be determined by the book building process in
terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for cash at such premium per share as may be fixed
and determined by the Company and Selling Shareholders in consultation with the
BRLMs, to such category of persons as may be permitted or in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations or other applicable law, if any, as may be prevailing at that time and in
such manner as may be determined by the Board and the Selling Shareholders in
consultation with the BRLMs and/or underwriters and/or the stabilizing agent and/or other
advisors or such persons appointed for the Offer.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Equity Shares so allotted or transferred in the Offer
shall be subject to the memorandum of association and the articles of association of the
Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Equity Shares allotted/ transferred through the Offer
be listed at one or more recognized stock exchanges in India.”

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the
Company to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred in such manner as it may
deem fit for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions and any offer, issue,
transfer and allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Offer, including but without
limitation, to the following:

() constituting a committee for the purposes of any issue, transfer, offer and allotment
of Equity Shares, and other matters in connection with or incidental to the Offer,
including determining the anchor investor portion and allocate such number of
Equity Shares to Anchor Investors as may be decided by the Company and the
Selling Shareholders in consultation with the BLRMs and in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations and to constitute such other committees of the Board, as
may be required under Applicable Laws, including as provided in the SEBI Listing
Regulations;



(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

()

(xii)

authorization of any director or directors of the Company or other officer or officers
of the Company, including by the grant of power of attorney, to do such acts, deeds
and things as such authorized person in his/her/its absolute discretion may deem
necessary or desirable in connection with any issue, transfer, offer and allotment of
Equity Shares;

giving or authorizing any concerned person on behalf of the Company to give such
declarations, affidavits, certificates, consents and authorities as may be required
from time to time;

appointing the BRLMs in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and other Applicable Laws;

seeking, if required, any approval, consent or waiver from the Company’s lenders,
and/or parties with whom the Company has entered into various commercial and
other agreements, and/or any/all concerned government and regulatory authorities
in India, and/or any other approvals, consents or waivers that may be required in
connection with any issue, transfer, offer and allotment of Equity Shares and
approving and issuing advertisements in relation to the Offer:

deciding with the Selling Shareholders and in consultation with the BRLMs the Offer
size, the pricing of the Equity Shares, the Bid / Offer Opening Date, Bid/Offer
Closing Date (including bid opening and bid closing dates for anchor investors),
Discount (if any), Reservation (if any), other terms and conditions of the Offer and
all other related matters, including the determination of the minimum subscription
for the Offer, in accordance with Applicable Laws;

taking on record the approval of the Offer for Sale;

approval of the draft red herring prospectus (“‘DRHP”), the red herring prospectus
(‘RHP") and the prospectus (‘Prospectus”)and the preliminary and final
international wrap (including amending, varying or modifying the same, or providing
any notices, addenda, or corrigenda thereto, together with any summaries thereof
as may be considered desirable or expedient) in relation to the Offer as finalized in
consultation with the BRLMs and the Selling Shareholders, in accordance with
Applicable Laws;

withdrawing the DRHP or the RHP or not proceeding with the Offer at any stage in
accordance with Applicable Laws and in consultation with the BRLM(s) and the
Selling Shareholders:

seeking the listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, submitting the
listing application to such Stock Exchanges and taking all actions that may be
necessary in connection with obtaining such listing;

appointing, in consultation with the BRLMs and the Selling Shareholders, the
registrar and other intermediaries to the Offer, in accordance with the provisions of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other Applicable Laws and entering into the
required agreements with all intermediaries:

finalization of and arrangement for the submission of the DRHP to be submitted to
the SEBI and the Stock Exchanges for receiving comments, the RHP and the
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Prospectus to be filed with the Registrar of Companies, and any corrigendum,
addendum, amendments supplements thereto:

(xiii) authorization of the maintenance of a register of holders of the Equity Shares;
(xiv) finalization of the basis of allotment of the Equity Shares;

(xv) acceptance and appropriation of the proceeds of the Fresh Issue in accordance
with Applicable Laws; and

(xvi) to do any other act and/or deed, to negotiate and execute any document(s),
application(s), agreement(s), undertaking(s), deed(s), affidavits, declarations and
certificates, and/or to give such direction as it deems fit or as may be necessary or
desirable with regard to the Offer.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board is hereby authorised to negotiate, finalize and
execute all such agreements and arrangements as well as amendments, supplements,
notices or addenda or corrigenda thereto in connection with the Offer, for appointment of
BRLMs and in consultation with the Selling Shareholders for appointment of - the
intermediaries, underwriters, escrow agents, registrar, bankers to the Offer, legal
counsels, depository(ies), advertising agency, and all such persons or agencies as may
be involved in or concerned with the Offer and to remunerate all such agencies in cash or
otherwise, including by way of payment of commission, brokerage, fees, or reimbursement
for expenses incurred in relation to the Offer”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board
or any committee thereof , or any person authorized by it be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise
in regard to the offer/issue, allotment, transfer and utilization of the proceeds and further
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to finalize and execute all documents
and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient as it may deem fit and
to give such directions and/or instructions as it may from time to time decide and to accept
and give effect to such modifications, changes, variations, alterations, deletions, additions
as regards the terms and conditions, including the premium to be charged on the shares,
to vary the size of the issue as required by the SEBI, lead managers, banks or other
authorities or agencies concerned or as the Board or any committee thereof or any person
authorized by it may decide in its absolute discretion in the best interest of the Company
without requiring any further approval of the members and to do all such acts, deeds,
matters or things whatsoever, including settling any question, doubt or difficulty that may
arise from time to time with regard to or in relation to raising of resources as authorized
herein and that all or any of the powers conferred on the Board or any committee thereof
vide this resolution may be exercised by the Board or such committee thereof as the Board
may constitute in this behalf or any person authorized by it.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din No. 00108589)
and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Whole-time Director (Din No. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorized to take all steps for giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, including
filing of the necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified copies of this resolution be provided to those
concerned under the hands of a Director or Company Secretary wherever required.”
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8.

10.

ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT, the revised articles of association, in the form attached to the notice
to the shareholders, be and are hereby approved and adopted as the articles of
association of the Company in total exclusion and substitution of the Company's existing
articles of association.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din No. 00108589)
and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Whole-time Director (Din No. 02906180) be and are hereby
authorized to take all steps for giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, including filing of
the necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies.”

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AND ALTERATION IN THE CAPITAL
CLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:-

‘RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 61 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the authorized share capital of the Company be and is hereby
revised and increased from Rs.57,60,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Seven Crores Sixty Lakh only)
divided into 5,76,00,000 (Five Crores Seventy Six Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 10/-(Rupees
Ten) each, to Rs.57,85,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Seven Crores Eighty Five Lakh only) divided
into 5,78,50,000 (Five Crores Seventy Eight Lakh Fifty Thousand) equity shares of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, consequently, pursuant to Section 13 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the existing clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby substituted by the
following:

“V. The Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 57,85,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Seven Crores
Eighty Five Lakh only) divided into 5,78,50,000 (Five Crores Seventy Eight Lakh Fifty
Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten only) each”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din No. 00108589)
and/or Mr. Ishaan Bector, Whole-time Director (Din No. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorized to take all steps for giving effect to the aforesaid resolution including
filing of the necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies.”

IDENTIFICATIONOF PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:-

‘RESOLVED THAT, Mr. Anoop Bector, exercising control over the affairs of the
Company, shall henceforth be identified as the promoter of the Company for all purposes,
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1.

12.

regulatory, statutory, commercial or otherwise under all applicable laws, including without
limitation, the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition on Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, each, as amended.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the members of the Promoter Group (as defined under
the ICDR Regulations) be identified accordingly and disclosed accordingly (along with
the aforesaid Promoters) in all documents and filings made by the Company with any
governmental authority or any other statutory or regulatory body, including disclosures in
the DRHP/the red herring prospectus/the prospectus and other documents in relation to
the proposed initial public offering of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel, Whole-time Director (Din no.
00007297) and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Whole-time Director (Din no. 02906180) be and are
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts and things that may be necessary or
expedient to give effect to above resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, certified copies of this resolution be provided to those
concerned under the hands of a Director or Company Secretary wherever required.

TO RE-APPOINT MR. PARVEEN KUMAR GOEL AS THE WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
OF THE COMPANY FOR A PERIOD OF 3 YEARS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution
as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 & 203, of the
Companies Act 2013 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 consent of
the members be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Parveen Kumar
Goel (DIN No.00007297) as the Whole-time Director (KMP) of the Company for another
period of three years with effect from 15t April 2018 to 315t March 2021 on such terms and
conditions and payment of remuneration and other perquisites/ benefits to Mr. Parveen
Goel during the said period of three years as recommended by Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of Directors and as set out in the Explanatory Statement
annexed to the notice convening this meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution,
the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable
and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

TO GIVE AUTHORITY UNDER SECTION 180(1)(a) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
TO SELL, LEASE OR OTHERWISE DISPOSE OF, TO MORTGAGE/ CREATE
CHARGES ON THE PROPERTIES OF THE COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution
as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION



13.

‘RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolutions passed in this behalf, the
consent of the Company be and is hereby granted in terms of Section 180(1)(a) and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) to the Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any committee
which the Board may constitute for this purpose) to mortgage and/or charge, in addition
to the mortgages/charges created/to be created by the Company, in such form and
manner, and with such ranking and at such time and on such terms as the Board may
determine, on all or any of the moveable and/or immoveable properties of the Company,
both present and future and/or the whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of the Company
together with the power to take over the management of business and concern of the
Company in certain events of default, in favour of the Lender(s) upto an amount of Rs.
350 Crores, for securing the borrowings availed/to be availed by the Company by way of
loan(s) (in foreign currency and/or rupee currency) and Securities (comprising fully/partly
Convertible Debentures and/or Non-Convertible Debentures with or without detachable or
non-detachable warrants and/or secured premium notes and/or floating rates notes/bonds
or other debt instruments), issued/to be issued by the Company, from time to time, subject
to the limits approved under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, together with
interest at the respective agreed rates, additional interest, compound interest in case of
default, accumulated interest, liquidated damages, commitment charges, premia on
repayment, remuneration of the Agent(s)/Trustees, premium (if any) on redemption, all
other costs, charges and expenses, including any increase as a result of
devaluation/revaluation/fluctuation in the rates of exchange and all other monies payable
by the Company in terms of the Loan Agreement(s)/Heads of Agreement(s), Debenture
Trust Deed(s) or any other document, entered into/to be entered into between the
Company and the Lender(s)/Agent(s) and Trustee(s), in respect of the said
loan(s)/borrowings/debentures and containing such specific terms and conditions and
covenants in respect of enforcement of security as may be stipulated in that behalf and
agreed to between the Board of Directors or Committee thereof and the
Lender(s)/Agent(s) and Trustee(s).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board
and/or its duly constituted committee be and is hereby authorised to finalize, settle and
execute such documents/deeds/writings/papers/agreements as may be required and do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, proper or desirable and to settler any question, difficulty or doubt that may
arise in regard to creating mortgages/charges as aforesaid.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din No. 00108589)
and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Wholetime Director (Din No. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorized to complete the necessary formalities in this regard, to digitally sign
the E-forms, wherever required, and to take all necessary decisions and actions as they
may deem fit in the best interest of the Company.”

TO BORROW IN EXCESS OF THE PAID-UP CAPITAL AND FREE RESERVES UNDER
SECTION 180(1)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolutions passed in this behalf, the
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded under the provisions of Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Board of Directors of the Company for
borrowing from time to time any sum or sums of moneys on such terms and conditions
and with or without security as the Board of Directors think fit which, together with moneys
already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans either obtained or to be
obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed
the aggregate for the time being of the paid up capital of the Company and its free
reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose, provided that the
total amount of money/moneys so borrowed by the Board shall not at any time exceed the
limit of Rs. 350.00 Crore including all divisions of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do
and perform all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din No. 00108589)
and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Wholetime Director (Din No. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorised to complete the necessary formalities in this regard, to digitally sign
E-forms, wherever required, and to take all necessary decisions and actions as they may
deem fit in the best interest of the Company.

INCREASE IN FPI LIMIT

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as aSpecial Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999, as amended (‘FEMA”), Foreign Exchange Management
(Transfer or Issue of Security by a person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2017 as
amended up to date, Master Direction, Foreign Investments in India, issued by Reserve
Bank of India dated January 4, 2018 (updated as on April 10, 2018) read with the
Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment Policy Circular of 2017, the Companies Act and
all other applicable acts, rules, regulations, provisions and guidelines (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and subject to
all applicable approvals, permissions and sanctions of the [Department of Industrial Policy
and Promotion], the Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Finance, Government of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India and other concerned authorities and
subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of the said concerned authorities
while granting such approvals, permissions or sanctions, approval of the shareholders of
the Company be and is hereby granted for increasing the limit of investment by foreign
portfolio investors, as defined under the SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2014, in the Equity Shares of the Company, including, without limitation, by acquisition in
the Offer in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations or direct purchase or acquisition
from the open market under the Portfolio Investment Scheme under FEMA, from 24% to
49% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din no. 00108589)
and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Wholetime Director (Din no. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds matters and things as may be necessary,
desirable or expedient for giving effect to the above resolution and make such filings with
the regulatory authorities to effectively implement this resolution.”
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15. INCREASE IN NRI LIMIT

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of FEMA, Foreign Exchange
Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a person Resident outside India)
Regulations, 2017 as amended up to date, the Companies Act, the current Master
Direction, Foreign Investments in India, issued by Reserve Bank of India dated January
4, 2018 (updated as on April 10, 2018) read with Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment
Policy Circular, 2017, and all other applicable acts, rules, regulations, provisions and
guidelines (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time
being in force) and subject to all applicable approvals, permissions and sanctions of the
Reserve Bank of india, Ministry of Finance, Government of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India and other concerned authorities and subject to such
conditions as may be prescribed by any of the said concerned authorities while granting
such approvals, permissions or sanctions which may be agreed to by the Board of
Directors of the Company, the approval of the shareholders of the Company be and is
hereby granted for increasing the limit of investment by non-resident Indians in the equity
shares of the Company, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as amended or direct
purchase or acquisition from the open market under the Portfolio Investment Scheme
under FEMA, upto 49% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director (Din No. 00108589)
and/or Mr Ishaan Bector, Whole-time Director (Din No. 02906180) be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds matters and things as may be necessary,
desirable or expedient for giving effect to the above resolution and make such filings with
the regulatory authorities to effectively implement this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Sd/-

(ANOOP BECTOR)

MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN - 00108589

Date: 10th July, 2018 ADDRESS: C-13, SARABHA NAGAR,
Place: Gurugram LUDHIANA, PB. — 141001
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NOTES

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT PROXY TO ATTEND AND TO VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company. Proxies in order to
be effective, should be duly completed, stamped and must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company before the time for commencement of the meeting.

2. The relative Explanatory Statement under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of ltem No. 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12,13, 14 and150f the Notice as set out above, is annexed hereto.

3Copies of Notice of 23rd AGM along with attendance slip & proxy form are being sent by
electronic mode only to the members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has
requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email
addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by the permitted mode.

;1. Members are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed as per specimen signature
recorded with the company for admission to the company hall.

5. Members who hold shares in the Dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID
and DP ID numbers for easy identification of attendance at the 23rd Annual General Meeting.

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send a certified copy of Board resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

7. Members/Proxies are requested to bring to the meeting the Attendance slip duly filled in while
attending the Annual General Meeting.

8. The Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education & Protection Fund of the Central
Government as required in terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the current
Financial Year is not applicable.

9. The relevant records and documents connected with the businesses set out in the Notice are
available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 12.00 Noon and 3.00
P.M. on all working days up to the day of the Annual General Meeting and will also be available
at the meeting.

10. This Annual General meeting of the Shareholders of the Company is being convened at a
shorter notice. All the members are requested to give their consent.

11. The Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map of the Venue of the above mentioned
meeting is enclosed herewith.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business
mentioned under item nos. 6 to 15 of the accompanying Notice:

ITEM NO. 6

In order to enhance the financial and operational performance of the Company and to strengthen
its Top Management Team, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr. Rajiv Dewan as an Additional Director (Non-
Executive) as also an Independent Director, not being liable to retire by rotation, for a term
commencing from 10th July 2018 to 9th July 2023, subject to the approval of the Members.

As per Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Dewan being an Additional Director, holds office upto the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held on August 1, 2018 and is eligible to be appointed
as a Director of the Company. The Company has received a notice in writing from a Member of
the Company along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160(1) of the Act
proposing the candidature of Mr. Dewan for the office of a Director of the Company. Mr. Dewan
has consented to act as a Director of the Company.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act, Mr. Dewan, is eligible to be
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company and has given a declaration to the Board
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act.

Mr. Dewan is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and is a
practicing Chartered Accountant. He has a rich experience as a chartered accountant. He is
currently a partner in R. Dewan & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana. In the past, he has
also served as a director in various companies including JSW Vallabh Tinplate Private Limited,
Punjab Communications Limited, Trident Aerospace Limited, Trinetra Technologies Limited,
Trident Powercom Limited, Trident Brokers Limited, Trident Research Limited and Trident
Brands Limited.

Considering the rich experience and vast knowledge of Mr. Dewan, his presence on the Board
will be valuable and would be of immense benefit to the Company. Further, in the opinion of the
Board, Mr. Dewan fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder and
he is independent of the Management. Hence, it is proposed to appoint him as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company, as per the provisions of the Section 149 of the Act and
therefore recommend this resolution for your approval. Copy of the appointment Letter of Mr.
Rajiv Dewan as Non-Executive Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions would
be available for inspection without any fee to be paid by the members at the Registered Office
of the Company during 12.00 Noon to 3.00 p.m. on any working day, excluding holidays.

Mr. Rajiv Dewan does not hold by himself or for any other person on beneficial basis, any shares
in the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice for
the approval by the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.

None of the other Directors, Manager, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their

relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the proposed Resolution set out in Item No.6
of the Notice except Mr. Rajiv Dewan, being an appointee.
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(if)

Ms. Dewan is not related to any other Director of the Company. The details of Mr. Dewan along
with a brief resume is given in the Annexure to the Notice.

ITEM NO. 7

The Company intends to list its equity shares (the “Equity Shares”) on one or more stock
exchanges to enable the shareholders to have a formal market place for dealing with the
Company’s equity shares and proposes to create, offer, issue and allotequity shares of the
Company of face value ofRs. 10/- each (the “Equity Shares”),on such terms, in such manner, at
such time and at such price or prices and as may be discovered in accordance with applicable
laws, including without limitation the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as amended (“SEBIICDR Regulations”), to
various categories of investors including qualified institutional investors, retail individual investors,
non-institutional investors, non-resident Indians, registered foreign portfolio investors and/ or
eligible employees, as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws.
Further, the Board may invite the existing members of the Company to participate in such an
offering by making an offer for sale in relation to such number of Equity Shares held by them, and
which are eligible for offer for sale in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as the Board
may in consultation with the book running lead managers (the ‘BRLMSs’") determine. The Equity
Shares allotted shall rank in all respects paripassu with the existing Equity Shares.

The proposed offering may include a fresh issue of the Equity Shares by the Company (the “Fresh
Issue”) and an offer for sale of Equity Shares (the “Offer for Sale” together with the Fresh Issue,
the “Offer”)by certain existing shareholders of the Company (the “Selling Shareholders”). An
existing shareholder seeking to offer either all or some of the Equity Shares which are eligible for
offer for sale in accordance with the SEB] ICDR Regulations, may offer it for sale within the Offer
for Sale for such price, as may be determined by the book building process, in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Selling Shareholders must convey their approval by way of a
duly executed consent letter addressed to Atul Sud, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
to be sent to the registered office of the Company, by way of registered post, no later than 7.00
p.m. on July 25, 2018 and/or July 26, 2018 in accordance with the letters issued to respective
selling shareholders.

addition, the Selling Shareholders may be required to comply with additional requirements under
applicable law or such other directions as may be specified by the Company, SEBI and other
regulatory authorities.

Eligibility:

In terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares offered in the Offer for Sale, subject to the

prescribed exemptions, are required to have been held by each Selling Shareholder for a period
of at least one year prior to filing of the DRHP with SEBI,

Dematerialization:
The Equity Shares forming part of the Offer for Sale are required to be fully paid up and held in

dematerialized form. To avoid any delays further on in the process, the dematerialization of Equity
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the regulations made thereunder, read with the central depositories’ respective byelaws of
National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

(iii) Lock-in:

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the entire pre-Offer equity share capital of the Company,
including the Equity Shares held by the Selling Shareholders will be locked-in for a period of one
year from the date of allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Offer, in accordance with
SEBI ICDR Regulations, other than (i) the Equity Shares offered by way of the Offer for Sale and
which are successfully allotted as part of the Offer for Sale, (ii) the Equity Shares,if any, allotted
to employees under the ESOP Schemeprior to the Offer, (jii) Equity Shares held by venture capital
funds, alternative investment funds of Category | or Category Il and foreign venture capital
investors, provided that such Equity Shares will be locked in for a period of one year from the date
of purchase or acquisition by such entities. Further, the Equity Shares for minimum promoters’
contribution will be locked in for a period of three years.

(iv) Proceeds and Expenses in relation to the Offer:

(v)

As per the SEBI ICDR Regulations and Companies Act, 2013, the proceeds of the Offer and
related refunds and Offer related expenses are required to be borne by the Company and the
respective Selling Shareholders in proportion to the number of Equity Shares offered by the
Company and the Selling Shareholders through the Offer.

Documentation:

The Selling Shareholders will have to provide duly executed consent and certificate, in relation to
compliance and certain confirmations required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other
applicable law, including in relation to clear title to the Equity Shares held by them and Offer
expenses, and a power of attorney authorizing certain officials of the Company to act on their
behalf in relation to the Offer.

In the event the Company does not receive any communication within the time and date

prescribed above from the existing shareholders, the Company reserves the right to not proceed
with the Offer.

Material information pertaining to the Offer is as follows:

(i) Offer Price:

The price at which the Equity Shares will be allotted through the Offer shall be determined and
finalized by the Company and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLMs in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, on the basis of the book building process.

(i) The object(s) of the Offer are:

The proceeds of the offer for sale by the Selling Shareholders, will not be received by the
Company.

(iii) Intention of Promoters/Directors/Key managerial personnel to subscribe to the Offer:

The Company has not made and will not make an offer of Equity Shares to any of the promoters,
directors or key managerial personnel. However, the directors (other than directors who are also
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promoters or a part of the promoter group) or the key managerial personnel may apply for the
Equity Shares in the various categories under the Offer in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

(v)  Whether a change in control is intended or expected:
No change in control is intended or expected as a result of the Offer.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval. Additionally, to the extent the above
requires amendments to be made in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, the
“Companies Act, 2013"), the SEBI ICDR Regulations, any other law or if recommended by
various advisors to the Company in connection with the Offer, the Board will make necessary
amendments.

All the directors, key managerial personnel and relatives of directors and/or key managerial
personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 201 3) may be deemed to be concerned or interested
in the proposed resolution to the extent shares may be subscribed for and allotted in their names.

ITEM NO. 8

In relation to the Offer of Equity Shares, the articles of association of the Company would also
need to be amended accordingly to reflect the requirements of the stock exchanges with which
the Company intends to list its Equity Shares and requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the Board hereby recommends that the revised articles of association placed before
the shareholders be approved and adopted.

The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the members of the Company.

None of the directors, key managerial personnel and relatives of directors and/or key managerial
personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) are concerned or interested in the proposed
resolution, except in the ordinary course of business.

ITEM NO. 9

Section 61 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that a limited company having a share capital
may, if so authorized by its articles of association, with the consent of its members in its general
meeting, alter the conditions of its memorandum of association $0 as to increase its share capital
by such amount as it thinks expedient by issuing new shares.

Article 43 and 44 of the articles of association empowers the Company to increase, consolidate,
subdivide, reduce or otherwise alter its Authorized Share Capital, for the time being, and to divide
the shares in the capital into several classes with rights, privileges or conditions, as may be
determined.

For the purposes as stated hereinabove, it is recommended by the Board that the present
Authorized Share Capital should be revised and increased from Rs.57,60,00,000 (Rupees Fifty
SevenCrores Sixty Lakh only) divided into 5,76,00,000 (Five Crores Seventy Six Lakh) equity
shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each, to Rs.57,85,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Seven Crores Eighty
Five Lakh only) divided into 5,78,50,000 (Five Crores Seventy Eight Lakh Fifty Thousand) equity
shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) eachand Clause V of the Memorandum of Association should
be amended accordingly.
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The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the members of the Company.

None of the directors, key managerial personnel and relatives of directors and/or key managerial
personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) are concerned or interested in the proposed
resolution, except in the ordinary course of business. :

ITEM NO. 10

Since the Company is considering an initial public offering of its equity shares, In this context, it
is required to identify and disclose its Promoters and Promoter Group in terms of the SEBIICDR
Regulations as a part of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (“DRHP”) to be filed with SEBI and
such other authorities or persons as may be required, pursuant to the compliances and
disclosures required under the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made thereunder (the
“Companies Act, 2013"), the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI Listing
Regulations”), each as amended from time to time.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on July 10, 2018 have identified Mr. Anoop Bector
as the Company’s ‘Promoter’ and no other person/ entity has been named as a ‘Promoter’ in any
filing with a regulator and is of the opinion that there are no other individuals / entities that (i) have
the right to appoint majority of the directors or to control the management or policy decisions
exercisable by a person or persons acting individually or in concert, directly or indirectly, including
by virtue of their shareholding or management rights or shareholders’ agreements or voting
agreements or in any other manner; (i) in accordance with whose advice, directions or
instructions the Board of the Company is accustomed to act.

Mr. Anoop Bector may be deemed to be interested or concerned in the above matter to the extent
of his holding in the company.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as anOrdinary Resolution for your approval under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except as above, none of other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and/or their relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 11

Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel is holding office as Wholetime Director of the Company in terms of
appointment approved by the members at Extra-ordinary general meeting of the company held
on 31.03.2016. Appointment and remuneration of Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel was approved for a
period of three years from w.e.f. 01.04.2016. In view of the overall growth of company under
leadership of Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel the company has achieved extraordinary growth in
performance of the company in a fiercely competitive environment, realized primarily through
management interventions led by Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel. Significant improvements were noted
in sales turnover, product mix, cost reduction, operational efficiencies and bottom line figures.

In view of the aforesaid facts, the Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on 20th
April, 2018 on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had
approved the re-appointment of Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel as the Whole-time Director (KMP) of
the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for a period of three years with effect from 1st April, 2018
subject to the approval of the Shareholders
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The Terms of re-appointment including remuneration as approved by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board subject to the approval of the Members to be obtained
at this meeting are as follows:

1

. Period

Three years commencing from 10th July, 2018 with the liberty to either party to terminate the
appointment by serving one month’s notice in writing or such shorter notice as may be mutually
agreed between the Company and Mr. Parveen Goel or payment of an amount equivalent to
one month’s last drawn remuneration in lieu of said notice.

2. Remuneration

Subject to overall limit laid down under Section 197 & 198 of the Companies, 2013, Mr.
Parveen Goel shall be entitled to receive from Company following remuneration:-

(a) Salary:

For each financial year, consolidated salary (including performance bonus) upto Rs.
80,00,000/-(Rupees Eighty Lacs Only) per annum with further liberty to the Board of
Directors of the Company to alter or vary the said remuneration in the best interest of the
Company as may be permissible under the applicable laws including Companies Act, 2013
and that the aggregate of the remuneration and perquisites in any financial year shall not
exceed the limit from time to time under section 197, 198 and other applicable provisions of
the Act and Rules made thereunder, read with Schedule V of the said Act or any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, or otherwise as may be
permissible at law.

So long as Mr. Goel functions as Whole Time Director, he shall not be paid any fees for
attending the meetings of the Board or any Committee(s) thereof of the Company.

(b) Reimbursements

In addition to the aforesaid salary, Mr. Parveen Goel will be entitled to reimbursements of
all expenses actually and properly incurred by him in the course of legitimate business of
the Company. Further, he will be entitled for Medical and other reimbursements and -
personal accident and other insurances as per the rules and policies of the Company.

The Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to modify/amend the remuneration
components within the overall limits of remuneration.”

The following perquisites shall not be included in the aforesaid limits:

i)

i)

ii)

Contribution to Provident Fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these
either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income — tax Act, 1961 (43
of1961).

Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of
service; and

Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.
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The above may also be treated as an abstract of terms of appointment and
Memorandum of interest under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as a Special Resolution for your approval under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except as above, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their respective relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The details of Mr. Goel along with a brief resume is given in the Annexure to the Notice

ITEM NO. 12

Since the borrowings of the Company are generally required to be secured by way of creation of
mortgage and/or charge and/or hypothecation and/or pledge and/or assignments and/or lien on
all or any other movable and/or immovable properties of the Company both present and/or future.
The members of the Company at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 30th June, 2014,
had accorded by way of special resolution their approval to the Board of Directors of the Company
for securing the borrowings and financial assistance not exceeding Rs. 200 crores (Rupees Two
Hundred Crores) only. Now, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the consent of the shareholders is sought for authorising the Board to create mortgage
and/or charge and/or hypothecation and/or pledge over the property of the Company, both
present and future to secure the borrowings or financial assistance upto an aggregate amount
not exceeding Rs. 350.00 Crores (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Crores) only.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as a Special Resolution for your approval under the
Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 13

The members of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 30th day of June, 2014, had accorded
by way of special resolution their approval to the Board of Directors of the Company, for borrowing
monies on behalf of the Company, from time to time up to an aggregate amount of Rs. 200.00
Crores (Rupees Two Hundred Crores) only, notwithstanding the monies to be borrowed, together
with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained from
the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed from the aggregate of
the paid up share capital of the Company and it's free reserve not set apart for specific purpose.
However, having regard to Company's requirement of funds for its growth plans, consent of the
shareholders is sought for increasing the said borrowing limit from Rs. 200.00 Crores (Rupees
Two Hundred Crores) to Rs. 350.00 Crores (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Crores) only.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as a Special Resolution for your approval under the
Companies Act, 2013.
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 14

The Company is required to apply to regulatory bodies to enhance the limit of investment by
Foreign Portfolio Investors. Pursuant to applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management
Act, 1999, as amended (“FEMA”"), Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security
by a person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2017 as amended up to date, Master Direction,
Foreign Investments in India, issued by Reserve Bank of India dated January 4, 2018 (updated
as on April 10, 2018) read with the Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment Policy Circular of
2017, the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder as amended, and all other
applicable acts, rules, regulations, provisions and guidelines (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) the limit upto which the
investment by foreign portfolio investors can be done is upto 24%. Itis proposed that the Company
should apply to regulatory bodies to get the limit enhanced to 49%, if it is so required.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as a Special Resolution for your approval under the
Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

ITEM NO. 15

It has been proposed to enhance the limit of investment by NRIs upto 49% so that Non Resident
Indians can invest in IPO.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as a Special Resolution for your approval under the
Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

By order of the Board
For Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Sd/-

(ANOOP BECTOR)

MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN - 00108589

ADDRESS: C-13, SARABHA NAGAR,

LUDHIANA, PB. — 141001
Date: 10th July, 2018

Place: Gurugram
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Details of the Director seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General

Meeting

[Pursuant to Paragraph 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings]

Particulars Mr. Rajiv Dewan Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel
Date of Birth 30" November, 1961 21% August, 1963

Date of first 10% July 2018 2" April 2007

Appointment as

Director

Qualifications

He is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

He holds a bachelors’ degree in commerce
from Punjab University and a qualified
chartered accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

Expertise in specific
functional area

He is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and is a
practicing Chartered Accountant. He possesses
rich and varied experience in tax planning,
management consultancy, business
restructuring, capital market operations, SEBI
related matters and other corporate laws. He is
currently partner in R. Dewan & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Ludhiana and also Independent
Director of Trdent Limited.

Heis a Whole-Time Director of our Company. He
holds a bachelors’ degree in commerce from
Punjab University. He is a qualified chartered
accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. He is currently the chief
financial officer of our Company. He has been
associated with our Company since April 2,
2007.

Directorships held in

other body corporate

as on 31%'March 2018

Trident Limited

Mrs. Bector’s English Oven Limited;
Mrs. Bectors Cremica Dairies Private Limited

Membership /
Chairmanships of
committees of
other companies
{(includes only Audit
Committee and
Stakeholders
Relationship
Committee) as on 31"
March 2018

Trident Limited
Audit Committee: Chairman
Stakeholders Relationship Committee: Chairman

Nil

Number of equity
shares held in the
Company as on 30t
June 2018

Nil

Nil

Relationship with
other Directors and
Key Managerial
Personnel

None

None

Remuneration Last
Drawn from the
Company

NIL

Rs. 49,10,000/- only (For the year 2017-18)

No of meetings of
the Board attended
during the year

NIL

7 (Seven)
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BOARD REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 23“Annual report on the affairs of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2018.

1. Financial Summary or performance of the company

1A. Standalone Financial Summary or performance of the company:

(In Rs. Mn.)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Revenue from operations (Net) 6533.31 6015.11
Other Income 35.91 23.53
Total Income 6569.22 6038.64
Less: Expenses 5797.05 5411
Profit b.efgre Financial I_Expenses, 772.17 627.64
Depreciation and Taxation
Less: Financial expenses(Finance Cost) 55.29 38.64
Less: Depreciation and amortisation 244 11 220.41
Profit before Taxation 472.77 368.59
Less : Tax Expense (Deferred & Current) 152.25 115.36
Profit for the year 320.52 253.23
Add: Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for
the year 1.71 (1.56)
Total comprehensive income for the year 322.23 251.67
Earnings Per Share
Basic 5.60. 4.42
Diluted 5.59 4.42

1B. Consolidated Financial Summary or performance of the company:
(In Rs. Mn.)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Revenue from operations (Net) 6939.65 6386.52
Other Income 17.90 21.54
Total Income 6957.55 6408.06
Less: Expenses 6096.23 5688.86
Profit before Financial Expenses, 861.32 719.2
Depreciation and Taxation
Less: Financial expenses(Finance Cost) 57.78 45.02
Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 272.93 249.67
Add: Profit before share of equity accounted 017 0.31
investees and tax share of net profit of associates
accounted for using the equity method
Profit before Taxation 530.78 424.82
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2.

Less : Tax Expense (Deferred & Current) 170.30 134.01
Profit for the year 360.48 290.81
Q‘c;dye(;:her Comprehensive Income / (loss) for 175 (1.65)
Total comprehensive income for the year 362.23 289.16
Earnings Per Share

Basic 6.30 5.08
Diluted 6.29 5.08

Indian Accounting Standard

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 16" February, 2015,
notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain classes of
Companies. The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the
financial statements have been prepared as per the Indian Accounting standard Rules, 2015,
as prescribed under Section (133) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules
issued thereunder and the other Accounting Principles generally accepted in India

Operations

On Stanalone Basis the Company has reported revenue from operations of ¥6533.31 Mn.
for the financial year 2017-2018 as compared to ¥6015.11 Mn. in the previous financial
year 2016-2017, showing an increase of 8.61% over the previous year. The Net Profit for
the year under review amounted to ¥ 320.52 Mn. as compared to ¥253.23 Mn. in the
previous year, showing an impressive increase of 26.57%.

On Consolidated basis the Company has reported revenue from operations of ¥6939.65
Mn. for the financial year 2017-2018 as compared to ¥6386.52 Mn. in the previous
financial year 2016-2017, showing an increase of 8.66% over the previous year. The Net
Profit for the year under review amounted to ¥ 360.48 Mn. as compared to ¥289.16 Mn.
in the previous year, showing an impressive increase of 24.66%.

Transfer to reserves
The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.
Dividend

Your Company in the month of March, 2018 declared an Interim Dividend of Re.0.75 per
equity share of face value of INR 10 each amounting to Rs.42.95 Mn. for the current
Financial Year 2017-2018 to the shareholders, who were on the register of members of
the Company as on the closing hours of business on 16th March, 2018, being the record
date fixed by the Board of Directors for this purpose. The dividend distribution tax was
Rs.5.21 Mn. and accordingly, the total outflow of the Company amounted to Rs.48.16 Mn.
The Board of Directors recommend this interim dividend paid as the final dividend for the
Financial Year 2017-2018.

To use the financial resources for the future growth of the company, your directors do not
recommend any other dividend for financial period 2017-18.
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6. Material Changes between the date of the Board report and end of financial year.

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

7. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
company’s operations in future

7. Subsidiary Company/Joint Venture/Associate Company.
At the close of financial year 2017-18, the company has two subsidiary companies viz.,

i. Bakebest Foods Private Limited
ii.  Mrs Bector's English Oven Limited

The company also has one associate company viz., Cremica Agro Foods Limited as on
31st March 2018.

As required under the provisions of section 129(3) read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a consolidated financial statement of the company and its subsidiaries has been
prepared and attached to the standalone financial statement of the company. The
consolidated financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards.

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries for the financial year 2017-18, in form AOC-1, (Annexure- D) has been
attached along with the financial statement of the company. A copy of separate audited
financial statements in respect of the subsidiaries shall be provided upon request by a
shareholder.

8. Statutory Auditor & Audit Report:

M/s BS R & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.101248W/W-100022)
were appointed by the shareholders in the 20th Annual General Meeting as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for the period of four years from Financial year
2015-16 to 2018-2019 i.e. (from conclusion of this (20th Annual General Meeting) till (24th
Annual General meeting) subject to ratification by shareholders at each Annual General
Meeting. The resolution is therefore placed at this annual general meeting to ratify their
appointment. The Company has received a certificate from the statutory auditors to the
effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits prescribed.

There are no qualifications or observations or remarks made by the Auditors in their
Report.

9. Change in the nature of business:
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As required to be reported pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) read with Rule 8(5) (ii) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, There is no change in the nature of business carried
on by company during the financial year 2017-18.

10. Details of directors and key managerial personnel;

1.

Mr. Anoop Bector is the Managing Director and the key Managerial personnel of the
Company.

Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel is the Chief Financial officer and Whole-time Director of the
Company.

Mr. Ishaan Bector is the Whole-time Director of the Company.
Mrs Rajni Bector is the non-executive director on the Board of the Company.

Mr. Nem Chand Jain (DIN 02894923) and Mr. Subhash Agarwal (DIN 02782473) are
Independent directors on the Board of the Company in compliance with provision of
sub section 4 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of directors) Rules 2014.

Mr. Tarun Khanna and Mr. Rahul Goswami are the Nominee Directors on the Board
of the Company.

Mr. Dharamvir Bector (Din no. 00108654) ceased as director of the Company w.e.f
26.12.2017 due to his unfortunate death.

Mrs. Rajni Bector and Mr. Ishaan Bector Directors of the Company shall retire by
rotation at Annual General Meeting of the Company pursuant to the provisions of -
Articles of Association of the company, and being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment.

9. Mr. Atul Sud continues to be the Company Secretary of the Company and have been

also appointed as compliance officer post closure of the financial year.
11. Deposits:
(In Rupees

Deposits accepted during the year(including renewed during Nil
the year)
Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as the end of the Nil
year
Defauit in repayment of deposits or payment of interest Nil

thereon during the year and if so number of such cases and
the total amount involved

(i) at the beginning of the year;

(i) maximum during the year

(iii) at the end of the year

Deposits which are not in compliance with requirement of Nil
chapter V of the Companies Act 2013

12. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo:
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13.

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and_ foreign exchange
earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith as Annexure
-A

Corporate Social Responsibility:

As on the close of the financial year 2018, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board comprised of one Executive Non-Independent Director, namely,
Mr. Anoop Bector (Managing Director) as Chairman and two Independent Directors,
namely Mr. Nem Chand Jain and Mr. Subhash Agarwal.

The Committee’s prime responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social
responsibilities by way of formulating and monitoring implementation of the framework of
corporate social responsibility policy.

The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee met 4 times during the year i.e., on 11.05.2017, 14.07.2017, 10.11.2017
and 05.03.2018 and recommended to the board a list of activities relating to cleanliness,
Education and promoting health care, poverty and malnutrition which has been stipulated
in schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 and to spend at least two percent of the
average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial
years.

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three Financial Years.

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years is Rs.442.71/- Mn.
(Rupees Four hundred and forty two Millions Seven Lakh ten thousand only) calculated
according to provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act 2013

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as specified above)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure is Rs.8.85/- Mn.(Rupees Eight Millions Eight Lakh Fifty
Thousand Only).

Details of CSR Spent during the Financial Year.

During the year under review, the company has spent Rs. 1.53 Millions on the
beautification of the chowk in front of RakhBagh and Rs.1.27 Millions on donating Washing
Machines in Civil Hospital. The Company was not able to spend the full amount of two
percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years as recommended under
the CSR Rule. CSR Committee met Four times during the period under review and made
a policy to provide scholarship to poor students and for the eradication of poverty for
eligible persons. However, the company could not implement the policy due to non-
availability of implementing agency, the company is in a better position now to implement
its CSR policy effectively. However, the Company is already paying all its taxes on time
whereby it is contributing to the society.
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14.

156.

16.

17.

Number of meeting of the Board:

During the year 2017-18, the Board of Directors met seven times on 11.05.2017,
30.06.2017, 14.07.2017, 05.09.2017, 20.11.2017, 05.03.2018 and 16.03.2018.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(C)of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 315t March, 2018,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(i) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consnstently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2018 and of the profit and
loss of the company for that period;

(iif) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent directors furnished a declaration that they meet the criteria of
Independence as provided in sub section 6 of the section 149 of the Companies Act 2013
at Board meeting held on 11* day of May 2017.

Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other
matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178;

The Board of directors has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board consisting of Mr. Nem Chand Jain (Independent Director) as Chairman, Mr.
Subhash Agarwal (Independent Director) as Member and Mr. Tarun Khanna (Nominee
Director)- Member, in terms of 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 6 of the
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules 2014. The Commlttee does directors
Performance evaluation.

The Company considers human resources as its invaluable assets. Policy on nomination
and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees
has been formulated in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to pay
equitable remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and employees of the Company and to
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18.

19.

harmonise the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company
objective and purpose of the policy

The objectives and purpose of this policy are:

a. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive
attributes and independence for appointment of a Director (Executive and Non-
Executive) and recommend to the Board policies relating to the remuneration of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

b. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of all the Directors on the

Board;

To devise a policy on Board diversity; and

To lay out remuneration principles for employees linked to their effort, performance

and achievement relating to the Company’s Goals.

Qo

A Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of a director
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and
approved by the Board of directors attached herewith as Annexure —C.

Board Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company had approved a
Performance Evaluation policy, which was also approved & adopted by the Board of
directors. The key features of this policy have also been included in the report. The policy
provides for evaluation of the Board and the individual directors, including the Chairman
of the Board and Independent Directors.

Subsequent to the year under review, the evaluation for the period 2017-18, was
completed as per the policy adopted in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act. The Board's assessment was discussed with the full Board evaluating, amongst other
things, the full and common understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the Board,
contribution towards development of the strategy and ensuring robust and effective risk
management, understanding of the operational programmes being managed by the
Company, receipt of regular inputs, receipt of reports by the Board on financial matters,
budgets, operations and services, timely receipt of information with supporting papers,
regular monitoring and evaluation of progress towards strategic goals and operational
performance, number of board meetings, Committee structures and functioning etc.

The members concluded that the Board was operating in an effective and constructive
manner.

Particulars of Employee:

There are two employees of the Company who have received remuneration exceeding
the limit as stated in rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 i.e., employees who have received remuneration in

excess of Rs. Eight Lacs and Fifty Thousand per month or Rs. One Crore Two Lacs per
annum.
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Name  of | Age | Qualification | Experien | Nature of Designati | Remuneratio | Date of Previous
the ce employme | on n for the year | Appointment | Employment
employee (inyrs.) |nt (Rs.) as director
Mr. Anoop| 56 | B.Com 29 Permanent | Managing | 2,64,60,000 | 19.09.1995 He was
Bector Director appointed as
Managing
Director in
Cremica Agro
Foods Ltd on
06.09.1989
and has a rich
experience in
the family
business  of
Food
processing.
Mr. Ishaan | 29 | Bachelor's 7 Permanent | Whole- 1,25,90,000 | 15.02.2016 | NIL
Bector degree in time
Arts from Director
Michigan
State
University

20.

21.

22.

23.

Extract of the annual return in form MGT-9:

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014 is attached with this report as Annexure —
G

Secretarial Audit Report:

M/s. Anuj Bansal & Associates, Company Secretaries Jalandhar has been appointed to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company pursuant to section 204 of the Companies Act
2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014. A report submitted by them is attached herewith as Annexure —F.
There was no qualification, reservation or adverse remark in the Report of the Secretarial
Auditor.

Related Party Transactions:

Details of related party transactions in Form AOC-2 pursuant to section 134 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014
attached herewith as Annexure —E. Further the Complete set of related party transactions
are also mentioned in the Note No. 470f the Notes to Financial Statements.

Share Capital and provision of money by Company for purchase of its own shares
by trustees or employees for the benefit of employees:

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights, sweat shares,
employee stock options and made any provision of money for purchase of its own shares
by trustees or employees for the benefit of employees.
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25,

26.

27.

28.

Audit Committee and Vigil Mechanism

As required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors have already
constituted Audit committee, which as of the close of the financial year under review
comprised of Mr. Nem Chand Jain, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Anoop Bector,
Managing Director as Member and Mr. Subhash Agarwal, Independent Director as
Member.

The committee held four meetings during the year under review.

The Board of directors established a vigil mechanism to redress the genuine
concerns/grievances of the employee and directors of the Company. Mr. Joginder Singh,
Factory Manager has been designated to hear the grievances of the employees and
directors of the Company; however offences of serious nature may be brought to the
attention of the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company who shall after hearing
the concerned person award appropriate punishment to the offender.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has a Risk Management Policy with an objective to formalize the process
of identification of potential risk and adopt appropriate risk mitigation measures through a
risk management structure. The Risk Management Policy is a step taken by the Company
towards strengthening the existing controls. The Business of the Company solely depends
upon the agricultural produce which is highly seasonal and this is a major element of risk
which may threaten the existence of the Company.

Disclosure regarding Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights

The company under the provision of Section 43 read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has not issued any equity shares with
differential rights.

Disclosure regarding issue of Sweat Equity Shares

The company under the provision Section 54 read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has not issued any sweat equity shares.

Disclosure regarding issue of Employee Stock Options
There is no issue of employee stock option during the year.

The Board of directors, shall, inter alia, disclose in the Directors’ Report for the year, the

details as provided in rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014,

Particulars Details

Options granted 141,742 as on July 10, 2018
Date Number of Grants
30" June, 2017 70871
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14 July, 2017 70871
(increased due to bonus
issue in the ratio of 1:1)
Total 141742
The Pricing Formula As per Black Scholes Method
Exercise Price (as of the date of | Rs. 174.62
grant of options)
Vesting Period Employees Stock Option Plan- 2017 (Grant 1):

2 years and 9 months service from grant date

Vesting Date No. of Shares
1t July, 2018 42952
13t April, 2019 21472
1st April, 2020 21478
Total 85902

Employees Stock Option Plan- 2017 (Grant 2):

3 years and 9 months service from grant date:

Vesting Date No. of Shares
18t April, 2019 18606
1st April, 2020 18628
1t April, 2021 18606
Total 55840

Total Options vested (excluding 42,952

forfeited/ lapsed/ cancelled/ and

including excised options) till 10t

July, 2018

Options NIL

forfeited/lapsed/cancelled till 10t

July, 2018

Options exercised till 10% July, NIL

2018

Total number of shares arising
out of exercise of options as on
10* July, 2018

Existing Equity Shares: 57,267,622
Add: Options granted: 141,742
Total No. of shares 57,409,364

Variations in terms of options

No Variation till date

Money realized by exercise of NIL

options

Total number of options in force | 141,742

(including vested options,

excluding exercised options) as

on July 10, 2018

Employee wise details of options

granted to;- Name of Options

Employee | Granted | Exercised Outstanding |
(|) key manageria| Mr. 17,180 - 17,180

personnel; Parveen
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28.

29.

30.

Kumar
Goel
ii any other employee who :
(i) y- P oY Name of Options
receives a grant of | _
. . Employee Granted | Exercised Outstanding
options in any one year Nr Mano 26634 |- 58 634
of option amounting to V;} m:no; ’ '
five percent or more of Mr. Vishal | 22,008 |- 22,908
options granted during Malik
that year. Mr. 17,180 |- 17,180
Parveen
Kumar
Goel
Mr. Neeraj | 17,180 | - 17,180
Agarwal
(iii)  identified employees NIL

who were granted option,
during any one year,
equal to or exceeding
one percent of the issued
capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the
company at the time of
grant;

Voluntary Revision of Financial Statements or Board’s Report

The Company is complying with the provisions of Section 129 or 134 of Companies Act,
2013, so there was no voluntary revision done by the company during financial year2017-
18.

Statement in Respect of Adequacy of Internal Financial Control with Reference to
the Financial Statements

Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(q) read with Rule 8(5) (viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, and ICAI guidance note on adequacy on internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements ~ it is stated that there is adequate internal control system in the
Company. The Company has an effective and reliable internal control system
commensurate with the size of its operations. The internal control system provides for
well-documented policies and procedures that are aligned with global standards and
processes.

Receipt of any commission by MD/WTD from a Company or for receipt of commission

/ remuneration from it Holding or subsidiary

Neither the Company nor its Holding or Subsidiary Company had paid any Commission
to the Directors of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18.
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

38.

Statement Indicating the Manner in which Formal Annual Evaluation has been made
by the Board of its own Performance, its Directors, and that of its Committees

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out the
annual performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, its Committees, the Chairman
and the Directors. A structured questionnaire was circulated to the Board Members in this
connection. The feed back from the Directors was summarized and ideas for further
improving effectiveness of the Board processes, etc. were discussed.

Fraud Reporting
There was no fraud committed by company during the year.
Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments (LGSI) under Section 186.

The Company has not given any loans, or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees, or
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Act.

Internal Auditors and Internal financial control

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Grand Thornton india
LLP, Gurgaon, India as Internal Auditors for financial year 2017-18 to conduct internal
audit and internal financial controls audit for the financial year 2017-2018.

!
The Company has an Internal Audit Department to test the adequacy and effectiveness
of Internal Control Systems laid down by the management and to suggest improvement in
the systems. Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the management and are reviewed
by the Audit Committee of the Board. During the year under review, Company’s Internal
Controls were tested by M/s Genikon Services Pvt. Ltd. and no reportable weakness in
the system was observed.

Cost Auditors

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
appointment of Cost Auditor is not applicable to our company.

Secretarial Standards
The Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India as amended / replaced from time to time have been complied with by

the Company during the financial year under review.
Acknowledgments:
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Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and sincere
gratitude to all associates for their valuable support and look forward to their continued co-
operation in the years to come. Your Directors acknowledge the support and co-operation
received from the employees and all those who have helped in the day to day
management.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bector’s Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

(DIN:02782473)

Place: Gurgaon ADDRESS: HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi
Date: 10.07.2018 Road, Civil Lines
Ludhiana 141001 PB IN
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Annexure —-A

Particulars of energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo required under
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 are provided below

The Company operates in a safe and environmentally responsible manner for the long- term benefit of ail stake holders.
The Company is committed to take effective measures to conserve energy and drive energy efficiency in operations.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i) Following steps have been taken for conservation of energy.

a) Replacement of florescent lamps with LED Lights in all plants/ units has been initiated
b) In-house training for energy conservation to the plant members and employees

¢) Air pressure reduction in plants to reduce compressed air energy cost.

d) Installations of Wind ventilators on sheds of different units.

(i) Following steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy.
The Company is exploring the option of installing solar panels for generation of electricity at all plant locations

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The company is motivated to continuously work for the process and technology development on need
basis. The team undertakes specific time — bound programmes to improve technology which are tried on
pilot scale / lab to achieve desired results and then up scaled at the manufacturing level. The Team works
in close co-ordination with other outside agencies to ensure smooth transfer of technology. Appropriate
documents are created for quality control and food safety.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(In Million)
Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017
Total Foreign Exchange Received (F.O.B. Value of Export) 1927.96 1536.04
Total Foreign Exchange used 455.54 95.55

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
‘For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road, Civil Lines.
Date: 10.07.2018 Ludhiana 141001 PB IN
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Annexure -B
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY'S CSR POLICY, INCLUDING OVERVIEW OF
PROJECTS OR PROGRAMS PROPOSED TO BE UNDERTAKEN AND A REFERENCE TO
THE WEB-LINK TO THE CSR POLICY AND PROJECTS OR PROGRAMS

Our philosophy is to undertake socially useful programmes for welfare and sustainable
development of the Community at large. Our initiatives include those aimed to promoting health
care including preventive health care for benefits of different segments of society and in particular
in taking care of deprived, underprivileged persons having health constrains.

Driving with these initiatives the CSR Committee of the Board has recommended to the board a
list of activities relating to promoting health care, poverty and malnutrition which has been
stipulated in schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013 and to spend at least two percent of the
average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years.

2. COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE.

Mr. Anoop Bector (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. Subhash Agarwal (Independent Director) and

Mr. Nem Chand Jain (Independent Director)

3. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS.

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years Rs. 442.71/- Mn. (Rupees Four
hundred and forty two Millions seven lakh ten thousand only) calculated according to provisions
of section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (TWO PER CENT OF THE AMOUNT AS IN ITEM 3

ABOVE)
Prescribed CSR Expenditure is Rs. 8.85/- Mn.(Rupees Eight Millions eight lakh fifty thousand
Only).
) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr. | CSR Project or | Sector in which Projects or Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount
No. | activity the Project is programs outlay(bu | on the expenditure spent:
identified. covered. (1)Local area | dget) projects or upto to the Direct or
or other project or | programs reporting through
(2)Specify the | programs | Sub Heads:, period. implementi
State and wise (1)Direct ng agency
district where expenditure
projects or on projects or
programs programs.
were (2)Overheads
undertaken.
1. Beautification | Ensuring 1. Local Area | 4.5 1.54 Millions | 1.54 Millions Direct
of Chowk in Environmental |2. State- Millions
front of Sustainability Punjab,
RakhBagh and Ludhiana
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its
maintenance.
Donation of Promoting 1. Local Area | 1.28 1.28 Millions | 2.82 Millions
Washing health care 2. State- Milions
Machines in including Punjab,
Civil Hospital preventive Ludhiana
heath care and
sanitation

Direct

5. DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

(a)Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 2.82 Millions
(b) Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 6.03 Millions
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

6. IN CASE THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND THE TWO PERCENT OF THE
AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS OR ANY PART
THEREOF, THE COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE THE REASONS FOR NOT SPENDING THE
AMOUNT IN ITS BOARD REPORT

During the year under review, the company has spent Rs. 1.53 Millions on the beautification of
the chowk in front of Rakh Bagh. The total cost of the project of beautification of the chowk is
about 45 Lakhs. The project is under process. The remaining amount has been spent on the
chowk in the current financial year. An amount of Rs. 37.22 Lakhs has already been spent on the
project till 31.03.2018. The Company was not able to spend the full amount of two percent of the
average net profit of the last three financial years as recommended under the CSR Rule. CSR
Committee met 4 times during the period under review and made a policy to provide scholarship
to poor students and for the eradication of poverty for eligible persons. However the company
could not implement the policy as it was not able to demarcate the associations and the areas
where it should spend the money and due to Non Availability of Suitable fmplementing Agency,
the company is in a better position now to implement its CSR policy effectively.

7. A RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE CSR COMMITTEE THAT THE
IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING OF CSR POLICY, IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CSR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICY OF THE COMPANY. ‘

The CSR Committee confirms that implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance

with CSR policy of the Company framed pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001 PB IN

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10.07.2018
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Annexure -C

Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of a director recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and approved by the Board of directors.
Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board has already constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” of the Board
on March 19% 2015. This is in line with the requirements under the New Act. The Board has
authority to reconstitute this Committee from time to time.

Policy for appointment including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and
independence of a director of Director, KMPs and Senior Management

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or senior management level and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment. A person to be appointed as Director, KMP or senior
management level should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the
concerned position. A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation
for integrity, deep expertise and insights in sectors / areas relevant to MBFSL, ability to contribute
to MBFSL's growth. Independence of directors are decided on the basis of definition of
independent director contained in sub section 6 of section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, KMPs and other employees

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Directors will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration and commission to
be paid to the Managing Director shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, and the’ rules made thereunder. Increments to the existing remuneration /
compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be
within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managing Director. Where any
insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director and any other employees
for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be
treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person
is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the
remuneration. The remuneration and reward structure for employees depends upon their
qualification and experience. The Committee would determine the remuneration of the Directors
and formulate guidelines for remuneration payable to the employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Date: 10.07.2018 Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001 PB IN
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ANNEXURE-D
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first provision to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part

“A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Subsidary 1 (In Million)
Si. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary Bakebest Foods Private Limited
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Same as of Holding Company
different from the holding company’s reporting i.e. 31.03.2018
period
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Since the Company is Indian
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case | Company, this clause is not
of foreign subsidiaries applicable
4 Share capital 181.50
5 Reserves & surplus 90.10
6. Total assets 299.14
7. Total Liabilities 27.54
8 Investments Nil
9. Turnover 413.13 -
10. Profit before taxation 76.10
11. Provision for taxation 18.05
12. Profit after taxation 58.05
13. Proposed Dividend Nil
14. % of shareholding 100%
Subsidary2 (In Million)
Sl. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary Mrs Bector’s English Oven
Limited
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Same as of Holding Company
different from the holding company’s reporting i.e 31.03.2018
period
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Since the Company is Indian
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of | Company, this clause is not
foreign subsidiaries applicable
4, Share capital 0.50
5. Reserves & surplus (0.01)
6. Total assets 0.51
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7. Total Liabilities 0.02
8. Investments Nil
9. Turnover Nil
10. Profit before taxation 0.01
11, Provision for taxation 0.00
12. Profit after taxation 0.01
13. Proposed Dividend Nil
14. % of shareholding 100

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to

Associate Companies and Joint Ventures (In Million)

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Associate- Cremica Agro Foods

Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2018
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end
No. 673506
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture | 6735060
Extend of Holding% 44.95

3. Description of how there is significant
influence

Mrs.Bectors Food specialities
Limited controls atleast 20% of
total voting power of Cremica
Agro Foods Limited

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is
not consolidated

Controlling Right is not there

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as 38.82 million
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation 0.17 million

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road, Civil Lines.
Ludhiana 141001 PB IN

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10.07.2018
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Annexure-E

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Ruies, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

(A) Related Party Transactions with Bakebest Foods Private Limited

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Bakebest Foods Private Limited hereinafter referred
as BBFPL(a private company which is 100% wholly
owned subsidiary of the company)

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

a) Sale of Raw material, Finished Goods and other
material relating to food manufacturing

b) Purchase of, Raw material, Finished Goods and
other material relating to food manufacturing.

C) Rent paid for taking portion of premises for
purpose of Go down

d) Rent received by giving office on rent

e) To grant Loan

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Continuous Basis

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm'’s length basis having value (in Rs)as follows

Sale to Raw Materials, | Upto Rs 5
BBFPL finished goods | million

and Fixed

Assets for food

production
Purchase Raw Materials Upto Rs 5
from BBFPL | and finished million

goods and

other material

relating to food

manufacturing
Rent Paid to | Godown Rs0.06 million
BBFPL
Rent Office Rs0.06 million
Received
from BBFPL

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions

BBFPL is a company which deals in Breads and Buns
Manufacturing and supply products to giants like
Mcdonalds.

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

28.11.2016
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(C) Related Party Transactions with Ishaan Bector

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Ishaan Bector, Relative (son) of Mr. Anoop Bector,
Managing Director

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Unsecured Loan Received

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm’s length basis having value paid to him (in
Rs)as follows

Unsecured Appointed as | Rs. 12.13
Loan Repaid | Whole time Million
Interest paid | Director Rs. 0.82
on Unsecured Million
Loan

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

Mr. Ishaan Bector is Well- Qualified young
professional, has done his MBA from Top Business
School of Country and is capable of Handling
bakery business of company

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

28.11.2016

(D) Related Party Transactions with Anoop Bector

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Availing of rental services and Unsecured Loan
from Mr. AnoopBector property. Mr. AnoopBector is
managing director of the company

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental Services
Unsecured Loan Received .

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm’s length basis having value upto (in Rs)as
follows

Property at (Interest as | Rs.4.20

rent, rent paid Mr. million

to Mr. AnoopBector

AnoopBector is Managing

Borrow Money Director Rs. 30.70
million

Unsecured Rs. 27.73

Loan Repaid million

Interest paid Rs. 0.49
million

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

The property is situated in posh colony and is
used for residence of directors
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(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

28.11.2016

(E) Related Party Transactions with Anoop Bector, HUF

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Anoop Bector HUF , (Substantial Interest as karta)
of Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing director

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental services

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm’s length basis having value paid to him (in
Rs) as follows

Property at (Substantial Rs 3 Million
rent, rent Interest as ‘
paid to Mr. karta) of Mr,
Anoop Bector | AnoopBector,

Managing

director

(e) Date(s) of approval by the board

28.11.2016

(F) Related Party Transactions with Dharamvir Bector

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Availing of rental services from Mr. Dharamvir
Bector. Mr. Dharamvir Bector is Chairman and Non-
Executive director of the company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

a) Rental Services
b) Borrow money to meet working capital
requirements of the Company

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm'’s length basis having value (in Rs)as follows

Property at | Mr. Dharamvir | Rs 0.09 Million
rent, rent Bector is
paid Chairman and
Interest Non- Executive | Rs. 0.02 Million
paid director of the
company
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | Property at GT Road,
arrangements or transactions In order to meet the working capital requirements
of the Company
(f) Date(s) of approval by the board 28.11.2016

(G) Related Party Transactions with Mrs. Rajni Bector, Director
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(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

RajniBector, Director and Relative (spouse) of Mr.
Dharamvir Bector, Chairman

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Borrow Money from RajniBector

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract — One Year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm’s length basis having value actually received
(in Rs)as follows

Unsecured Director and Rs. 1.63

Loan Repaid Relative Million

Interest Paid | (spouse) of Rs. 0.07
Managing Million
Director

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

In order to meet the working capital requirements
of the Company

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

28.11.2016

(J3) Related Party Transactions with MrsBector's English Oven Limited

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

MrsBector's English Oven Limited(a Limited
company in which directors hold more than 2%
shares)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental services

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm’s length basis having value received as rent
(in Rs)as follows

Property directors hold | Rs 0.01
given at rent | more than Million
2% shares)

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

The property taken on rent by MrsBector's
English Oven Limitedfor the registered office of
the Company

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

28.11.2016

(J) Related Party Transactions with Cremica Agro Foods Limited

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Cremica Agro Foods Limited (a Limited company
which is an Associate of Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental services
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(c) Duration of the Contract for one year
contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
or transactions including the value, if any arm’s length basis having value received as rent
‘ (in Rs) as follows

Property Associate Rs 0.01
given at rent | of Mrs. Million
Bectors Food
Specialities
Limited
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | The property taken on rent by Cremica Agro
arrangements or transactions Foods Limited for the registered office of the
Company
(f) Date(s) of approval by the board 28.11.2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Date: 10.07.2018 Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001 PB IN

*Please note that besides above the directors have been paid remunerations as per mentioned in MGT-9
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Anuy Bansaw & Associates (S

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ref. NO. ..o . Dated ...

Ref:ABA/MBFSL/SAR/2018 Date: 10.07.2018

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial Year Ending 31.3.2018)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Board of Directors

Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited,
Theing Road, Phillaur,

Distt. falandhar-144410

Punjab India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Mrs.Bector Food Specialities Limited, having
registered office at Theing Road, Phillaur, Distt. Jalandhar-144410 Punjab India, Corporate
Identification No. U74899PB1995PLC033417 (hereinafter called the Company).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon, Based on our
verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31.03.2018, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-*
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and supffcti
reporting made hereinafter: :

Office : SCO-61,2nd Floor, Near Hotel Umed GPagd. D6 PIMS Hospital, Chhotti Baradari-2, ]a 2

Tel. : (O)0181-4622464 ; (M) 98140-32331,9814323338
Email - advisors.india@hotmail.com (Official); anujraibansal@gmail.com (Person;l)




1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and their records
maintained by (“The Company”) for the period ended on 31.3.2018 according to the provisions of:

L The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

I.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; 4

. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made
thereunder;

IV.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

V.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company
being the unlisted entity:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; ’

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

g Equity Listing Agreements entered into with BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of
India Limited; and

h. Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements Regulation, 2015.

VI.  As informed to us, the other laws specifically applicable to the Company have been
complied with. In this regard, we have relied on the information/records produced by
the Company during the course of Audit on test check and randomly basis and limited
to that extent only for the following acts:

Food Safety& Standards Act, 2006

The Factories Act, 1948.

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936.

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948.

Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952.
Employers State Insurance Act,1948.

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965.

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.

Electricity Act 2003.

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and rules thereunder.
Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981 and rules thereunder.

VVVVVVVVYVVVVY

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following, wherever
applicable:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
ii) During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions-
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned a};\;{ L8 s
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2. We further report that the Company has, in our opinion, complied with provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to:

a)
b)
<)

d)
e)

f)

g)
h)

k)
f)

Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries
therein;

Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies and the Central Government;

Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of
Companies; _

Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

The meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by
circulation;

The Annual General Meeting held on 05.09.2017 including the provisions related to
extension of time; '

Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings;
Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the
government authorities, wherever required;

Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement
and reappointment of Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time
Directors;

Payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time
Directors,

Appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors;

Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate
certificates of shares;

m) Declaration and payment of dividends;

n)

0)
P)
Q)

1)
5)
)

Transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund and uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the
websites of the Company and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, if any;

Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;
Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others;

Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and loss as
prescribed under Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed
in Schedule VI to the Act;

Directors’ report;

Related Party Transactions.

Contracts, common seal, regigtered office and publication of name of the Company; and
Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.
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3. We further report that:

a.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at reasonable gap in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act;
and ' :

There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year
under review under the Companies Act, Depositories Act, and any other Act against/on
the Company, its Directors and Officers.

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility
of appointment, their being Independent and compliance with the Code of Business
Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,
1956 and the Rules made under that Act, with regard to maintenance of minimum public
shareholding, being the Unlisted Public Company.

5. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Bye laws
framed thereunder by the Depositories with regard to dematerialization /rematerialisation of

securities and reconciliation of records of dematerialized securities with all securities issued by the
Company.

6. We further report that:

a. the Company is not required to comply (being the Unlisted Public Company) with the
requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into with BSE Limited, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited;

b. the Company is not required to comply (being the Unlisted Public Company) with the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 including the provisions with regard to disclosures and
maintenance of records required under the said Regulations;

c. the Company is not required to comply (being the Unlisted Public Company) with the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 including the provisions with regard to disclosures and maintenance of
records required under the said Regulations;

7. The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and
Regulations made under that Act to the extent applicable. .
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8. We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of

the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

For Anuj Bansal & Associates
Practicing Company Segretaries

Anuj Rai Bansaﬁ‘

B.Com, FCS, LLB
M.No. 5166
C.P.No. 3667

Date: 10t Day of July, 2018.
Place: Jalandhar,

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
Forms an integral part of this report.
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To

‘Annexure A’
{Forming Integral Part of Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ending 31.3.2018)

The Members,

Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited,
Theing Road, Phillaur,

Distt. Jalandhar-144410

Punjab India

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We
believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

accounts of the Company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. which forms the
integral part to express our opinion in Form MR-3.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedure on test basis as the Secretarial Auditors.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Anuj Bansal & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

!
:
‘f.
Anuj Rai Bansa '

B.Com, FCS, LLB 5
M.No. 5166

C.P.No. 3667

Date: 10t Day of July, 2018.
Place: Jalandhar.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RET

ANNEXURE-G

FORM MGT-9

URN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31:tMARCH,

2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i. | CIN
U74899PB1995PLC033417
ii. | Registration Date
15/09/1995
iii. | Name of the Company
MRS.BECTORS FOOD SPECIALTIES
LIMITED
iv. | Category/Sub-Category of the Company
Company limited by shares / Indian
non- Government company
v. | Address of the Registered office and contact Theing Road, Phillaur, Distt. Jalandhar-
details 144410, Punjab, India
Contact No. (+91-1826)225418, 222826
Fax No. (+91-1826)222915
vi. | Whether Listed Company No
vii. | Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar Skyline Financial . services
and Transfer Agent, if any Private Limited,
Address: - D-153 A] Ist Floor |
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - I
| New Delhi-110  020.
Tel.: 011 26812682,83
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-
Sr.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products/ services Product/ Service Company
1, Manufacture of Bakery 1071 100%
Products which includes
Biscuits, Breads etc.
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S Name and CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate | % of App[lcable
NO | address of share | section
company held _
1. Bakebest Foods | U15412PB2009PTC033 | Subsidary 100 2(87)(ii)
Private Ltd, 442
Theing Road,
Phillaur —
2. Mrs. Bectors U15412PB2013PLC0O37 | Subsidary 100 2(87)(ii)
English oven 958
Limited, Theing
Road, Phillaur
3. Cremica Agro L15146PB1989PLC0O09 | Associate 44.94 | 2(6)
Foods Limited, 676
B-XXXIII
Jalandhar Bye
pass, Ludhiana
1v. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding
Category of - No.of Shares held at the beginning of the year No.of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
Shareholders : duringtheyeig
Demat Physical Total Demat Physical . Total % of :
Lel , lrol i
Shares
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 11424337 | Nil 11424337 1§ 39,90 | 22848674 | Nil 22848674 | 39.90 Nil
b) Central Govt Nil .. Nit Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil NN
C) State Govt (s) Nil - Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil Nil CoNE N
d) Bodies Corp Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil SNt Nl
@) Banks/ FI Nil Nil Nil . Nil Nil Nil Nil NI NI i
if) Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
11424337 Nil 11424337 39.90 | 22848674 : Nil | 22848674 ; 39.90 Nil
Sub-total(A)(1):-
2) Foreign
g) NRIs-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
h) Other-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil il il Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
j) Banks / FI Nil Nil - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil *Nil Nil
k) Any Other.... Nil ¢ Nil ¢ Nil Nil :Nil Nil i Nl Nl Nit
Nil . Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total(A)(2):-
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Banks / FI NIl Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
¢) Central Govt Nl il Nit Nil Nit Nil O Nil Nil Nil
d) StateGovi(s) | Nil LNl Nil NN Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Venture Capital Funds Nl Nil Nil - Nl Nil - Nil Nil Nil _Nil
f). Insurance Companies Nil ¢ Nil : Nit i Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit ¢ Nil



| 13385488

g) Flls - Nil 13385488 | 46.75 | 26770976 | Nil 26770976 | 46.75  Nil
h) Foreign Venture Capital Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
i Funds ) '
gf»i,) Others (specify) : Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil Nl
- 13385488 Nil 13385488 46.75 26770976 Nil 26770976 46.75  Nil
:Sub-total(B)(1)
:2. Non Institutions
:a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nl : Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Individuals
(i) Individual shareholders i
¢ holding nominal share Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil NIL
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh
(i) Individual shareholders ; :
: holding nominal share 3823986 Nil 3823986 13.35 7647972 Nil 7647972 13.35 Nil
: capital in excess of Rs 1
- lakh
c) Others(Specify) Nil : Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total(B)(2)
: 3823986 Nil 3823986 13.35 7647972 Nit 7647972 13.35 Nil
TotalPublicShareholding :
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) | 17209474 Nil 17209474 | 60.10 | 34418948 | Nil 34418948 | 60.10  Nil
C. Shares held by Custodian  Nil Nl Nl TN Nil O il Nil Nil Nl
for GDRs &ADRs j ; ; : o
Grand Total | 28633811 Nil { 28633811 100.00 @ 57267622 Nil ‘ 57267622  100.00
. (A+B+C) : ¢ :
ii.Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. : Shareholding at the beginning of the
No Shareholder’s Name year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of % of total | % of No. of % of total % of Shares | % change
Shares Shares of Shares Shares Shares of the | Pledged / in share
the Pledged/ company encumbered | holding
company encumber- to total during the
red to total shares year
shares
1 Anoop Bector 11424337 39.90 Nil 22848674 39.90 Nil Nil
Total 11424337 39.90 Nil 22848674 39.90 Nil Nil

ili.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

. ho | Shareholder Name Shareholding at the Change in Shareholding Cumulative Shareholdin
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of Date No. of shares Reason No. of % of tota
shares total Increase/(Decrease) shares shares of
shares of the
the company
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iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

. no | Shareholder Name | Shareholding at the Change in Shareholding Cumulative
beginning of the Shareholding durin:
year the year
No. of % of Date No. of shares Reason No. of % of to
shares total Increase/(Decrease) shares shares (
shares the
of the compan
company
Anoop Bector 11424337 39.90 14.07.2017 11424337 Bonus Issue
at the end of year 11424337 22848674 39.90

V. INDEBTEDNESS

(In Million)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment
2’ . Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total
-~ excluding Loans Indebtedness
- deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 556.7 34.64 Nil 591.34
ii) Interest due but not Nil Nil Nil Nil
paid 3.00 Nil Nil 3.00
i) Interest accrued but
not due
- Total (i+ii+iii) 559.70 34.64 < Nil '594.34
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
- Addition 759.68 Nil Nil 759.68
- Reduction Nil 9.52 Nil 9.52
Net Change 759.68 - (9.52) - Nil - 750.16
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1315.71 25.12 Nil 1340.83
i) Interest due but not Nil Nil Nil Nil
‘paid iii) Interest accrued 3.67 Nil Nil 3.67
but not due ’
Total (i+ii+iii) 1319.38 25.12 Nil 1344.50

55




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
(In Million)

Particulars of Total
No. Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Amount
Anoop Bector - Parveen Kumar Ishaan Bector
; ; i Goel
1. | Gross salary
(@) Salary as per 26.46 4.92 12.59 43,97
- provisions contained in ;
section17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
; ; Nil Nil Nil Nil
i (b) Value of perquisites u/s
§ % 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
Nil
§ - (c) Profits in lieu of salary Nil Nil Nil
: - under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option Nl Nil Nil Nil
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nit Nil Nil
4, | Commission Nil Nil Nil Nl
- as% of profit '
- Others, specify...
5. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
6. Total(A) 26.46 4,92 12.59 43.97
B. Remuneration to other Directors:
1. Independent Directors (In Million)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration ; Total
No. Name of Director Amount

Nem Chand Jain

Subhash Agarwal
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. Rajni Bector

i Other Non-Executive Directors

*Fee for attending board Nil Nil

. committee meetings .
*Commission Nil - Nil
-Others, (Consultancy Fees) Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil
Total (B) = (1+2) 0.18
Total Managerial Remuneration , 44.15
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD
(In Million)
sl Particulars of Remuneration Key Managérial Personnel
No. . :
Company Secretary Total ﬁ
Atul Sud ?
1, Gross Salary
i (a) Salary as per provisions 0.67 0.67
contained in section17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites ufs Nil Nil
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 ' |
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil §
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 ' |
2. Stock Option o Nil Nil !
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4. - Commission as % of profit Nil Nil
- others, specify... S
5. Others, please specify Nil o NIl
6. Total 0.67 0.67 ?



VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOFFENCES:

Type Section.of | Brief Details of Penalty/ . | Authority[RD Appeal
the description | Punishment/( CLT/Court] | made. If
companies ounding fees ir : any(give
Act details)

A.Company

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding | . e

B.Directors -

Penalty o / Y]/ [/ [ %

' Punishment i ) ) O I T

Compounding

C.OtherOfficersin Default

Penalty

Punishment

. _Compounding

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10.07.2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001 PB IN
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BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower-B Telephone: +91 124 718 1000
DLF Cyber City, Phase - i Fax: + 91124 2358613
Gurugram - 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss. the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows .for the
year then ended, and summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone nd
AS linancial statements are tree from material misstatement.

o

Ragisterad Office:

B SR &Co. (apar i fiern with Ragy ¥ S5th Floor, Lodha Excelus

No. BA61223} converted into B S R & Co. LLP Apoiio Mills Compouny

(2 Limited Liabiity Partnership with LLP Registeation N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi
No. AAB-8181] with effect from October 13, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanges. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going contern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss. the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 201 8 t&kcn on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the interal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”, and

With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

Place: Gurugram

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements- Refer Note 42(a) to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However amounts as
appearing in the audited Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the period ended 31 March
2017 have been disclosed. Refer Note 53 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountgnts

Date: 10 July 2018 Membership No. 094549
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Mrs. Bectors Food

Specialities Limited for on the standalone Ind AS financial statemen

we report that:

ts the year ended 31 March 2018,

(i) (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records

showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets).

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme of

physical verification of its fixed assets by which all the fixed assets are
accordance with the programme,

periodicity of physical verificatio
nature of its assets. As informed t

(c) According to information and ex
records of the Company,

the title deed of the immova

Company except for the following:-

verified every year. In

all fixed asset were verified during the vear. In our opinion. the
n is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the
0 us, no discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

planations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
ble properties are held in the name of the

'S.No Type of Location of Gross block of Net block of
Immovable Immovable propertyason 31 property as on 31
property Property Mareh 2018 March 2018
(Rs. in millions) (Rs. in millions)
1 Freehold land Tahliwal, Himachal 3.07 3.07
Pradesh.
2 Building Noida, Uttar Pradesh 4.82 4.52

(i) According to information and ex
been physically verified by the
purchase and sales of material, all material is substan
issuance of this report. In our opinion, the frequency
informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on verific
records were not material.

(iif)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

management during

planations given to us, the inventories, except goods in transit, have
the year. For goods in transit in respect of
tially received or delivered until the date of
of such verification is reasonable. Further, as

ation between the physical stocks and the book

had granted loan to a

company covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act. 2013 which has
been fully repaid during the year. In respect of the loan:

) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loan. in our
to the Company’s interest.

opinion, prima facie. were not prejudicial

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
interest was compounded annually and no repayment schedule was
payable on demand. Accordingly paragraph 3(iii) (b) of the Order is not

records of the Company.,
stipulated as the foan was re
applicable to the Company in respect of repayment of interest

-

bl

and principal amount.
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(iv)

)

(vi)

¢) There is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of the loan granted to the party

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of
the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public in accordance with the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the rules framed there under.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act for any goods sold or services
rendered by the company. Accordingly para 3 (vi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, goods and
service tax (GST), service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, 1o the extent applicable have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities, though there have been slight delays in deposit of income-tax. value added tax, provident
fund and the employee state insurance in few cases though not serious.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service
tax (GST), duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, to
the extent applicable were in arrears as on 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales tax,

service tax, duty of excise, duty of customs, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Statute Nature of Amount | Period to which | Forum where dispute
Dues disputed* | amount relates is pending
(Rs. in
millions)

Punjab Value Added | Sales tax 2.37 | 2008-09 Deputy Excise and

Tax Act, 2005 | Taxation
Commissioner,
Ludhiana

Punjab Value Added | Sales tax 3.75 | 2009-10 Deputy Excise and

Tax Act. 2005 Taxation Commissioner,
Ludhiana

Punjab Tax on Entry | Entry tax 1.69 ; 2011-12 ‘Punjab and Haryana

of Goods into Local High Court.

Area Act, 2000 Chandigarh
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii1)

Name of the Statute Nature of Amount | Period to which | Forum where dispute
Dues disputed* | amount relates is pending
(Rs. in
millions)
Himachal Pradesh Entry tax 0.54 | 2010-11 High Court of
Tax on Entry of 7.57 | 2011-12 Himachal Pradesh
Goods into local area 8.73 | 2012-13
Act, 2010 7.44 | 2013-14
‘ 15.15 | 2014-15
11.70 | 2015-16
7.10 | 2016-17
£.02 12017-18
Himachal Pradesh Sales tax 3.01 | 2005-06 Vat Tribunal of
Value Added Tax Himachal Pradesh
Act, 2005
Uttar Pradesh Value | Sales tax 1.91 1 2013-14 Deputy Excise and
Added Tax Act, 2008 Taxation
Commissioner,
Gautam Budh Nagar
Income Tax Act,1961 | Income Tax 5.73 | 2007-08 (A.Y) Income Tax Appellate

0.00 [ 2010-11 (A.Y.) | Tribunal, Chandigarh
0.13 | 2011-12(A.Y.)
1.83 12013-14 (A.Y))

Income Tax Act,1961 | Income Tax 0.18 | 2015-16 (A.Y.) ‘| Commissioner of

Income Tax (Appeals),
.Ludhiana

*amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty, wherever indicated in order.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to its bankers or to any
financial institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to any debenture holder.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (includi ng debt instrument) and the term loans were
applied for the purposes for which those were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

L
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly para 3 (xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BSR & Co. LLP

Firm Regist . TR 248W/W-100022

Place: Gurugram

Partner
Date: 10 July 2018

Membership No.: 094549
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“Annexure B” referred to in our Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements the year ended 31 March 2018

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute 'of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of'the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial contro! with reference to financial statements is a process designed 10 provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
1o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

| %
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principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements 1o future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartere

01248 W/W-100022

Place: Gurugram '
Date: 10 July 2018 ership No.: 094549
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Mrs, Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2018
(Al amounts are in rupees million, wnless otherwise stated)

Note Asat As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
ASSETS «
Non-current assets -
Property. plant and equipment 3 2,289.14 ©1,897.55 1,481.36
Capital work-in-progress 4 920.79 117.84 193.95
Intangible assets s 17.81 17:43 18:94
Intangible assets under development . 5.35 -
Investments in subsidiaries 6 182.00 182.00 182.00
Investment accounted for using the equity method 7 17.48 17.48 17.48
Financial assets
(i) Loans 8 31.63 32.66 24.15
{ii} Other financial assels 9 9.68 0.24 3.22
Non-current tax assets (net) 10 27.03 25.72 15.77
Other non-current assets 3] 66.15 108.21 86.97
Total non-current assets 3,561.71 2,404.35 2,024.04
Current assets
Inventories 12 344,20 262.74 31421
Financial assets
(i) Investments ’ 13 0.18 48.26 102.70
(1) Irade receivables 14 672.42 565.97 441.31
{iit) Cash and cash-equivalents 15 51.81 122.74 65.68
(iv) Bank balances other than. (iii) above 16 48.06 5890 44.56
{v) Loans 17 ot 437 36.08
{vi) Other financial assets 8 97.34 10041 69.33
Other current assets 19 148.52 62.68 66.27
Total current assets 1,362.33 1,231.07 1,140.14
Total assets 4.92_5..94 3,635.42 3,164.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 20 572.68 286.34 286.34
Other equity 21 1.979.78 1.988.06 1L.770.85
Total equity 2,552.46 227440 2,0587.19
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities .
(i) Borrowings 22 956.93 356.65: 176.25
Provisions 23 30:79 30,63 20.28
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 58.66 54.46 5449
Other non-current liabifities 25 137.48 34.38 35.04
Total non-current liabilities 1,183.86 476.12 286.06




Mprs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Bakance sheet as at 31 March 2018
(48 amounis are in rupees million, unless atherwise stated)

Note As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 26 262.73 165.59 191.33
(ii) Trade payables 27
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - - -
and small enterprises
{b) Total -owstanding dues of creditors other than 375.87 356.47 245.57
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 28 295.65 118.68 132.38
Other current habilities 29 100.67 118.56 128.55
Provisions 30 126.80 112,96 94.25
Current tax habilities {net) 31 26,00 12.64 28.35
Totai current liabilities 1,187.72 884.90 820.93
Total liabilities 2.371.58 1,361.02 1,106.99
Total equity and liabilities 4,924.04 3,635.42 3,164.18
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes forin an integral part of the {inancial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Firm's registration number: 1R1248W/W-100022
MOK o "\// y _J
Isha
Dixecto

>

anaging Director
IN:-00108589 DIN:-02906180

etor Atul Sud
Company Secrelary

ParveeKumar Goel
Executive Direcior and CFO

DIN:- 00007297
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 July 2018 Date: 10 July 2018
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
(A omowns are in rapees million, unless otherwise sined)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Income
Revenue fiom operations. 32 6,333.31 601511
Other income 33 3591 23.53
Totul income 6,569.22 6,038,64
Expenses .
Cost of materials consumed M 357648 3.300.58
Purchase of stock-in-trade 3% 126,39 195:.72
Changes in'mventorics of finished gooeds, stock-in- trade and
work-in-progress 36 {70.38) 23.03
Excise duty ) 33.30 139.68
Employee benefits expense EY) 867.34 768.68
Finance :osxs 3 35,29 38.64
Depreci and isati p 39 244.1) 2041
Othier expenses . 40 1.263,42 {07331
Total expenses 6,096.43 3,670.05
Profit before tax $72.17 36859
Tax expense:
Current 1ax 148.96 11458
Deferred tax 3.29 0.8)
152.25 115.30
Profit for the year (A) 320.52 253.23
— el
Other comprehensive income
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasum:cm of defined benefit plans 2.61 {2.39)
I fax g o of defined benehit plans (0.90) 0.83
Totx! other comprehensive income/ {loss) for the year (B) 1.7 {1.56)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A + B) 322.23 251.67
Earnings per equity share
{nominal value of Rs. 10-(previous year Rs.10)] 41
Basic *5.60 442
Diluted 5359 442
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes Form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of cven date anached
For B ﬁ}ﬁm LLP For and o behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chy tA 1 M tors Foad Specialities Limited
Epmv's g dl f}kgzﬁs\ww.mou A
Raji Y, Anbop Bector l;& Atud Sud
Parn Mbnsaging Direcior Dikeete Cunipany Secretary
Ny ip No.: 004349 DIN:-00108. DIN:-02906 180
Parvegn Komar Gool
Evecutive Direeter ad CHO
DIN:- 00007297
Place: Guragram Place: Gorugram
Date: 10 July 2018 Dare: 10 July 2018




Mry. Becturs Fond Specialities Limited
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Mrs. Beciors Foad Specistities Limiced
Statement of cush Rows for the yesrended 31 Mireh W
{All amownts are in rapees million, wiless otherwise siatesf)

A; Cash flew from operating activities
Net profit befove taxstion
Non-cash adjustaents 1x reconcite profit before tas to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amontisation expense
Provision Tor doubtiul débis and sdvances
Profit o sale of investmients
Net clange in lair vatise of financial assets 2t FVIPL
Baul debts written off
Dividend ineome
Net bssi{prafit) on sale.of ixed assets
Employee share-based payment expense
Interent expense
Interest fnvome
Operating profit befave working capital changes
Movement in wanking capital
Dectease in Loans
{Inceease) in other financtal asscts
acerase)Decrense m other assets
(Invrease)Decrease in invenpries
{Incrensc) in trade reveivables
Increase in provisions
IncreaseADecrease) in uthrer linkikities
Increase in tade payables
L ADx ) in other financial Habiliti
Cash generated from spevations
Income tax paid
Net cash (o vperating wctivicies (A}

B, Cash flows from investing uctivities
Purchase of fixed assets [including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Purchase of intangible assets {including immangible assets)
Proceeds Trom sale of fised assets (including capital work in progress)
Net proceeds of investments
Net redemptioni(investments) in bank deposits {having original maturity of more than three
months)
Di selond
Interess reterved
Net cash used in investing activities {B)

Rt other i

C. Cash flows from Gnancing sctivities
Proceeds/{epayments) fromio non-cursent bormovangs®
ProceedsArepayrents) fiom/to current borrowangs

Imerest paid
Dividend paid on eqnty shares Hincluding dvidend distabution 1ax)
Net eush from{used) in Tnancing activities (C )

Net inteease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivatenis at she begmning of the year
Custiand cash equivalents at the end of the year

£

* Alsarefer note 22 (¢} for v 1 of tabilites from ing

For the year ended Fer the year ended
31 March 2038 31 March 2087
77 36859
244.0) 2041
484 756
(017} 1226
0.06 3.30)
339 6.83
1815 .
244 )70
399 —
5529 3864
£5.94) 341
824 62375
540 3:20
16.28) (29.2%)
(85.64) 339
(81.46) 247
(113.48) (133.05)
16.61 2667
(18:25) {$:30)
1940 116.90
1236 (34
$48.90 u‘fg
{13691) (140.20)
40899 486.93
(.181,18) (56747)
(0.81) (130
3.62 00
43869 6000
s {11.34)
{18:13) -
58 658
(1,331.13) (51259)
64235 208,99
9714 {26.24)
(34.52) 3748
{38:96) {84 59
846,21 FIXT)
(75.93) 62.06
127.94 6568
331 127.74

The above Cash Flow Statement has heen prepared under the ‘Indirect Method 35 set out in the Ind AS 7 - on Statement of Cash Flow as

aotfied under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2013

behalf af thie
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ExeentiV Direcior and CHO
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Reporting entity

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited referred to as “the Company” is domiciled in India. The
Company’s registered office is at Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab, India. The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of food products. The Company caters to
both domestic and export markets.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting’
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), as notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

The financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in accordance with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other
relevant provisions of the Act,

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied.
An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flow of the Company is provided in Note 52.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 10 July
2018.

i) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions, upto two places of decimal, unless otherwise
stated.

ii)  Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following:

= Defined benefit liability/(assets): Fair value of the plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments): measured at fair value

— Share-based payments: measured at fair value of share based payments..

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either ~




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited P
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

iii)  Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements have been given below:
~ Note 50 - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the
assets the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding;
~ Note 44 - classification of leases into finance and operating lease;
~ Note 44 — leases: whether an arrangement contains lease.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the financial statements for the every period ended is included below:

- Note 3 & 5 - useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets; ‘

~ Note 47 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

~ Note 49 - fair value of share based payments;

~ Note 42 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies;

-~ Note 50 - impairment of financial assets;

~ Note 50 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments.

v} Current versus non-current classification
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and liabilities as current and non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance SI sed on current and: non-current
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

~  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

~ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

— Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when;

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

— It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its gperating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as a separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Major machinery spares parts are classified as property, plant and equipment when they are expected

to be utilised over more than one period. Other spares are carried as inventory and recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when consumed.

Any gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at | April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment (Refer note 52).

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. :
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

iv. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates
based on the useful lives prescribed as per Part C of schedule 11, of the Companies Act 2013 except
in case of certain plant and equipment such as moulds, crates and pallets where the management has
assessed useful life as 3 years based on internal technical evaluation.

Leasehold land is amortised pro-rata over the lease period on a straight line basis.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of
Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to
its working condition for its intended use. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
as incurred.

Estimated useful life of the software is considered as 5 years.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted, if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible
assets recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Company
at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are_measured based on historical cost in a
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relatipg to fore::ngn currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest go§t§) incurred in cgnnectmn
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready fOf their intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Shori-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 'is rf:cognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obhgatlon‘to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number
of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an

employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related
services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Gratuity

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The Plan is funded with Insurance Company in form of insurance policy. The caiculation of defined
benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Counpachognised asset is limited to the

U T “
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised asa liability at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date less the fair value of the-plan assets, if any out
of which the obligations are expected to be settled. The cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss inthe period in which
they occur.

Revenue

a) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return
of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured net of returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates.

Sales include excise duty and are net of sales tax, goods and services tax and other applicable taxes

b) Rendering of services

Revenue in respect of sale of services is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements.

¢) Interestincome
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. Interest income is
included under the head “other income™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss

d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Cmpany’s right to receive the dividend is established
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Government grants and subsidies

The Company recognises an unconditional government grant in the Statement .of" ?roﬁt and L‘oss as
other income when the grant becomes receivable. Other government grants are !nmally recognised as
deferred income at fair value if there is reasonable assurance that they will be rec-elvec-i and the Company
will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are the{] recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recogni§ed in Statement of Profit and
Loss on systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised.

Inventories

Raw materials, stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.after
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Goods in transit are valued at cost
excluding import duties. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on
weighted average cost basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The Company has a policy for writing off the inventory of finished goods which is more than 90
‘'days old at year end.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will on ly
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably. the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability. unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed where an inflow of
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Financial instraments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign exchange forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host contract, etc.

1) Financial assets

i) Initial recognition and measurement

The Company initially recognises financial assets on the date on which they are originated. The
Company recognises the financial assets on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company

becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

ii)  Classifications and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value depending on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided

t0o management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Debt instrument at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair value though Profit and Loss (FVTPL):
~ itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on-the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR ") method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss.

CTIS)
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Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows and selling financial assets. ‘
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.with cﬁanges
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recogmseq basn§ EIR
method and the losses arising from Expected Credit Losses (ECL) impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVOC], is classified as at FVTPL. :

Equity instruments

All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at fair value.

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company
makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts

from OCI to P&L. even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profit and Loss. '

Investments in tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at amortised cost.

iif)  Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period afier the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

iv)  Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full wi
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'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred subslaniia!ly all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

i

v} Impairment of financial assels

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind AS
109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial
recognition of the trade receivables.

2)  Financial Jiabilities

i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Financial Liabilities at fair value thrqugh profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
iti)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

3) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (“the offset criteria’).

gL
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4) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposures.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host
contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company enters
into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ (losses).

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

I

"
I

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability
on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects. at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrving
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis. '

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

m) Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement, is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specified asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Company separates
payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. Subsequently, the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Where the Company is the Lessee:

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Lease management fees. legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset based on internal
technical evaluation or the useful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of
the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset, the lease term or the useful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule 1} of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor:

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
arc classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Company apportions lease
rentals between the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs.
ete. are recognized immediately in the Statement of I:l‘gﬁtma-
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Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets.
Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company have been identified as being the Chief operating decision
maker by the management of the Company. Refer note 43 for segment information presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 115- Revenue from contract with customers

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further
the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The Company will adopt the standard from 1 April 2018 and is in the process of identifying the impact
if any.

Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28,
2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when
an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The amendment will come
into force from 1 April 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financial statements
and the impact is not material.
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Asat Asat Asat
33 Murch 2018, 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Investipents in subsidiaries
Unquoted equity shares at cost
18,150,000 (31 March 2017: 18,130,000 and 1 April 2016: 1%,158,000) equity shares of 181.50 181.50 t81.50
Rs 107 cach Fully paid up of Bakebest Foods Private Linuted
50,000 (31 March 2017 30,000 and | April 2016: 50,000) equity shares of Rs 107 cach 0.50 0.50 .30
fully paid up of Mrs. Bectors English Oven Limited
J82.00 ”3@. 182.00
Aggregate. value of unquoted investments 182.00 182:00 182.00
Apgregate amount of impairment is value of investments Nil Nil Nil
Investment accounted for using the equity method
Investment in associate
Unquoted investment in cquity share at cost
673,306 (31 March 2017 673,506 and 1 Apnil 2016: 673,506} equity shares of Rs. 10/ 1748 1748 1748
cach fully paid op of Cromica Agro Foods Limited ¢
17.48 17.48 17.48
Aggregate value of unguoted investments 1748 1748 1748
Aggregate amount of impainnent in value of investments Nil Nit Nit
* Considered as unquoted since the stock exchange on which the i was listed is closed.
Non-current lozns
(Uinsecured. considered good}
Secunity deposits 35.63 32.66 2415
31.63 32.66 2415
e E—— ——
Other nen-current financial assets
Deposits with matwrity of more than 12 months
Muargin money deposits® 9.68 an 322
9.68 0.1} 3.22
SRR - T

*Margin moncy deposits with canrying smouint of Rs.9.68 (31 March 017 Rs. 024, 1 Apeil 2016 R 3:22) are subject 1o first chiange to-secure the

Company’s infand Ictier of credit and bank guaramees.
Non-curreat tax assets (net)

Advance tncome (X ¢net of provision for tax of Rs. $74.16 (31 March 2017 Rs. 57543,
1 April 2016 Rs. 280.39)

Gther non~current assets

Capitsl advances

27.03 272 18,73
1?.03 2872 §5.77
5615 108.21 8697
JS6.15 108.21 £6.97
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As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017  April 2038
12 tnventories

{valued at the fower of cost and nei reolivable vatue)
Raw matenal and packing matenal 133.50 130.92 135,93
Wark-in-progress 1.59 1.70 137
Finished goods - Manuf; d goods (including stock in tansit Rs. 8520 (31 March 174,24 114,90 139,32
2057 Rs. 4087, | April 2016 Rs.65.02 §
Stock m wade {mcloding stock n transit Rs. 11.88 (31 March 2017 Rs. Nit, 1 April 2016 11,88 0.73 -
Rs; Nit)
Stores and spares 17.99 1449 17.59

344.20 262.74 314.21

M —— E——

The d of

tonety

The write-down are incladed in changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress.

hisable value dusing tie year amounted 10 Rs. 1,47 (31 March 2017 Rs. 132,11 Apnil 2016 Rs.030)

During the year, inventories amonnting 1o Rs, 0.29 (31 March. 2017 Rs, 8.30) provided as five samples were recognised as expense in the
of profit and loss
13 Investments
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss
Quoted
1,700 435 March 2017: 1,700, 1 April 2016: 1,700 equity shares of Bank of india U8 0.24 G.16
lovestments in matual funds at fair value through profit and loss
Unguoted
Nil (31 March 2007; 18,813, 1 April 2016: 43,066) equity shares of SBI Premier Liquid - . 48.02 102.54
Fund
L1 48.26 102.70
Queted
Aggregate book value/ market value 0.8 0.24 0.16
Unquoted
Aggregate book value/ market value - 48.02 10254
14 Trade receivables

Unsecwred and constdered good 67242 363.97 44031
Doubiful 1039 700 0.56
Less: ail on doubtful bles* (1039 (7.00) {0.56)

£72.42 56397 $41.31

* The Company’s exposure 16 credit & currency risk and Joss allawances related to trade receivables ave disclosed in mote 50 an financial instrmems

15 Cash and cash cquivalents

Batances with banks

In coerent accoune? 49.63 12665 o4 5h

Cash on hand 218 169 142
n . 127.74 4£5.68

#Includes debit balance of working capital favitiy availed from HDFC Bank Limited and State Bank of India amounting 10 Rs. Nil 131 March 2017
Rs.23.64. 1 April 2016 Rs. Nibyand Rs. 0.00 respectivety (31 March 2017 Rs 000, 1 April 2016 Rs. Ny
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Asat Asmt As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 J Aprit 2016

Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents sbove

Deposits die to be matured within 12 months of the reporting period 300

Margin money deposit* 48.06 55.90 34.56
C1I7 T 36

*Margin money deposits with canying amount of Rs, 48 06 (31 March 2017 Rs. $5.90, 1 April 2016 Rs. 44.56) are subjéu to fust charge to secore
the Company’s infand letter of credit and bank guaranices

Current foans
thnsecured, consickred good)

Loans 10 related pantics® - 4.37 2608
-~ 4.37 35.08
wm———

* refey note 48 an transactions with relared partics.

Other current financisl assets
funsecured, conxidered goud)

Forwant exchange contrsais used for hedging 652 2416 i
Exportincentives receivable * 85.01 37 5437
Imercstacerued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 1.70 1.82 -
Other advances 411 4.06 388
7 WU B
* The Compuny has d following export i jves o Rs. 156.33 (31 March-2017 Rs. £10:00 and 1 Apeil 2016 Rs. 83.78) mdins,l{sn written

off incentives of Rs. Nil {31 March 2017 Rs.0.34 and 1 Apiit 2016 Rs. Nil).

-a) Incentive nnder Merchandise Exports from India Scheme of Rs. 107.95 (31 March 2017 Rs 7213 and 1 April 2016 Ks. 62.61)

b) Incentive under Duty Drawback of Rs. 0.21 (31 March 2017 Rs 0.55 and { April 2016 Rs. 9.00)
) Duty Free lmport Awthorization of Rs. 48.17 (31 March 2007 Rs 37.32 and | Apnil 2016 Rs 12.17)

Other current asscts

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 43.95 . 2667 2225
Less: provision for doubtful advances recoverable in cash or kind a1 L8 0:09)
Balances with stanstorygavernment sathorities 10831 3743 H

148.32 5268 G627

(

(Fhus spasce I been twienmakdly lefi blank




Mrs. Bectars Foerd Specialitivs Limited
Netcs (o finamcial statoments far the yoar caded 31 March 2018
(A0 amannts are in ngees aeillien. wiless othoreise stated)

28 Equity sharc capital

Aughorised
57,660,000 cas a1 31 Masch 2017 $2.267.622 and af at | Apeil 2016 34,1 50,504 equity sharcs of Ke. 10/ cach

Isswed, selncribed and paidoup
37,267,622 cas. 3} Marsh 2017 25633841 and a5 ok | April 2008 28,433,511 b oquaty shares of Rs. $06- cach

s 8t Asst As 3t
IV March 2018 31 March 2?7 } Aprit 2016
S76550 $72.68 Mo
57308 633 X633
373.68 28634 28633
i i i

s Terms and vights sttschod te cquity shares

1) he Company has wsued ane class of gasty shares havirg a por vadec of Ry. b per shave. Eisch hatdor of oqusty shares is cwtsthod b one vote por share. The cquity sharcholders are cotrnled

w receive dividend 28 declarcd from time w time

(3} In the cvent of liquidation of’ the Compans. (ke holder of cquity shares will be omtithod o reodive mmaining assess of the Company, alicr distnbution of ail proforcatial smounts. The

Simribution will be ix progonion 1o the numsher of cquity shares held by: dic sharcholder

b. Reswecllintion 5f wember of shares uwitstanding at the heginning and end of 1he year :

Particulars Numbey of Skares Amount
Quistanding as 31 | Apnt 281t 26633 331 2%6 34
Shares issucd duning the s zar - -
Outstanding 3 2 3 March 217 ] 13 W53
Borus shares issved donng the ycar . 25633831 236,34
Ontsinnding s 3t 31 March 2013 579‘7#22 $7.
v Details of sharchelders Neldimg murc than 3% ibures in the Cormpany:

Particutars As at 31 March 2018 Axat:31 Misrck 2017 Asat 1 Aprit 2656

Nu, of Shares o Nehling in the  No.ol Shures. Yehnldinginthe No. of Shares ¥a holding in the

dass das dlase

Eguity shares of Ri18 each fully paid
Anoop Becrar 22348574 30.90% HA2337 By 10,743,103 378%%
GW Crown Pre Limited 15,0 70496 19.51% 5.583.24% 19.31%, £5%8.23% 19.51%
Linas Privatc Linied 13,128,790 9% 6560394 291% 6360395 2291%

4. Aggregate sumber of shares issued for considerntion uther thaw cash during e period sf five Yeary immedistely proceding the repartiing date

During the fi peri

ditig 31 March 201K £33 March 2073, 2E. 287939 equity shares of Re 19 cach have been allotied as fally paid as per approved composite scheme

of amaigamtion and avangemem
31 March 2018 30 March 2087 31 Muech 2016 31 Murch 2088 3 Mareh 20104 31 Masch 2013
Nombers of shires b f shures ofskares Numbers of shares  Nowmbersof  Numborsal shaves
shares

Equuy shares alioticd as fully paid bonus shares by WHILAT . . - - -
expitalisation of securitics promium
Sharcs allotied -as per appeened composie scheme of . . . 21387939 - -
aovdgamation and arrangement

pL XS RIA] - * 21287439 - -

" Kotes As por appros af of Hosensbie High Cowt for the schoms of analpam s and simmgemont umdcs secion 3925 5o 304 of Componess At 1952 wah oflect from appomted date 1

Scptember 2004, the Campany had camcelband 22409418 shares aad bad wssued 21,287 95Y shares.dor considiraon (ther than ash

©. Shares reserved far bswe omder pptisns

Information setaing 1o Compans s aption plan. including details of optws issued. evcramed. and Taprod dsring the financial} car and spteuns vurstanding 2 the end of the seporting penl 1%

2Iven in Aote 3.

£ spuce b Bywok setitsuaally: Keft oty
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Mri. Bextors Favd Specialitios Linited
Notes te Finuncial stateweents for-the Year ewdend 31 Mareh 2818
(A comounts ore in rupees solfian, wnkexs otherwise Matsifi

*

Asut As ot

I March 2058 31 March 2017
Other cquity
Capltal reserve
Balance o the beginning of the you . 1y 1437
Leas: Minement diring the year . = -
Buduace &t the-ond of the year 43T 14.37
Securitics premivm
Babmsse wt the beginmng of e xcur ' 33037 317
Lask: Bous sharcs nsud . (IR634) -
Balance 21 1he ¢nd of the vear 243583 %3017
Surptostdehicit in the stncment of profis & Vass
Balante at the beginning of iic vesr 144508 122031
Add: Profit for The yoar . 32051 28323
Lbwe: Ierion dividamd . s “4395) {2R.63)
Less: Dividend distribution txx on istcrion dividend B ; $.43)
Halance at the cad of the your LEIE2T] 14588
Remscaswrément of defined beaefit plans
Balance t the beginning of the yeor . {1.56) -
Adidition dorig the viear 12 363
Balance st the end af the vear s B3 (.56}
Share optinns sutsianding accopnt
Balanee at the beginning of e o ’ . - -
Employee s1eck optiom cxpense 389 «
Balunte ot Uie-ond dfithe year £t ] -

Nuture snd purpase of sther reserves

Cupital reserce

Capital reserve is on acconnt of the business combination bansaction as per the Court Schems dncd 10 Siplonbar 3814,

Secarities preminm

Scewritics premivm Secount 15 u50d 10 record the promnas on issuc of shares Duving the current vear, Bouns shases have been issucd by wiilising socurities promiom in accordamee wish

provisions of the Companies Act 2015

Remeasurement of defined benefit pleny

Remeasurement of delined benefit plans represonts the following as pee Ind AS 19, Ewmplince Benefits

12) aciawrial gaing ol bosics

1) ke rensn: on plm axsety, excluding amounts included m et micrest on the nct defmed bencfi habikisy (asset), and

{c1 my change in the effocrof the assct cailing. Txchuding amoumis includod m act istcrest on the act delinod bonefin Rability {asset)

Shure uption ontsfanding sccswnt
“The shar option ouslanding accoum s used v mnm_ the gront due Fiie value of aprions issucd 10 omplayess uaey the caiplayen swock opuion schiemic. -
Dividends.

“The following dividends wire dectarcd by the Compamy dunng thevem:

4298
321

Ree, 6,75 por-oguityshars (31 Maech 2045 Re 1)
Dividend destribulion 1as on divadonid so cganty sharcholden

28463
ALY

Balance m the ond of the vear

A

ﬂMWMMAmMMM
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Mrs.

Bectors Food Speciafities Limited

Notes to financial ststements Tor the year ended 33 March 2048
(33 comennts are o1 rrpees mdlon. widdess atherwise stateds

22

th)

As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Non-curreat borrowings
Term loans (Refer note (a)) .
From banks {Secured) [ KU RE] 37611 19826
Vehicle loans (Refer note {an
From banks {Secured) .90 9.04 a6
From Others {Secured) St 8.27 -
Loans from related pacties (unsecured)** ¥+ 2812 363 16.41
Long teem matunities of finance fease obligations (secured) (Refer note (h) below) 980 - bt
Total non current borrowings 1,081.07 428.06 221,53
Less: Current matunties of long torm debt (121.47) 169 10) 4401y
Less: Inmerest scorued but mox due on borrawings 1297 230 {1.27)
Non curvent borrowings as per balance sheet 936.93 336,63 17635
Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowines ars as follows:
Particulars ICICY:Bank® State Bank of HDFC Bank*** | Vehicielonns****
dndia®?
Principial amount
As at 31 March 2018 301.68 2598 564,60 10693
As at 31 March 2017 . - 5258 32138 17.21
Asat ¥ Apnl 2016 . 13022 6381 681
Year of maturity 202826 201819 2025-26 2021-22
Term of repayment momthly basts mwonthly quarterly uonthiy hasts monthly basis
. basis
Nominal Intevest rate B.25% - R35% | 9.20% - 10.80% $.25% - 9.18% 831%- 2.66%
* The teymloan of ICICH Bank Lid. is seeured by exclusive chasge onall movehbleand immovatile fised assets (PPE) of Rujpura plant including fand, buildiog. plant and
smachinery excluding kand save-and except those financed by other financial angansistions. These Foms are firther secured by exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of the
entire stocks and such other movables including book detws, bills whether d v ot clean. ding monses, receivables of the Rajpara plany.
*¢ The tesm Joan of State Bank of india is secuted by first charge by way of bypotbesaon onentire Hixedassers-(PPE) of the Company {other than Greater Noida and Rajpura}
ncluding equitable mortgage (first charge by way of EM) of factory tand and buildng situsted ot Theing Road, Philawr, Disnict Jalandhar, Punjab. Forther 1em loans are also
secuied by leaschold nights {fiest charge by way of EX3 ol Land and Bulding situated at Plot Ne 13, Phase | & 1L Industrial Arca. Tahliwal. District Una. Himachal Pradesh.
These loans are further scomed by second charge o caneat assets of the Company b than Greater Nowda aod Ragpuia) and fist charge by way of EM of propeny siuaiid af
Wakia Kuthewal Gujra, Humbran-Laddowst Road, Tehsil & Distt. Ladhiana
These facilities are alse secured by personal guarantce of Mr. Anoop Becior.
** The team loan of HDFC Bank Ltd. is secured by first charge by way of hypotliecation on entire fined assers (PPE) of the Grearer Noida upit. These toans are furher secared
by way of collateral security of equirabl gage of factory land weasuring 18,720 S sitwated ac 11 A Uldyog Vibar, Greaer Noida,
*42 2\ enele foans 1aken fiom basks amd othiers are secured by hy pothecation of respective vehiches.
PR Unsecured toans from divectors aad thay relatives cany inerest € $.00% pa These Joans are subordinate (e the teom foans from banks and are permitted to be repant only
with the prios approvat of the banks. Refer note 48 an wansactions sath velsted parties
Ferm Loany
Name uf the lender Penalty Clause Prepayment
Stane Bank of India Non-puy ment of sserest instatment 1o on the entire puistanding for the period of 2% of the pre-pand
defaulr. Har penolty (penal interesti of Rs 1000/1or each day of delay beyond due date of  funoent
pavment
HCIUT Bank Default imerest Rutes 1o respect of Domestic werns Joans © In case of any delay v the
repavient of principal imialimem or ppvment of ingerest. charges or other mones due on
the tacihiy . delfivolt ey sate shall be Tevied at Documenied Rate -2"6 pa . pavable
muonthiy, from the dow date tll sach g thie overdue mmouny s pad
Detault interest Rates w respect of International oo Joans © In case of any delay in the
repayment of pripepal istadiment o pay ment of interest, charges or other momes due on
the factlity. default inderest rate st be devied at Documented Rate + 2% paa. pavable
monthiy, from the due date 1l such time the overdue amount is paid.
Finanee lease obligations

Financy Jease obligations relnes 1o Jand porchased fos business parposes dunng the vear ended 31 Masch 2018, The amount includes ventals and premium pavable over the lease
term. b he impaitid finance cost on the Bability wiat determined based on the effectivesareres rte methid,

Financy fease obligations are puyatile as Fodtos

31 March. 20§8*

Futury mindmiam  Daterest element of  Prosent visfue of

Parsivulies o
fease pavments MLP minimum lease
f‘_ﬁ_\ IS
Within fess than one van 0
Botss con o and five veans RV
At more han fHive vens i 82

*The Compamn had noe obligation under finance fease as a0 35 March 2617 and t Aprd 2516




Mrs, Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Nates o finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Al amownis.sire w rupees suttion, wiless atherstse Sionedy

(e} Net-debt reconciliation
The (llowing sections scis out an analvsss of net debt and the movensents i net debt for each i the period presented:

Asat Azl
31 March 2018 31 Murch 2017
Cash and cash equivalonts 5184 12774
Cirent borrowings * - (262.73) (165 59
Nom-current borrowings (1078.10) 1425.75)
Enterest on borrowings {3.67) L3.0m

Net debt i g&s_}

{d66.60)

Oiher agsets. Liabilities frain fingutiag setivities

Cashandcash  Finance Joase Non-Current- Crerreént borrowings Imerest on Total
cguivatents obligations borrowings ; Wi
Net debt s at 31 March 2017 127.74 = ;m1§! (165.59) U.Q] {466.60)
Cash flows (75.93) - 64255 97.14) - (815.62y
Interest expense - 0.9} « - {35.2%) i83.39
Inggress paid - - - - 34 52 5452
Other non-cash movenents - -
- Acquisitions - {970 - - - {4,706}
- Faw value sbjusiments - - - - 8.0 8.0
Net debt as at 3) March 2018 $1.81 .80} {1,068.30) _ (262.73) 13,67} 11,292.69)
Other asyets Liabitities from financiog activitiey
Cashand cash  Financelense  Non-Corrent Current Inierest un Total
equivalents obligstions borrewings borrowings borrowings
Net debt as at § April 2006 63.68 - (216,26) (191.83) {1.84} {348.25}
Cash flows 62.06 - {20549 .26.24 - {11719
Interest expense - . . . (3864} {38.6:)
Imterest paod - B - - 748 338
Other non-cash movements - - -
- Acguisitions - . - - . .
« Fair value adjustments - - - - : -
Net debt as at 31 March 2017 127.74 - m (165.59) . 300 {465.60)
23 Provisions
Provision for employee benefis
Compensmed absences trefer note 473 1170 119 53
Gratuty (refer note 47) 1908 19.44 1174
30.79 30.63 20,23
™ o n——

24 Income Tax

Ao Amounts recognised I grrofit or loss

For the year emded  For the yoar ended

31 March 2018
Current faxevpense

31 March 3017

Current sear 18023 LARS
Yax adresionem for earhir ceaes N )] (1.40)
14896 LR
Deferred tan credit
Uhanges i secopmsed tempormy dufferonces 3 81
Effevt of changes i tax rate 918 -
. 329 {81
Total Tax Expense lggg 118360
B, Amousts cecogmisod in Other Comprehensive Incanse
For the vear ended Fur the vear eaded
31 Mareh 2018 31 Mareh 2017
X Fax Inconses , Tan tngome/ .
Befare tax N Net of tax Before tax Netaf 1y
(Expense} (Expense)
6l {D.90) 1.7) 2.3 0.83 {1560
Detined beneti plan 2.61 jﬂ.‘m: 1.7 {gﬂ’l ll.ﬁ {156}
. Revonciliation of effective mx rate
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March: 2018 31 March 2047
Rute Amount Rate Ampsnt
Profit before tax fram continuing nperstions 34.01% AR 77 3461% Jok.$9
Tox using the Compans’s dosnesiic 1 o 163.62 12756
Tax effect of!
Non-deductible evpensas 0.29% 156 WS 200
Nomtaxabke income D000 - e -
Taxeexinpt meame S170% 16 2% [IXU1 -
Lax meeniives LHEE L . (2R ke [RER 31!
£ hasges in estimates selaged ao carler Seus «1.95% iTih 038" [
s 020% 073 S22, 079
Tux expense 32.24% 8.2 3130 118,36




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to financial statemeats for the year eaded 31 March 2018
1Al amounts are i rapees sultion, apless vthers ise sunedy

D. Movement in deferred 1ax balances

Asat Recoguized in  Recogaized in OCY As at
31 March 2017 P&L 31 March 2018
Deferrad Tax Liability
Propurty, plant and equipment 114,06 1921 - 135,82
Investments in mutuat funds at fair value through profitand loss 22 {2.18) - 0.03
Forward exch used for hedyi 650 {6.50) - .
Other items 0.76 2.63 - 3.3%
Sub- Tatal {a} 124.08 13.16 - 137,24
Deferred Tax Assets
Provisions - employee benefits 1554 2.26 {0.90) 16.90
Allowances ot doubtfisl receivisbles and advances ‘282 Lid - 39
Others 51.26 6,46 - 312
Sub- Total (b} 69.62 9.86 {0.90) 78.58
Net Deferved Tax Liabilities {a)-{b) 5446 3.30 0.90 3.
s——sS = — ]
Asat Recognized in R d in OCH As 3t
1 April 2018 P&L 31 March 2017
Deferred Tax Liability
Propertv, plant and equipment 105,49 9.2 - Ha 6l
fm estments in mutaal funds at fair value thiough prodit and loss 242 (0.2 22
Forward exch < used for hed, 24 RER b.50
Onher items 149 {6.73) X
Sub- Total (s} 11146 12.62 - 124.68
Deferred Tax Assets
Provisions - emplay 11,78 29 Q83 13,54
Al es onn doubiful receivables and ad ) 0.23 239 - .82
Others 449 6.26 - 5126
Suh- Total (b} 56.97 11.81 0.83 69.62
S T e e
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (2)-(b} 54,49 0.81 {&&3) 54,46
Asat As 3l Asat

25 Other non-current liabilities

Deferred Invome
Government grants

38 March 2018

31 March 2017

¥ April 2016

The Company has been anarded peants ander Expon Promation Capital Goods §

13748 3438 3504
137,48 3438 3304
T

h (EPCGY,  Apncolial and Pr d Food Products Expont Deselopment Authority

(APEDAL Techsolngy {ippradaton. Lstathshment. Modersisation of Food Processing Industnes under NP and Scheme for Integrated Cold Chamn and Value Addition
Whinsiactre, Yhe prams received n 261718, amounted o Rs 113,41 (dunng 2010417 Ry 9.53 and dusg pesods upto ) Aprl 2016 Rs. 64.48 having net value of Ry 13 70)
were condmmonal upon fullitlment of export abligations in case of EPCG purchase of specified plant and machinery in a specified region and for other gramts received. The amount
received under grants is now recopnised as deferred income and is being amortised aver the uselul life of the plant and machinery in proportion i which the related depreciation

expense 18 recognised.
16 Currentbarrowings

Loans from banks repayuhle on demaml (seswred)®

26273

163 39

19183

162.73

168,89

191.83

< Phe worhing capital tmis of Stte Bank of Indin (SBH are scoured agmmst ¢ntire curment assets (existmg and futmey of the Company (other than Greates Mo wnt Rpural

These
sitaaredd @t W ke Retessal Gnga. Rumbrane Laddowat Roail. Tebsit & Distt. Vst

@S

W

> forther sveured by second charge on entite ined assets (PPE) of the Company {other than Greater Noida and Ragpueay and thast charge by way of EM of propenty

Fiyese acibities ase shso secared by personat guansnree of M. Anvop Becior, The facilities availed from SBI camvics Hoatmy rute of interest 48 MULR - 0.25% 10 1 25% ranging

from $1%5 30 9 18% per annum (previows yoar 8.13% 10 10.30% per annunt}

.

The Company has alse taken the working capital limits from HDFC. Bank L wihich.are secured against pari-prssu-charge o entire curvent assels texisting and fitures of Noida
Unit The facilitics maited from HOFC Bank carrics floating vate of interest 5 MOLR + 0.10% i.e: 8.25% per aainum {previous vear 9.00% 1o 9.08% per annum), iRefer Nowe 15

cash and casts equivalentsy

Name of the lender

Penalty Clause

|

State Bank of India

‘The Conpan) will i fequate net working captial a1 all times to meel margin requirements and in case of shopfall
in NWiexcess bortowings. the Bank will charge penat interest 401.00% p.a. over and abeve the pormal IMerest 1R
applicable,

in case of won compliance of currens stpulations withis the supulated. perund, peaal tae of imeresidi 1o pa. over s
ahove the normat imferest rate will be charged on entire eutstamding for the period of delay

Trreularity in fund based Limits: 4 2% par. on the entire outstanding for the pertod of incgalanty on the incgala poon
for the period of imegularity, However. in case the account is continuonsly arvegular tor the period boyond 04 days, penal
vate of interest will be chargeil on the entire outsisnding froms the 61st day onw ads

Non-submission of reneival daty incliiding Audiied Balance Sheer: Listed Campanies if not submitied within 7 ks
Rs. 10.0000-por hemh of dctay. For othurs, f not submitied withine 9 months of delay -Rs 10600 et menth

LU Bank

T el cvont oF defawdt. Dok, s vt of facifite ae Hitwrty 1o recdd afl tie facday extended fo the comp | % “The
rate will be aver-and doemed 1 b an event of ahove the interest nate of the defmuht for all ather iy facdiny) on the

gt amount chaved perod will be chised L thie company Tor the detauls penl




Mrs. Beetors Food Specialities Lintited
Notes in-financial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2013
1Al amounts are i rupees million, widess stheneise stased)

17 Trade payables

Trade pavables
10 pricro and small enterprises® - - -
1o dthers** 373.37 336,47 24557
37587 356.47 245.57
e o
*The Company has during the year, not received any intimation from sny of its suppl 18 theis statys under:sthe MSMED. Act. Based on the above. facts, theve are no ducs
to partics registered under MSMED Act, Further, disclosures reqaired under MSMED Actis g-vcn umk-r note 45
**Includes dues 10 related paries (refer note 483
Asat Asmt As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2007 1 April 2016
28  Other financial Habilities
Cugrent mararities of Jong-teom debt . 12617 310 44.0)
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings .67 3.00 1.84
Paysbles towards.capital goods : 139.94 3727 18058
Unpaid dividends ; 9.20 L. 14.30
Security and other trade deposits 16,77 931 54,18
Forwant exchang used for hedgi 4.90 - -
29%.68 118.68 13238
LT TR
29 Other current liabilities
Deferred income
Govenmens geants (Refernote 25) 10,43 279 8.66
Advances from customers 1581 2238 3315
Starustory dues 14,82 3138 3042
Dividend distribution 1ax payable - . 583
Employce payable®* : 39.89 55.04 3006
100.67 118.36 128,35
*Hincludes dues 1o related parties (refer note 48)
30 Provistons
Provision for employee benefits: (refer note 47) ’
Compaensated absences 111 132 0.96
Gratuity 1.89 1.56 129
Others: )
Provision for Litigation (refer note (a)) 11768 103.98 83,39
Provision for Sales return {(refernote (b)) 6.8 640 6.6)
126,80 112.96 94.25
= pea) sy
Asuat As

31 March 28 31 March 2017

u} Provision for litigation®

Balance at the of the year 103.98 §3.39
Add: Provision made.diring the ves 13567 2332
Less: Provision stilisedmreversed during e vear - 173
Batance ot the end of the year s K368 10398

Grefer note 42A6d3 for detils of pendmg litigation

b) Provision for sales return

Balance at the. comy ment of the vea 30 66}
Add: Provision made daring the vear [R5 1t
Less: Provision ulilisedireversed during the vear {61 {061}
Balance at the end of the vear 6,15 [R11]

This represents provision matte for pessible sales returms by the customers For sakes made by the Company. as estimated on:the basis of past trends.

As gt . Asmt As at
31 Murch 218 33 Maech 2007 1 April 2016
31 Current tax Habilities (net)
Income tas joer of advance tan Rs. 303,71 { 31 March 2017 Rs. 168.83 2,00 12.64 28.3%
and Apnl 2016 Rs. 333 46)
26.00 12.64 28,38
STos =




Mprs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Marech 2018
{AH amounts are in rrpecs million, giless orbsratye stated)

32

33

w
"

3

37

3%

For the year ended
31 March 2818

Revenue from aperations

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Sale of products {inclading excise duty to the extent applicable) 384433 337744
Sale of services
Job work incomne 407.54 40770
Total ( A) 6,253.87 3,785.14_
Other operating revenue
Fixport incentives (refer note 18) 156.33 110.00
Net gain on accourit of foreign exchange luctuations 8522 45.07
Others 69.88 74,30
Tomi(B) 281.44 229.97
Total revenue from operations ¢ A + B ) &3.3! 6.015.11
Other fncome
Interest incoine from financial assets an ameornzed cost 41 4.76
Interest incorne fram others 1.80 363
Gain on sale of investipents inct) 067 226
Net change in fair vadue of financral asscts measursd at for value - 330
through profit and loss
Governament prams {Refer note 28) 997 9.08
Dividend income 18,18 -
Other miscellaneous income 148 G.48
33,9 23.53

Cost af materials consumed

Inventory at the beyinaing of the year 130.92 153,93
Add: Parchases {ne1) 3:384.06 327557
Less: Investory at the end of the y cas 138.50 130.92

3‘!576.48 Jgun.ss

Purchase of stock in trade

Purchases 126.39 1435.72
12639 105,72
== e

Changes in inventories of finished gouds, stock- in- teade and work in
Progress

Opening invengories

Finished goods H490 139.32
Work-pi-progress 170 137
Stogckem-trade o473
Total {A) 117.33
==
Closing inventories
Finished goods 17424 11496
Winrk-s-progress £59 L7
Stockansrade 1188 73
Towml(B) 137.1 11733
ST
DeereasedIncreased m exeie dury on chinge mam enjories of faishod goads () - {0.333
Total (A-B+C) ’ (70.38) 23.03
Employee benefits espense
Sadsaes gind waves TURAR T
Conttibunon o pros dent snd oiber fuisds teeda mae 17 4447 KR 4
Easplovee shate-tuad patient exprense rsefen moge 14 309 .
Staft wellive enpenses i 240t {982
A67.84 768,08
Finance cost
Imerest expense on fimancral brolulmes memsmed at gnoeised cost Y Becg st
Lo from Danks & o P e R R AcH
nhess o HEXS TN
$‘ IS ks ‘.é‘) oo dBbd
RN 3
% (})
& S
7 \‘}%
Sapuey
4

T




Mis. Beetors Food Speciulities Limited
Notes 1o financial statements for the yeurended 31 March 2018
AT ampnnins e by ripeoes miillion; inless arlepwise viated)

39 Deprecintion and amotisation expense

Deprecintion on property. plant and equipment
Amontisation om intangible assets

40 Other expenses

Rent {refer note 44)
Hanes and anes
Power and fuet
Repan and muintenanie
Plank and machinery
Buildings
(rhers
Travelling ond conveyance
Pavment to suditor {refer note {a) below)
Legal-and professional fees
Printing and stationery
Nea change in fair value of financial asséts measured st fair value throvgh
profit and loss
AP

and sales p
Consamption of stores and spare parts
Conission and brokersge
Commumcation £osis

Direciids remungation

Freight and forwarding

insurance

Loss on saké fwrite off of propenty, plant and equip inet)
Allowances on trade receivable and other advances

Bank charyes .

Expenditure on Cory social responsibility (refer note 55)
Miscellancous expenses

ta} Payment to auditors
As auditor
Sranuory audil
Certification
Reimburserment of expenses

4

Earning per share (EPS)

z

Basic earnings per shave

ot for Basn varnsag per share af e 10 each
Pront far the vem

. Wensned wserage wadwr of ety sharey for thasicl

Butance a1 the heginning of the vear
Effet of issoe of honos shates

Basic Earnings per share (face value of Rs 10 each)

=

Dihered earnings per share

o Froti fassg tar ditond carmiane per e of K HEerch
Profit R ihe vemm

B vsgired sevcrage mmmber of gty shiores for fdidwed)
Balance a1 the beginning of the year

Edfect of issue of bonus sharves

Ef¥eor of employes stk oprions

4

Dituaedt Earnings per share (fave vidue of Rs, 1# each)

9%

Forheyearended  Fortheyearended

31 March 2018 31 March 23017
23843 21634
5.68 07
243,34 20.41
3742 30.76
732 693
29142 26883
41.53 3378
134 913
345 380
7695 6928
sn 4.9
1466 2093
3.3 330

0.06 -
135.76 10202
24.89 23.60
(X4 6.61
276 13
3806 34.26
501.72 405,63
822 820
244 176G
464 756
4.28 390
2.8) 248
2299 16,33
1 !263.42 1.073.31
5.20 3.60
020 0.20
03] T029
. 7 4.00
32052 283
28.63 2863
28.03 28.63
5726 §7.26
568 442
320.82 23323
28.6% 2863
2863 2863

006 .
FEXTY .26
559 442




Mys, Beciors Food Speciabities Limited
Notes to-finantial sistements for the year ended 31-March 2018
141} vt are in rgsees saliion. paless oiery i votclf

42 Cuntk liadsilitics. conti) assets il

As at At st Asw
3t March 2018 31 March 217 01 Aprif 2018

A. Confingent {iabifitles
On the basis of current saatus of above-mentioned individual cases and a5 por Jegat sdvice obained by the Group, wherever applicable, the Group.is confiden that the sutoomein
the above cases would be in the favour of the Group and is of view tha: i provision is tequired in-respect of these cases.

.
s Cloms agamst the Company et scknonicdead as dobes (The Compans oyicts 3 favorable outcome agamst 2l the

TIsTS )

1y Income Tax related matters 244 199 6.03

1} Rebatmg 1o income tax domand va certain dnallovanie 1 AY 21 . 903 [XTE)

) Relating o Incom tav demand on cortn disalionames for AY 2011432 v ) l? (3 ]

w) Refanag 1o lecoms v domand o cormivn disallon aoce s AY 2058314 183 13: 564

w3 Relating to Iacome tax domand oo cortam dissllowance for AY 2015-1n LA . .

1) Sates tax related matters 30 92 aat

i} Sales Tax demand for assesement year JH05-06 oo accoust of Input Tax Credn mx revirsad againe branch transfer and 301 . XU 101

boncfit of deforscd payncat of tax on TST saks i the state of Himachal Pradcsh . .

1) Sajes Tax Denand for assessaent vcar 2013-13 on dccoent of ponding C forms and F forms to be deposited withthe . 19 -

saks tax dopartment of Uittyr Pradesh

1) Civll mariers .1 9.19 .

1) Stamp duty case forthe plot taken an 94 cars kease i Nesds 910 LR -
b. Inrespect of bank guarastoes

Gwarantecs given by the Compam: 733 i 1.6k
¢ Others

Diffcrontia! amount of Customs Duty payabic by the Company in cave of mon fulfifmcnt of oxport obligation agaimt the 4107 4us [$ 7]

import of capitat poods made 2t concessonal rat of duny . Based on the past sales perfonnance aed the future sakis plan,
managemen 1s Qo hapetinl 10 moct cat e obhgatoss by vwowting e soquiscd solume of Sxpons 1 frere.

Tmrpoct of bonus due to nistrospectevg amandimnt i the Favenon of Bonut Act. 163 R dh Groocial sexe 200413 sinee 1627 027 02
matter is spb-adicions in smitar cose

d.  (nher pending Htizmtions
133 The Company had sbincd o stay against Fhaxschal Pradosts Govornmaont order levy g ontey 1ax 6. 2% on all goods entering the state. The samw was teduned 3 1% withs offet fram 13 July
2081 30 then sncrvased to 2% wath ciect fromn ¢ March 2000 The Hon'ble High Conn bend stayved the e, The estimoed amoost of ontry tax upme 31 March 2016 of Re 9987 (31 March 207
Re ¥9.52. 1 Apnt 2016 Ry 72541 fimcludeny untorovt of Ry K062 431 March 2057 Re 3o 1% 1 Apol 2006 Rs. 20 230 has been pros sdod i the books of acvounts
The Company had peossdod & hard. guaarantvy for an answeunt of Ky 39.98 £51 Narch 2087 Ry 34 4301 Apnif 2016 Rs, 29.23) in ahis rogand.

1h) The Compans had obtastd 2 sty aganst Porpb VAT At lys yang enivry 806 ort Premiree- O on she by of Bigh Cont judamant dehvinsd on 1he s posst i an il itse which i pending
tefore Suprone Cou. Tha cepanatad Sonown uf Ly amé atvis thercoicapio 31 Ml 018 of Rs, 508 (31 3arch 2017 Rs. 335, | Apn) 2016 Rs. 3.00) (including iterest of Re. E92(3F Mieh
2017 Rs 1AL FApnl 2016 § 3335 hok boon proy sdod at the books of aacansmts

) A demond of Rs. 237 and Rs. 373 refated voth FY 20800 amd FY 200915 aspachicehy o ponding with DETC. Lodiviana. The oxter i selated wath il tax crodn elmed by avicsse on
purchase of HSD. Tix Company has o o o stael e p dirg without dup g the 23% of awoumt domandod. The department has roecrod the appeal of the Conparn  The Company fikd
the Wit petition & High Conrt and thw: High conn had accepted the goatomtion of assesse & romantod the case back 10 DETC. Ladhiona. The Company has creaed the provision in books For aroont
demianded aod has alvo uccred the mterest on amsont domaded o F 3% o sontl. Thivefore the provisios for an Smotst oF Ré. 4,49 31 March 2017 Rs. 407, 1 Apnil 2016 Ric 3.64) s Ry
778431 Masch 2617 Rs 162 1 Apnl 2036 Re. f 40} inchudon an woterost of Rs, 213035 March 2017 Rs. §.70,.4 Aprit 2016 Rs. 137 and Rs 354 (31 March 2017 Ry. 332, 1 Apnil 2010 Rs
2 64) respoctivady.

i} A domand of Rs. § 91 for assossmont year 208303 i aconant of posdiop T fornm and. ¥ foams rasod by Dopty Comasissioncr, Gautans Budh Nagas Noda, Uttar Prodsh pondssyg 20 be
depostted with Hu soloy 1% depanmaent bas ban prosidad fre i books of e

B, Contingent Assety
The Company docs mot Baty any Comtimeent amcts ax 3t 31 Murch 2018, 31 March 2017 amd | April 2016

€. Cowmitmesnts
E d of Rt b b RaaNatod e Lt anesuns ot o sduanens) sl et provided tor Re. F2EST (ay o 31 March 2017 R 23 02 and + Aprit 2036 Rs. {45,342

Apart from i Commitonssts discesed sbos o, the Compans s v mizior Frgmoial cemintimges< sthey thar thass 5 the naturd of egdar Naginess spoations

43 Scgment information

Buasis for seomentation
Scyrnt pformation « proscotad s et of v ompao s ey epvaating sopawnits The ppetiton: sepanants anc Based o the Congan s sunagomat and et ropeing Stucaoy

Opevaring Sraments
The Conpany ‘s Basrd of dircetons bave ton sbasmstiad s 1he Ut Optetstng Dhoaion Maket CCORAT) sooe thay 3 svsponabiic For all mapor decssions vth Rispuct ke the propasatint 26d Swvuikm

of businoas plan. propatatson of Bodeet. plasaee. alianc. oure ssdicgoiedion sl capansiosy of e o Gaciliey

By e opsmon of the Boaal e s ond oov Giperiably sczonns CBovonow fram 5ol peesdoats 3.\ dogly . 450 Supean 86 for sogmemt oposting s eagiaad W be stade i thye Fadanogd
satemwss it the Comprann

Eutity witte disgloonres

A Infurmation about products sod seryives
il Revenne comprises ; 31 March 208 3 March 2017
Revinee from food products* 8281 K7 Ayss 14
ot (ALY 3PS
exchudds ot opeming o snus

8. Information about stutrsohical arcax
The googeaphical information anadssce e Gaopan ¢ oeaniees by the Comyrans s couniry of demol (e, dia) and other countrice. In p 1 the goographicat wgmnt sy g has
Bus hased < the goographig kaabioa of Fhe oty o W oty ot gt 8 hdatod ras goos 3nd secciatiek by geographical markor. ropasdioss of sthaors the goadk wore
prishwad
i} Resenue Trom exlerarl costomers: 31 March 2008 31 March 2817
Wik sy FIER Ik FNESES
Qatsed dodig i Temidy Lawss {7

Yotk 623187 £.38%.04
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Mrs, Bestars Food Snecinfities Limited
Nates 10 financial starements for the vear coded 31 Murch 2018
AN amonsts are inrupoes-mitian, sndess othersise ssated)

+it

H

) Receivabiles Asst Ast As®
3 March 2018 31 March 2017 L Auril 2016
Within fadw 338 TR mn
Dutssde India 33366 . 22330 132.84
Yoy $72.43 58597 S

i) Nog-rrven) assets : . . 5
The Company S comumon nop-cueront asscts:for producing, goods! peoiding scrvices. to domestic and overscas markoth Hows. a¢giamis figurcs. for other assces? siklition 10, fxod asscts have mot bocn
fumisind .

Infarmation about major custamers (from externat L ..
During the year endod 31 March 2018, Company:dhics not kave iransactions with amy single. cxicmal cusicnc having 1or% or hove. of its sevemsc, (Ks 62560 Tor the voar sodod. 31-Maech 2017).

Lexses

Opernting lease

L Leases a st
The Cronpany s enterod & M leases for sosidential and wandhouse promiscs fora petiod rnging Srom 15 years. Temn of the lease ichade fom for rencwal and nos-camceltstion. |case rental
amcinting o Re. 1226 (GEManch M7 Ry, 7031 Kave boen chngod 1o th Statemet of Profie 3nd Liogs denmg the v,
As i Asal
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Commuments for imwinmm s oy ments oxciodmg npplicable taxes. i refotion o e abone fease arvangemcnts are petablis n follows:
Within one year 1714 313
Later than o sear bat not-Ratcr than fise sears By w97
Later than fve vears N —
53_[ J35.10
in. Leases as Jesnor
Under prey s GAAP. arrangommnts that did nod e the dogal form of Kase sere accountod 50r asd on the logal form of such g <@ P wod B Under Ind AS. any arcasgenient
toven i ot kgally stroctuncd: a8 Joase) which Comvey' ight 10 Use 3 355t in e R 3 PIvakm of surics- of PIMCHtE are identificd: as kascs provided oonsin conditions arc wxt. In case sich
armngemants aee dotcrmined 10be o the natun: of faascr, such arangoments ane rguirod 1o be edassificd into (inangs gr operatie g deases as per the ng of Ind AS 17, Leases

The Coniprany has ientificd certain Jobmverk araisscncnts 1o e in the nature. of operating i and accondingly: these iivi Bt chapsificd 25 vporating. eass aenngement. As @ resalt of this during the
1éar the Company has booked fse incomc amowntisi 10 Ri. 46,86 (R3 -45.60 for the year anded 3§ March 2017). There iy  Soutiegoiery otachod 10 ta: future keaic-income and are thoror £3m not b

T Mintsary of Miceo, Seiptt and Medinm Enterprises bas. issucd. an Office. Memoraimduan doted 26 Augost 2008 whish -svcomasonds that. ihe Micro. and. Sialh Entvaprises. siwld. mention- o than
ek with its ek £ ) Namber a8 atlocoted afier frling of the M Acepedioghy. Ak -disg) 1 1espacy of amous payatrie W such soturpoiscs as
an thy year end has boonmade e Bnancal stietanans bascd on mformation avaitable with the Cospam as ander

Asmt Asm As®

LM H 21 March 2017 1 April 2016,
Primgipal ammunt sonxinng unpand 10 a8y supplier 3% 2t the ond oF 1hi avcouming year. - -
borkerrs i thecnvan st wipaid sir sty sippher s ot the wid of the accounting year: - B Co
Pheamaant of stercst paid in terms of soction. 1 of the Micro; Smal and Mediien Enterprises’ Desilopcnt Act; 206 along ) - - .
itk theamonty. of the jayencat smad o 1he supplicy bovand the appoieted day.
Theantount of intorent diec wnd pasable for the period of detay in soking paymens (which Bave boen poid but beyond the . » -
appeitad adas durtng the gerod) but witvn adiding 1he interest spocified wnder the Micro, Smalf and Medinm Estcrpriscs
e clogacnt Az Miglh
Moz amsaunt s pitvacat ava st and somannig wnpart % e vid of the accountiing ssar . -
Vi o of Sisether intorest romameng dov amd g ke oo 6 i sieccodiag svars, ustil sech e shos the it soes - - -
b e actialie pasd e the small ccrprse. S the pueposs of disalosance of 3 dadueuble capemdinn undis sechon 23 of
B Nt Saath and Mdion: Entorpases Dovehopeone et 004
Transier Priving
The Compunm had entend ot seliod domestss tmnsacrons with reloled panicy. During the Gurton ycor, the (romsaciions wilh pecs Salte bodow the Rmit, thorcken: e prinissons

o octim PIUE of the Jocome Tan AGL. 190 are st appheable po she Company
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M Bectors Foud Specializion Limifed
Neter i funncial statemmsents foe the your vibed 31 Mareh 3616
LRH amertnss e i n@ees milion. uwlesy nthevwive suned)

41 Ewmployee henality
The Compuany onnbribis Tollawip prist-omp L4

G) Detined Contributing Plam:
PFrovident fand
“The Coampony takes ocatribolinn towurds peovidest Fumd for sployees. The Compeny s somsrisesion 10 the. Epplogees Frevident Fund is depasisod 30 the provonment uades the Emplayees
Tiovident Pund and Miscellancous Provismons Act, 1952, The contndutios paysbie io i plin by Sie Campany w4t fhe rate specificdsoier the Eanpiayocs Pravidest Fund snd Miscelianous
Provisions Act, 1952,

Ensrimp S year. i Coenpany: Sy mxx’wamelolhm-mmii}Swdhofuwmtwcww"mﬁ-mnmmsmk

For te yeur endid
Fresientens 30 M BME 31 Mureh BW7 .
Cocriiontion W percidens fa 3108 W
) Dol henefit plan;
Gratelty

The Conspany upesates 1 past-caspoymans efined Senefi plan tar Crratinty. This pian ontatles an vruployee 10 rosvive 3alf raonth's salasy i coch year of canphend sorvicy 2t Uie Linc of
tetitemanbexit THi scheise iv fanded Dy the plag axvets.

The cmployee’s grawity fund schemme iy mRaged By .mclzmas;« me af ladis wd Stc bunk o7 Bidix Life fmrance. The whewe rosidis for harg win payinsns » eessed
smployees al relirensend, death while 1 f an Momsing i (»!smgtmmlumhaﬂﬂm”udmtu par: et
excers SE'6 months subject 16 oo eeihing, %um-nmummﬁnmu{s yoms of vervice. The present valon of nblige Use Progeesed
Uiz Coeelit Merad which reoogaaee act: petial of SERIGE 48 piving nue o 3881620 emplayee Merels ontstionens asmd mq AVATA SN et SPparzchy S huid up e sl ubkgaion

The eryeeid revenst actumrinl s alvarior of Plar avsers und the prewnt vadus of 1 dofisad doncfis aitigasion s gy wers coned st e 31 31 Mateh 201 The st sabor of e gt
et 13 ebligritautiv 20ndl 1 AL Uity 6t METVIOE Suiat akied e SNVICE ook, Were mdexured wiaing the Progeoied L Credit Muibod.

A. Bascll va the actparial valnation cinnad  this ospect, the felluwivg able sets our thie statsis of e graniity plan and the wrbsts: axoguinad 1 e Comiesy’s fraoal slaimens o ot
Dafince ghott dute:

Asmt
o 3 2017 s s

Nt el M Eabidiny .

Liabitiny for grouiy w9 200 e

Tm-'u,m Bemetit hamitities T3] 2i0e 1N

Nancurrest to w45 132

Cuarent (R in i

B Mevement in net defined Deaefic {assre) Havitiny

Ralanes a4 ot § Aprid £:3 ] nx 17 ]] wn p* 3] 18
Tuchudod b Profit or Loss
Cugent wrvice cos e 04 551 ¥
torest ot {icunnc 3 L) L8 CoM 3 54
Past gervico cont U ‘ L4 : . .
uﬁ‘ T3 % 1.6 X7} XN
Included tn 1C1
Remmcasutement luss (par,
« finaecisl axsumption (i 35)) £9.i%) FIRE 37 wls s
- demegriphic adpustmente . . . . . .
- Cxprrience wdimstinem 1.5 - (191 12.0] : ECELA
2.88) 297, 7] LI EF)
Other
Expected erum
Contriarions peid ¥y e crmploys - 0 .00 - 00 121.00)
Benefiss paxt {49y aw 3 [ X2
Q.49 S0 (s 3.1 199 wm
Sajanze as 43 3 Mauech LIET S0 B, s& SLAL Siae,
During ste viaee e g1 ngptetik o et alaie b 1 fepat Yogsnirmesns e URe SRty oganing gratinty homts. Na 3 reani ol 3he ot dowmitason. the Comparny's
hER Yo Re 6603 M J947 el AL antaspussdivng thn wth i s 90 was TuCopitaed 7 ey Stateovne b Pfradit el Laws dorrine e vazeen vear

€. Man aixen
Plax asvats corgise of the faliowing Avst
)I Mareh 2012 33 March 2047 | April 2084
with Lifs issurance Has % 0%
w-«uwmw 18E% 155%% [TXTL
Tow wxtiones of Huaure salary ischeases, eomriderid ¢  wobiiathons, sk p senianty. i inens gl §H8 poiiey and ety nelsevmmt Gactoes o g t0xi Doaies
sepecnidod in it coteming Widand. ’
T 3t X of terem on i o e ST Gl 1 ORI 1A N CURTCHS Yot

e s 2wt Dok, W0 asmes-HAMIFEY Mt SN 15 it By Kt Comnguatyy whesolss Kee Comusany dontrilsimis Ui (00 nwioe st (R el Siadedicy S0 Ui phis aaaoapes 1 infes S Aitiige
B fuababisy tb




Bire, Becters Kond Specintities Limired
Nvies th fmwihed AUHSERNG far the yeur euided 3§ Murcd 2018
AN wonminr are I rgoeies miffion, unless otherwise sested)

Fag the yeas emded  For the yeat embed
3 March 3053 31 Morch 2043

Unscewred losa daken from
- Anvap Bertar e JTed
 Isbaan Bovtas . el
~Dibagamvsr Besiar - %40
- Rurjrd Dt - T80
Unsceneed loan repatd to B
- Anigp ok bERx] 2%
~ $shaan Baetar M b2 1 7%
- Pharam Bas ot : 348
<RajeiBocsse 163 559
Fiaasee Cost on boas taken.
- Ansop Becwat 248 (23]
> ki Beothor LEM (213
» Dkisansvie Boctr (22 L)
~ Kajwi-Bactor o Dok
Qther jncome trom
~ Bukehaa Foads Private {imiied #is 23K
tbers
Rent paid
- Ehasamyiz Becior » no
~ Agasop D 4360 B
+ Balsben Foouls Private Lundod G B
- Anaep Beoser BUF Aon 3im
Conubljuney Chargen Pald
v Subliich Agarecsl EY ] 633
Rent recived
» akebient Foods Privats Limusd i LY
- Mry. Begwors English Oves Limited w8y o0}
- Crenties Agra Fonds Limcd o0 .
Contriduting 16 provident sad ather fuads
- Rashoy Beazor . .33 200
- Neka Gopu (53 e
Expenses Tasurred by the Cotmpany wn ehadf of : . .
- Bakeben Faods Prrvaie Linwsad ) . e
Tateri #lvidendt paid
- Apiwgs Riefior 591% s
- dxbaniy Brecter . b 4 ¥y
© Arg Becaod IRF . 250 i
- Rastesi Bectos 09 bt
 Srig Dosopr hiR 2y
Divident rweeived
« Bkibens Pouds Privans Lonist : TR
Bubary paid
- Rashau Boctor 634 sS40
« N Guges £y oRe

+ Trarmuctives aé ot of Sales Tax (Sorvice Tan/iSY whesever spphicabie.

18 Reluted party balances an ot the yeur end:

— -
Outitunding butances A A Avm
- _Ap Mairch 2m1% 2 Murew 2017 3 Apeit 216,

Trage asd siker paysbirs . .
~ Hakubest Fouds Private Linnited 8t .
- &aibop Revtar X 83t I e
 ishangs Bextas .62 a8z [YH
~ Parvaen Kinae Go (% Wit ik
« Rasian Hoetsr &su #3s 6y
- Neha Cmph iy ER
- Kajna Bocwor . E) .
« Diarasaris Bevear B e uas
Unneruresd toans
- Iakuas Bectw . 3 %51 .
« Apoag Besiar 1257 1248 i858
« Kagnd Bessor 9! R &y
- Dharanvie Beetor - [ #3
Advamces am utier reccivatdes
~ iakebest Foutls Prviee Liiwd 1er Aetix
- Cremcn Agre Fods Lamised T S s
- Mex. Hevtons English Oven Lastaed . sed v
Moo current imvertments
« fhakcben Fainds Frivate Limned n.s - IR (LB L]
« Mix Boewars Exiglisk Ovca Limied a3 50 850
~Crestica Agro Foads Limited 174¢ 1248 1748

| Persouat of Dircston sad rebative petors for Juany :

Persont! Me, Ausop Becin - 3 (Refor noe 23}

Al eenaetivng were mide of nosmal ok i etmiich % owgths jive.

SURUGRAM] #

Wik




Mes, Bextors Food Speciatities Limited

Notes o fimaneial storesents Sor theyrar coded 33 March 0i%
L) spwsunte are in Tupoes witliom, smleis ashersiie shated)

B Key Stansgirial Persenael (KMP)
Anexcp Bt
Ishasn Bestor
Parvoent Kumoz Goct

Masaging Dirccror
Prrestor
Eaccutive Diseerar

€. Relatives of hey mamagenent presqunel Buving tramvmiiogs wit thy Company
Dhsransdr Rajsi H
Besiae® S o Bty

Tk Bevter

ASHop

Repter

Fathey 7

Azip et

gy oot

Mt 1 - i

Raadonl Beae

Ry B ...}

Beothe

Suvir Betor

MLM—“

* Decemsant ot 36 Decxmder 308

Retated catities o KMP

Parinership fivms.
Sunshine Foads

Puble/Private Limited Compunics

Mon. Bactars Cremica Daies Frivate Lot

Tindn Undivided Family
Thursenxis snd Soms {HUFY
Anvep Becwr (HUFY

T dependent Divectors
Nem Chand Sain
Subbash Agurwsl
Atchang Bhargay
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Mry. Bectors Foodt Specialities 1imited
Notes 16 linancial statements for she year ended 31 March 2018
Al amounts are 1 rupres-aullon, untess athers e stated)

49 Share-based puyment sarrangements

A. Description of share-based payment asvanpements

i. Share gprion programme {eqoity-seitled)

On 30 June 2017, she Company established shay: option programme that entitie cenain emplovees of the Company 1o purchase shares i the Compam. Under
these plans, holdets of vested optiens e eotatiod to purchise shares a the exetiise price of the shares a1 respective date of grant of oplions. The key terms and
condsmons 1ekated 1o the grants ender these plans are as follows, alt options are o be seuled by the dednery of shares

ESQP-schemes Grant Date No, of Options Exercise Vesting Period l'\-'miu conditions
Price
Eraployees Stoek Option Plan « 2017 (Grant 1) 30-Jum-2017 42951 349:24 |2 years anid 3 months [Service condiians
senvace from gran
Employees Stock Option Plan - 2017 (Gram 3 30-dun2047 21920 349.24°13 yems and O months [Servze condinons
service from grant

On 14 July 2017, the Company modified share option programme by entitling grant holders of the Company for bonus shares in the Company in the ralk of

1y
ESOP schemes Grant Date No. of Options Exercise Vesting: Period Vesting conditions
Price

Emplovees Stock Option Plan - 2017 (Gramt 1) 30Jun-2017 85,902 FHLA2 12 yems and 9 months {Service eonditions
service from grant

Employees Stock Ophion Plan - 3617 (Gram 2) 02617 33.840 §74.62 3 years and 9 months {Service conditions
service from grant
st

B. Measurement of fair values

i. Equitysseitled share-based pstyment areangements

The far vajue at yram date 15 detcrmned using the Black Scholes Model as per an independent valuer's repon. having taken i conswderanon the market
prce bewnp the Jaest svardable doatng price prior to the date of the gran, exercise price being the price payable by the emplevees for exerersng the opuon and

other assumptions 3 annexed bckow

Eniployecs Stock Employees Stock '
Option Plan - 2017 - | Option Plaa - 1017
§Gram 13 {Geant 2)
St-Mar2018 31.Mar 2018

Farr value of options ar gramt date 124.01 124.01
Emerprise value pes share ar grant date 34708 708
[Exercuse price ar the prant date 34924 34924
Exercise price after bonus issue 1182 17462
Expected volautuy tweghted-average) 34.11%, 34 11%
Expected hife {weighted-average} 2years 3 years
Expecied dividends 027 427%
Risk-free imterest rate thased on povermment bods) 6.36%] 6. 3%
Expected voladuy his been bined on an ¢ of the | 1 volatihity of the Company's share: prce, p fasly cver the h } perod

£, Recoacilingion of omstamding share ogioas

comaensenate wish the evreaed wim The expecied term of the instruments has been based on historeal experence and genesad aption behavior

Eive mumber amd wenghted-n ersge veruse prices of share splians under the share opiion pregramme were a3 futiows

Namber uf aptions

M March, 2018

Frophovaes Sk U

Dprsony vubtarding o o hie begmnmg of the vear

Mhd Eystrans prased bty the von

Ydd Opuons wiorgiond dun s bonsodine

Weighted average
CAevise price
3 March, 2018

871 324
FUSTH (192N %41
140,742 174.62 .

Enercrsshle as gt 31 Narch S

Fhe vptions ouwstandoy at 3 March 2008 bhad an exervise prave of Ry 13462 and o weighted-average contiaoniat e of T fevears

. Eapense recoguised in ssatement of profit and loss

Fat the detnis o8 the refated anplovee beacfit expemies see moie 37

dhhs spuace daes been anesstioaaliy fodt Rk
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Mrs. Bectors Fuad Specialities Lingited
Nutes 10 financind stastasents for' thie year ended M Murch 2018
(AR amsnats ave i rupies million. s oteratie satadi

3 Financial instrumems ~ Faiv vatues and vk management

A, Financisl iostoumenats by gatepories :

Ascounting classificarians wnd Gove s alues

As at 31 March 2018

As at 37 March 2017

As st | April 2016

EVIPL _ AmesisedCon  FVEPL _ AwetisedCost  FVTPL  AmortisedCost
Financind asyets
Nen-current loans . 3163 - 32.66. . 2418
Other non-currént financial agsots . v.68 “ on y s
lnvestments. [N} - 24,26 B 162.70 -
Teade recvivables - 67242 - - heth
Cash and cash equivalents - LR SR - . 5568
Bank batances other than cash and cash equivatenis . 506 - - 3356
Crtont ke . . - . 1508
Onhrer current fixmncral sssets 632 %082 A6 181 322
670 204,42 A2 153,81 £73.22
Financial Hinbilities
Non cuerent borrowings . 956,93 - 35065 - 17625
Shost term oronings - 26273 - 165.59 . 19188
Trade pavables . 3T . 35647 . 23887
Orher firancial Jiobilities 490 _29078 : 11068 - 13238
190 189628 - Wi B 74603
Fairvalae hierarchy
This section explaing the judy and esti made in o iy the fasr valuses of the financiat instruments that are:
{a) recognised and nseasured at fair value and
(b3 mesured o ansernsed cost sad Sor which fair values wre disclosed i the financal
To provide an dndication sbout the relinbulity of the nputs used i derernung faw value, the Company bas classificd its finsncial ¥ o three levels prescribed under i Jnd AS 11}
An explanation of each level follows undermenth the able :
Financinl assers und fiabilities mensured at fair value - Fair vatue mensurements
. Az #8130 Mareh 2018
Partieulars Level Lavel? Lowel Totst
fnvesanenty .
Investrwnt w cquay shares and totual funds 048 « B 018
Liermvinives
Forsmn exchanse forward comracts (et - 182 - 162
Assets and linkilities which are measured st amortised cost for which fair valies are discloted
Pacticutars i
Leyeld Level2 Level3 Touni
Finnncinl axsts
Nonwcusren loans « - 3183 31,63
Orher noswcurren fmancial assers - - 963 9.6%
Trade fecivables . - 67242 47242
Cash and cash equivaleny . . 218} S1.81
Dank bolances ather thin cash and cash exivalents - . 48,06 38.96
iryent 1 pae - - 9082 9082
Foua) faancinl asseis - : WAz $03.42
Financial fiahilithes
Non vsserast borrowings . 3603 45693
Shaer term borsiwings - - 20173 262,73
Trade pavables - . 37587 37887
Ui Guinesal tabilines - . 290 3% 2975
"ota) financial Habilities - . 18%86.28 LR%6.28
Fisneial sivets and fabilities measored ot fsiv value - fair value measarements
Particalars : Az 3 Maréle 2017
. favel3 bevet2 Levet3 Toai
PPN YRR AL
rtetoment o iy shares wad mutal funds 48.36 . - 48.26
Ixrivamys
Frosvis o oy fere aed ceapracss - 2418 2.0
Ansets and Biabilities nhieh are measuced sEamartised codt for which fair values are disclosed
Particubars As ) 31 Mareh 2047
Levet) Leveld Leved$ Toual
Financial nsvers
Noagurint ksans - - ilee RNoe
ity non-curten Soxinl sers . - 02 L&
Trade recenables - . 6497 36597
£ ash 2nd cash aquealents - . CHTHR 1153
Bk badiowas othier thin £adh nd cah oyuivalents & . 4890 8,98
Cament loang v - 437 437
Otbser coezent Savmeral aweore : : 263X 16,28
Total financial wets - . 860,18 Lbo. 11
Financial abilites
Nof curront boreswngs - LY .05
Sixw? term bossonungs - . iok fo ;.530
Trade pavables - B EATY 4 Jfud7
Orhee financed badibars - FEN o HSos
Yo Tl Hahefivien N W7 54




Mrs. Bectors Food Speriafities Limited
Noses 1o financial statements for the year ended 3 Mageh 1018

L3 cancinnts arc i vspecs mitlion s ot e statedi

Financial assets and Rabilities measured at fair value - fair value measurcaments

Particutars Asw M March 2016

Level] Leve? Levet3 Yous
Ivecomrenis -
Investment 1 erpaty shates-and mutsal funds [ &3 - - 10270
1ervasives
For forwand contracts - AL b 1l

Assets and liabilities which are mensured at amostised cost for which fair valuts sve disclosed

Particulars Asv.at 31 March 2016
Level | Levet? Lével 3 Toinl
Finaneial assers
Non-canrent loans . - 2418 4.8
Osher non-curren Hinances assels - - 322 p ¥
Trade seceivables - B 441 3 44131
“ach and cash equrvalonts - . 6568 o568
Bank balances othes than cash and cash equsvalents . . 44 S 44,56
Current loans - - 36 08 508
Orher coren finsncial aveets : : 5822 s
Tatal financial assets - - 673,22 87322
Fiunncinl liubilisies
Non carrent borrowings - . 17628 178,38
Shon 12m borrowings . - 194 §3 19183
Tiade payables . . 24887 24887
Orher Fancaal habtities - - 13238 13238,
Total financial liadilities . - 146,03 74603
Level 12 1.evel 1 haerarchy mcludes financsal mstruments incasard usog ginaed prices? NAY published.
Level 2: The fais vafee of financial wstruments thar are not traded e an active marker is di d using vak o which the use of observable marker data and rely as
hutle as possible on entny-specific estimates. If all ssgnificant mputs sequaized 10, fair value.an are obgervable: the i is inchidod an fovel 2
Leved 3: if one or-more of the sigmiicant mputs e nod based on ebxervable marker data, te: s meluded ja Jevel 3. This s the case for untisted equaty Secuntiex.

There are no ransters detween Jeved | and leved 2 during the veu

Valuiion precess

The finance depanimen of the Company pecforms the valuarions of financid assers and habilities required for financial reporing, pusp dor hevel 3 Far sodios The Compuny selies on them for
wstruments measered vsing fevel 1 valuation The Company waing quoted prive’ NAV’s published. fiv the L ¥ d usiarg Fesel B vatues, the Company obazins the
valuation from the bank from whom the dernatives are taken. The team reparts direcily 10 e Chef finasensd officer (CFO) Disoassuns et vaksatmns processes and resolis aee heid barween the
CHO and the finance wan arfeass once evary year in hine with shie Company’s reponing penods

Changes in levet 2 3nd 3 fanr values are analysed at the end of each reponting peniod

Fair value of financial assets and Labilities measured pt amortived cost

A% at 31 Mareh 2018 Asoant 31 March 207 Asat) April 2006
Carryving ampunt Faiv value arrying amonnt Fuir s alne Carrving ameunt Fair vatue
Fimncial assets
Non-vuirast foans M oba i 6l 32 6e 3206 2414 2418
Onher acn-cutrent firancal asels BN R O¥ an i E el m
Trade vacervables LYAEM 03242 AR 97 S 31 34 441 3t
Cash wisd cash equesalents 4981 BEE 12773 12774 0% 68 68 68
st Bafarces cther than cash and vash aqunslons 800 AR 1 X890 RS & 1] 44 S 4 Xe
Coreent loams . . 137 437 36,08 36.08
Uit carsent Baaned st o) ¥ 90 83 76,25 RUPAS X8 22 822
904,42 20442 %6600 866,10 47322 67322,

Financial abifives »
Nog varant boarewsngs $46 93 A8 43 36635 26 65 176 2% 11638
Khars 1eem borrowings w275 2027 68 5% s S8 19483 . IRy
Tiads pavables 37487 37487 o d? o 47 24857 24887
Enbser cuesent fmancd Lobilaies 290,78 294 18 HRAY PIXOX 13238 13238

1A86.28 1A86:38 99739 b4 74003 73603

e carnmg amouits of nade reconables. casti and cask cquivalenss, other hank Solunces, cusiant bxs. other cavent Tugand mesers sherttzioy boiagze ke pavables oifier cott
fimnons! Bahilisies, e vonndared 1w ha the some 3¢ their fair vatoes, doe 1 their shon-term matose Nomcuseent b N 0PI approsssats to the far catnes Accordmngly the same has
ot Bicar thscounted

The fair vahes for secunny deposits were caleulated baved on cash flows diseouned sy 2 curvent fondioy ee They are dassedied 3 kol 3 faur sadues o the o vabuee Tesarchy die 1o the
sxchision of wrdsssrcable mpas rochadon conmterparny onrdit

uUnd{:ﬂAm %®
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Moy, Bretars Food Speciakities Limited
Notes o fnanciad stntements for the year ended 3) March 2018
LA amoians are in rupecs miilion. saless stirwise vaicd)

11, Finandal visk managemem

Risk management framenork

The Company’s nisk pdicres s estabilish ‘mdemfym!udgxummkedb;dn(onm,ummrﬂmmdmmwnmmcguwﬂmmnw
durds and procedures. Bms 1o siintain a discph ‘wwmmmmmmnw&lmmﬂmwmmuw&w

The Company’s msmal avdisor how b mme(muymgmmmmmamnmamm

mnmnwfnmmknrdamnt&nns&sfncdbym:(‘mwy knﬂnﬂAMlmdmAesMngﬂuﬁadﬁwmdnﬁ o e resulisof

which are reported 19 the management

The Company has exposire o the follvwng nsks arvemy from financul mstruments
- eredit sk,

- hquadity risk, and

- mashed pisk

The company’s activities expose it 1o marker nisk. bquudity nsk and credit sk in onder to nvninvise any adverse effects on the financisl perfe of the " & jve financial
instruments, sich ax foreign exchange fovvearid conracts are entered 1 bedge cortin forenn v sk Blerivatives are nsed exchively for hedging pusposes and not 35 tading or
speculative nstrumoents.

i. Credit risk

Cradit risk 15 the sisk-of financial loss 1o the Company if x cusiomer of cowerpaity w3 fioancial mstrument Tails w wices fts comractual ohiigations resulbng in 3 financial loss 1o the Company.
Credit 1isk arves prisscipally from trade weceiables, dotivative financiol imtruaberits, lodnis and advinces, cxih 3 coshioquivilents and Seposts ith bank,

Trade receivables

‘The Company’s esposure o credit sisk is miluenced mawly by the wdvichesd ol of each L 1 Al congiders: the facrors thas may influence the ¢redis nsk

of s customer dase, weinding the defauit nsh o e mdusies and country m whish customers operate

The Companv estabhishes an ol for sy than zey s d creda-losyes in tespest of trade snd other receivablas. The manscement uses a simplified approach for the

purpose-of comp of expopted credi Josy for trade bles. As g anolysrs b p d w.cach repoaing dme,

The risk g Fexs establish acrmwxywdauhmhmhmcmusmwm' mwmbtﬁxemeawmmu-dddmom&
) emd&mm are-tifered. The Compainy’s veview iictudes, external ratiogy. i they arc availsbh f ndust 3 b inetligence. Sake

blistied for cach and d annoally. Ay sales excoeding thove Mimes requere approval T ihe bt iate: suthority as per policy. In i coodis riek,
cusfomuees ste grovped acconding 1o their crodit charactensies. cluding mmnmmmanu‘mw .tlny mnmmml,&dmwm«m then
peographic tocation. industry, made history with the Company and existeice of previoos fisancal difficulties.

A defauiton a francial asser is when ansmespany il o mu&e pavments within 2 davy when they il due

The Company based on mucinal sssessrent which 18 driven by the i oxg cwnrent facts svalabl hmmmmwmmmwmwmmumm
reveivobles is considered low: The Compaury cvtomates 515 allowance for tade recovable g henme oxpected crodit. loss. ndivi ivabhes which me known 0.be encoliecuble are
written off by reducing the cammyiog ameount of tade 1ecervabile and the amonnt of the ks 1 recopmerd w the Statemen of Profit and Loss within ather expenses.

Cash angd cash equivadents and deposits with banks
Cash.and cash aquivalents of the Company are bebd with banks which hase bagh coodn ranng. The Company considers that s cash and cash equivalents have Jow credit nsk based on-ihe
external credis rtings of the counterparties

Seewrity deposits

Thi Company futrishod secunty deposits 1o 1ts tessors for obesiniig the prevuses on lease and margin money deposits. « beaks. T Compuen considers that it dlpucuhuvulo\vcrm usk of
neghpible sisk of defauk a3 she parties are well estblished entities and have strong capacity o mevt the obligations. Alse;: whire the: Company:éxpects that there is S ancenginty in the recovery
of deposit, & provides For suitable imparrivens on the same

Particulars Asmt As ot Af at
31 Maieh 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 1016

Financial assets for which loss allowance iy measured using Lifetime Eapeorel Crvdit fonsesy

Tiade Revervables 82 81 3297 A1) X8

Recoucilintion of logs allowance provision

Paitigubars : Amauny

Lass Afvaance pst § Apxil 2016 .86
Chanpe i Loss allowande .44
Loss Allowance an 33 March 2017 ) 700
Chawsgee n Logy aflowanes . : 3¢
Loss Allowance on 31 Mareh 2618 10,39

i Liguirlits vish
Lagunlity risk is the ok i sthe Cimmps Gl oncnonter et w mestmy e obsanions associared with sty Stnciat Nabilities that are setthod by dedivermg canh o ankahis fisecasl asser

The Uompam?s spproieh o nibtigeng hauadic & R emonrs, a9 far as posoble that a will ave sufficiens hapuidity: Ko eet-its liobilies whien shew arg du: under bt poonal and swessed
conditions. withou! incurrmg, unacceplabic Iosses o0 nskang damage 1o the Conpany s wpuianos

Prondert Bigundiy nsh rphes w sullicwnt vash and sosdetalile secuttnsy wint e uﬁh Thony-generatid. from: op o meet oblng; when dyr and 1o chwe out
market i D jo the denamse mattee of fhe andofvng busiesess, Compan sy Tenbilics Mﬂyh ] under d eredn bres
3 rdling 1 of de Commpam’s Uynidity posion 1comprisnng the stidians b facili th- a0 cash. squivalents o the basis. of sxpected o flows

Thas us gemerafly camed out 8t focd fevel m the operanng compames of the Uompany i sccordance with pucm and bm set by the Companty. Thase lmits sare by Jocaton 1o take W
account the hgwdity of the market in which the st oparotes I addion. die Crarpasn s hguedin: managemen pidicy involves projeciing cash tlows in magor ¢usroncies and considering the
level o iquid assers necessany s mevt Buese monitonnyg batance sheet fgudt s agamst wrcosd and extersl rogidatory anst i diodst phims
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T



Mrs, Bectors Food Speciatities Limired
Notes 1o financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2018
£l amtomnts gee in pwpees milfion. malcs odberwise stated)

Matarities of finnntial habilities

The folf i arz the 1 condeactual af finance hsbifines 0 he repwiing date The amouns are pooss and undiscounted. mnd exclisde contractoal avsrest pavinents anid
exclude the mpact of nermng ggreemants )

Carrying amount Contractual caxh Rows

As at Torad Upta § year  Between l and £ Morethan § year
- 31 March 2013 wx

Finsnciaf Habilites e
Non curment borrowmss ¥46.93 a3i B4 - &51.77 2%.04
Showt term bosrowngs 262.7% 262.13 26373 - -
Trade pavables 37887 37587 3 e? -
Onher currem financiat labilines 293 63 20868 293 63 - .
Yotal 180118 1.866.06 93428 66377 27004

Carrying amount Contractual cnsh Mows

As Bl Total Upsa | year Between Fand §  More thas § yeur
S Misrgh 2047 N Y

Financial Rabilities 22
Noa cusrent borrowangs 356,68 3o - 32K (5]
Shosr rene borsowangs 16359 165,59 16559 - -
Trade payables o 38647 35547 38647 « -
Orhet current finsncial ishilities §18.68 118,68 L6 - -
Tetal mIs 96238 640,74 328 (LXE]

Carrying sisbunt Contracinal eash Nows

Asat Teial tipto | yeur Between fand §  Move than § year
L Apriams years

Finsncial Fsbilities
Non curren boriowangs 17628 1% 18 . 17628 -
Shart term bovsowings 19133 141 RS 191 3% - B
Trade pavables 243587 857 245 %7 - -
Orher current financial lubdiies 13233 13238 132 38 - :
Total 24803 368 £69.78 17628 -
The milows/toutflows ) disclased m the abkve table rey the ] o d cash flows retating to & i hialsitaticn bl for sk 5 potposes it whith are

not usually closesd but befisre contractual maturity

i, Afarket risk

Marker tisk is the risk thar chamges in iarker preces - such 38 Torengn exchinge rans wnd interest rates - will affect the Company’s income of the vatue of its boldings of fisancial msiruments

The ohyective of market 1sh manayernant i 1o manage and convol miarkat nsk exp witlun scceprabl . while opdi the retism

The Company wes Jervaterss ke o ant om0 marage marker reke oy joconnt of forepn exchange ARl such mansackoes are Carmed ot wehio the wuidehnes st by the Board of

dezectors

Cusreney visk

Thie Comparn 15 evposad 1 foragn currenoy sk op corum iransachons thin are depomunated n 2 currency other than conty's funcronal currency, hence exposure 1o exchange ke Guctiations

antses. The nisk s thist the functionsal carreny vatue of caslt ows will vary as 2 resoh of movenients m wxchange ratey

In respect of orther monctary axsets and habilities d ted Wy foragn ses, the Conpumy’s policy. i 1o ensiere that its ne¥ exp i kopt 2o an accepuabke fevel by buving ot selling

forcien currencies aUsool rates when recessary 1o aikdtess shon-term imbalances

Expesire to curvency risk
The SUMMAn quantitaive Yo ST Jhe SAnan’s IXpesn 10 Currney risk s vepovted sy the management of the company: 1 a5 follows

As at 3 Mareh 2018 . [ 8.1} Eore
Financal asset
Trade recenablvs £22 -
Forward contracis seochables 11388
Towd 207 .
Financial liabilities
P able for capaal asins G 031
Totad .04 51
Net exposuve 1o fureie correnes rvish ) ;&% 19:31)
As s 3 March 2017 vsh two
Financial asset
Trade recen abtes T3 (L)
Forsatd contracts toven ables It .
fowl .00 013
Finaucial levtalitier ‘
Pivable Jor capital desths o0 ot
Toral ¢ 9.01 (X1}
Net exposuve 1o foreign curnency risk Sl 1,43




My, Berturs Food Specialities Limited
Notes 1o finzncial sistemenss for the vear ended 30 March 2018
(Al srmpcsnmans are w2 rapees pulfon. apdos sl suirch

Axart Aprit 2016 usp Euro
Financial asset .
Trade rocenables B (A 8]
. Forward contracty receivables 500 -
Total 123 14
Finnacial Habilities.

Pavable for capital assers - -
Tatal - -
Nt esposure to foreipn currency visk 133, Dis
Senxitivity unalysi .

A reasomably possible stronythoning {weakening) of the Rs. agamst a1l other currencies 36 31 31 March would have sifécied ihe measurement o f ¢ d oy foreign

Prafit orlork. Equity, net of (ax
Pavticulars b W, ) Weakend

31 March- 2018

LS (1% movement) 1290 112901 8.4 (834
BUR (1% moviemeis) {025 (2] 0:18) [T
31 March 2017

USD (1% movenyent) 618 {6.33%) 102 [SRex3)
EUR (1% movenent) DARs {0.0%% 008 L6}

Tnierest rate risk

vt shortek

The Company’s main inresest rate nisk anises fom fong

nmintains mast of s fong term borrowings at MCLR+€ 15% in Rupees. Company his di thie Jong tetm hoans froe Seie Dk of India, HOFC: and 1CIC] Bank.

Exposure to interess rate.rivk.

The mieresi rate profile of the Company s interest-heanng fnancist

as reported 1 the manayement of the Cospany is as follows

s with vanable ies, winch.expose:the Company cash Bow o inkerest rate risk: Company nommalty

. ’ Asmonnt
Panlicutars N March 2018 M March 3037 | ApiR 2016
Fixed-rate instruments
Fnancual assets 5.4 o8 31 1336
Frnsaneral inbikives 125.02) (.64 U6.41)
3432 2067 EL
- “Amiownt
Particolars arih 2018 veh 2017 016
Yariahle-saie inpsoments
Financial asscts - - .
Firancia) lishifities 131288 36201 1395 803

dans LSz,

J2L30,

Fair value itivity analvsis for fised-rate instruments

The Company dovs not atcouns fod soy Dised-tate fimmoal assers of finncat fabnhiies ot fan value trough profiv or foss Thersfore, 5 change it imterest rates s the repovting due would s

it preodin or doss

Lash flow senvifivity anlysis fror variublerae instraments

A ressonabdy possible change of H&F basis pomts m mietusy rates st e reponmg date would tave mcrensed fdecreasedi aquity. and profil of Jogs by the amounts, shown below. This analvsis
szanmes e af} pther sanables, i parnicular Bxteign euirency exehange 1ates, remain consian

Profit oy fess (aet of 1ax)

INR 1M bp incovase 100 by decrease
31 March 218
Wrsablo-rdie mstnanens (8:5%) K35
Caxh Bow. senvitivity (ne1) {338 558
31 March 2047
Vanabbe-sate swteaments 41308 pX
Cash fhow senvitiviey net} (GX= 368

R AROMEE

A1 Capital manasgemend

The Compann s policy 15 10 masmtses 3 stroag (apdal base $0 26 10 mantos mvenor, creditos amd market confidenve and us sustain Tusire development of the b .3 he

renusen on capinal on 3 veardy tasis as welt ox the level of dividends w ordman: shareholders whach i green based on approvesd divatend policy:

Thie bovrd ef diresssis sevks o masetain 3 balanes between the higher retrns thar pught be possrbie with nghey kevehi of Bovrowings 2o the sdvantapes and securay:aliorded by 2 sound capral

iRy

The company capttal xonsists of cquity annbutable w ety boldess thar mcludes-equity share capaal. seserves, reisined eammings and lony term bomowings

Asar March 31, As st March 31,

AsatApeil L 2016

w08 7

Toral habadiies 134747 b Xl 450
1253 Cash and cash caurvalent % 1] 12771 (DX
Adjustest ney debs (a) 1.293 60 468.9] 33583
o . o -
Forah equire (B 2,882 46 237380 208739

i RSN
£ amal gearivgs e (ahy 0 M 20.43%% [
As 3 pan of s capital axsmagement polioy thy Company snsures compiiance with ol covermans abg ather copaat eatoned s e ol




Mrs, Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes:to fianncial stutements Tor the vear ended 31 March 2018 ‘
AN amwpmsts arv it rupees miflion, nnfess utlern ise sxaveds

52 First Time Adoption of Ind AS

A sttt 2 these e the Commpany's 151 Tiaancnd stsements prepased o acverdance with Ind AS

The accomting poheses set sut in note 2 have been apphed in prepanng the financial suatements for the year ended 31 March 2018. the s fc d n these fi ¥
statements for she year ended 31 Newech 2017 and i the prey of an of g Ind AS of fi !y at b Apnl 2016 {the Company's dase ofuammcn]

i prepanng s opening Ind AS of i p the Company has adjusied d-previously m fi 1 prepated in wuh indian GAAP
{presious GAAPY An explanation of how the from previous GAAF to Ind AS has affecied rhe Company’s fi ) £ at pesle and cash tows i set oul m the

tollewie sables and the notés that accompany the 1ables

Excmptions and exceptions svailed
Set.out helow are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional and datry exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS

A, Ind AS aptionnl exemptions
ti)  Deemed cost

Ind AS Hof permuts a firsi-ime adopier 10 elect (o continue with the carrying vake for all of its property, plamt and oei asr BLELY i a5 a1 e date of
wansaxw 0 Ind AS. measured 35 por previons GAAR and used that as its deerned cost ag a1 the date of ton after auking y ad) for ¢ issioning habilitines. This
exemplion tan also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 intangible Assets.

Acgondingly, the Group bas clected to all ofiss properiy. plam and equip and intangible assets at their previous GAAP vanrying value
(i) Leases
Appendis C to tnd AS 17 reguires an enlity o assess whether a or ins alease . o | with Ind AS 17, shis assessment should be carned out at the mception

of the comract or armangement. Ind AS 10T provides an opton to make this ussessmont on the bass of iicts and orrcumstances existing at 1he date of wanstmion 1 knd AS, exceps where the
effect s expecied fo be not matenal
The Company has clected 10 apply this Jor such

(hi} oy osiments in subsidiaries and associstes

tal AN EG1 persmis a tust-ume adoprer to chuase the previous GAAP careving smount at the enhiny's date ol transitico 1o od AS o the 3 m the subsidury and its Ci
s the deemed cos

Accordmaly. the Company has opted 16 measare 18 investment o subsihiory 3t deerned coss 1.2, pruvious GAAP zarryme amuvng
B, Ind AS mandatory exceptions

(it Extimates
Arventity's estunates in accordance witl Ind AS a1 the date of wansitiof 1o/ Ind AS shall be consistent with estimuses made for the same date i sccondance with previous GAAP tafler
wdpustments fo reflect say difference m accounting polictes), unless there 1 objeciive evidence that those sxtimates wete i esvor

ind AS estimates as at | Apnil 2016 are comsistent with the estimates as a the same date made in confisemity with previous GAAP,
The Company made estinaies fur Ivestment i mstruments carvied ut-fair vaho though profit and foss (FVTPLY and impuement of financial assets based on expecied eredu Joss modef
accardance with bad AS at the date of tansition as these were not requared under previous GAAP

iy Classifiention and mensorement of financial assets

fadd AS 107 reqnres an ensty 1o assess classil ant of financral asaets o0 the bases of the (acts and crcumstances that exsst ap the date of tranution & ind AS

iB#) Ue-recogaition of finuncial nssets and linbilities
tod AS 4 requres a fisst-nime adopter 1o apply the de-recagninon provisions. of Ind AS 109 prospectively for s 2 on of after the date of ansition 1o tnd AS. However.
frad AN 161 allows 2 fast. nme adopter-te apply the de-recognmon wquln:mcms wlnd AS 10‘? setrospectively fiom a date of the cmm s choosing, pﬁmdcd that the mi‘ummmn sweded o
apphy Ind AS 110 H } assets and financial liabils d s a resuly of past ansactions was obtained at the ime of inmally ac g for those

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of’ Find AS 100 prospectively from the date of transition 30 Ind AS

. Reconcdintions between previous GAAP and ind AS . R
fod AS 191 perores an ¢ty o meanede equitt | o1l comprehensive income and cash flows for priew perods. The subossing tables reprosen the 1ec from GAAP o Ind
AN .

Regonclingion ol egnity,

Asat | Aprit 2016 s at 31 March 2017
Particutars Note Previous Frausitional Ind AS Previgus Transitional ind AS
GAAP® adjustments GAAP- ad s
ASSE >
Nop-corrent assels
Proys -m plant and equipment 4,10 143785 437 148156 183586 ° 3169 1897 32
Caage theprogress 1 154,04 434 (9308 F15 63 219 1784
I NS E] 1894 - (R . 743
t st anwdet de e B - . N $88
e o sebsrdianies s dssonne 18206 - 182 6 1?43 i
Equty gcconmed muenees 1248 - 7R P74k £7.48
¥ vl asevis
G hoans 2418 B 241F 3260 N
150 Other noecursent foancal assets 3 B 3 (M| .
Cunent fag assels awiy 1377 . 1873 e
Cnher Ben-current gssets 8697 - §6.47 8 21 -
Curvent assets .
nveniones 32 . Y] 22 i . 2ol
Francral issats
1) Incestments [ 02T 31 K6 £ 46 48 20
201 bkt reaenidiles 168 REYIRY hEALE &1 &t So8 97
3004 ke and Cnds vguns sienis H& o 127 R - 12774
200 Bank, Bk ather Wt o e . EED. Y ANy . 880
1] et . e 337 . a3
fvro CHBgr urraas Teany pil sesets PRI} [ : ~~3 ).\: i:i: :)i
fract x4 wta . e 27 o2l - 1208
l‘;(")“;‘\;‘"“ Y. S5.88 164,08 3.261.206 7416 3.635.42




Mrs. Bectors. Food Specialities Limited
Nates (o finnncial datentents for the véar ended 31 March 2018
(A amysnts are v ripees mitlion, wndess etherwise statcd)

Asat] Aprii0is % at 31 March 2017
Previgus Teansitional I AS Providas Tramsitiona) Ind AS
GAAP- Adjextments . GAAP® “adiustmeents
EQUITY AND LIABILITIER
Eauity o
Equity share capuial 28633 . 286,34 286.34 " 23634
Othrer equity 1759 3¢ 1140 177088 1:970.19 1787 1.988.06
Non-current liabilities
Financial hiabulities . . 5
i) Borvowmgs £76.25 . 176,28 I56.658 - 356,43
Long-tenm provistons 2028 ~ 20287 30:63 - 3063
Deferred wx liabilites v} [ 4842 607 449 4501 945 5446
Orher non-chirrent Babilities k] - 35.04 3504 - 3438 34.38
Current linbiities
Financial Hiabilities
{3} Berrowings 191 83 - 165.59 - 165,59
{ii} Trade payabies 245.87 . ey . 35647
{iii) Other fimaneial Babilities 13238 - ¥18.68 . 11868
Oshar cusrens liabilities 243 ’ [21% 21 {329) 1n220 6.36 Hsse
Shit-term provisrons 9 8765 680 106:36 610 11296
Current e habihties {net) 838 - 12:64 ~ 12 54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3.108.30 55.88 1:26 1316 3.83842
*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS ¢ 4 for the p of ihis note
Reconcilintion of to1a) comprebensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017
Particulars Nate Previows Adjusiments lnd'AS
GAARS
Revenue
Revenue f1om operations 2189 357553 13988 681541
Ober income % ] 1544 .49 2333
Total income 589057 14897 65,038.64
Expeases
Cost of matenals consumed 9 130829 4.3 330088
Exise dury ? . 139.68 13968
Purchase of stack w trade 10572 - 105.72
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 2330 10.33) 2303
Employee benefits expense H FH0? .39 76868
Fmanee posix 0 4428 45.64) 3% 54
D ration and ssaticin. exy 4,10 211,08 933 2204t
Onher expenses 3 1,073 37 (0.06) L0731
Totat Expenses LEEMAT 135:88 $.67045
Profit/ {loss) before tax 56,40 12:09 36359
Tax expeuse:
Current tax HASS B 144 538
Deferred 1ax eredit [ £34h 42 08F
Profilf {lossy for-the pretod (A} 24828 197 253.23
Other comprehensive income
tems shat will nol be reclassified 1o profif or loss
Remsiaagement of defined benefit phas i 23 §2 3%
Income nx relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans . 483 083
Total ather comprebensive income for the vear {B) . i R4 (1.56)
Tutal crmprehensive incmne far the vear (A » 153 245,26 641 23167

[z



Mrs. Beetors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to financisl statements for the venr ended 31 March 2018
(Al cimonnts are 1 pupees nifthon mrtess aificrisse satedi

32

Reconcitiation of 10al equity as'at 31 Moreh 2007 anid 1 Aprfl 2016

Particutars Notes teo firs:-

) 4 - .
lime adoplion 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Total equity isharcholder’s fands) as per previous GAAP 228653 204573

Adj { net of tax impact) :

Fair value of forwand contracts 2 103 284
Measurenwent of investment i equily shares at Gir value 3 {0.38)- 4.56
Rent equalisation reserve 5 023 019
Capstal of generat b 2 cost 10 3352 282
Total adjustments 6.41 1146
Net impact brought forward from Opening balance shewt ilde N
Total equity as per Imd AS 222440 2.05%.19

.

Reconcilintion of fotal comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Particubars Notes 10 f:::lime Amennt
Profit after tax under previous GAAP . 245.26
Adinstments { nel of tax impact) ¢
Acturial Joss reclassitied to other comprel 1ncome 1 f 3¢
Farr value of forward contracts 2 303
Mensurement of investment in equity shares af fait value 3 {038
Rent equatisation reserve 5 0.24
Capuali of general b ing cost 10 152
Totaladiustmenty .97
Profit after fax as per lad AS 333
Other Comprehensive Income {136
Total Comprehensive income for the vear 281.67
fmpact of Ind AS adoption on the stements of cash flows for the yenr caded 38 March 2007

. Previous Adjustments nd AS

Particulars GAAP.
Net cash flow from operaning activilies 47887 800 A86.93
Net castr flow from investing activites (49721 (1483 (31204
Net cash fiow from financmg activitics 8041 677 37.18
Net incrensef{decrease} in cash and cash equivalenss 62.07 0.00 6207
Cash and cash equinvalents as st § Apnd 2016 03 68 - £8.08
Cash and cnsh cquivalents ns at 31 March 2017 127.78 0.90 12778

Notes to first-time sdoption:

R,

ement of p pleyment benelit

ohligations

Under Ind AS, remvasurement 1o actuarinl gans and losses andthe retirn on plan assets, excluding amounts incloded in the rel interest expense on the et defined benefit habuhity wre
vecognised s other comprebensive incone muidad of profit o loss. Under the previous GAAP, these temeatireiment were forming part of the profit of Toss for the year As a result af this
change. the profit for the sear (net of tax) ended March 31, 2017 merdased by R 156 (R, 239 groas). There is no impact on the sotal equity 8s af 31 March 2037

Fair vadsation of derivitives
Under the previons GAAP, mespect of fornzn currens receivable, the Company entered intor forward contracts 1o hedge the fueign cartency recenables A 4 resalt. the coampany osed 1
amortse the presmum and sestate the formard contriscts as per the requisement of AS-H

e’ 3

Linder I AS, denvatives which are ot designated as hednmg seatoaments are far vitlued wirh ¢ changes bemg g m oprodit vr bass Total ety a5 ot 38 March 2037
snereased by Rs. 91 (1 Aprl 206 - Rs 3891 Due 10 sind fane ssfuausinn thie proofit for the vear (et of tax) vnded 31 March 2017 mereased by R 303 1R 2 03 growsy as 3 resul of vhe tan
salue shange Correspondiegly. asacts for foraed exchange contracts wsed Bir hedging creaned under prevaus GAAR wercased by R 7 78 a5 31 March 2007 jacar | Apedd X030 coduvvd
by Rs S 721 and other cpsrent habihin for saamentssed premsom created under provesns GAAR by Ry 279 as 31 March 2047 tax at 1Aprl 2086 Re 11 66) gt reversed

lavesiment in equity shares 81 fair valoe ) .
Linder the Dchan GAAP, invesintents s eqanty shises were measured it lwer of cost or o valine Under Ind AS. these invesinionts are reipnred o be measured a1t vatue throwugh protit
o foss The tesdting fass valie changes of these 1 evtments Fave been recogased i retasned carmngs as at the dote of transiton and subsequently i the prafit os loss fu the year ended 31
Masch 2017

Fhe profit for the vear {net of tax) ended 31 March 2017 reduced By Rs 038 (Rs O 59 grossy A hinglv, there 15 an ease in the Totad wpaty by Ks 3 3% se st 31 March 2017 41 Apee
2016 < Rs 430 watha A7 w-sahue of iy by Rs 6 4t os at 31 March 2017 (Rs. 6.98.a8 at.1 Apni 2610y

P ¥




Mrs. Bectors Faod Specinlities Limited
Notes to financin) statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al inmounts are in rapeex mitlion, saless otdieraiswe voted)

-

Property, plast and cauipment - copital subsidy ) L S o
The Company has been swarded 'with Export Promotion Capital. Gramt (EPCG) and Technology: Upgrad: Ex of Food under } \'MH}
scherie which ate conditional upon import of centain assets and puschase of plant and machinery in 4 spmﬁd repion tespeciively. Under previous GAAB, such nmal grints on: actount o
duty wavets were bemng aeited off with thé cost of the Tesp stem of property, plant and et

-

Under lnd AS.the transfer of from the go in the form-of 2 waves of expensesiduty needs 1o be | d for as jo A the duty waived of under
EPCG Scheme and NNIFP scheme has been recognised- as government grant by debiting the propeny, plam wnd __p'm with & oomapmdm mdn 10 defcmd income. The deferred
ncorne s released 0 Stément of profit und Toss in propurtion of depreziation charged over the usetul fife of the s,

4

Accordingly. propeny, plant and equipment us at 31 March 2017 hay been increased by Rs. 44,18 (as at. 1 Apeil 2016 Re. 43.71) 0ot of dated. depreciation. with 2 P
mcrease in deferred income under other non-cusrent lisbilities by Rs. 34.38 a5 st 31 March 2087 (as .t 3 mzﬂlbﬂi 35:04) sind wder caher current liubilies by Ks.9.79 a8 at 31 March
2617 iax at 1 Aprf 2016 Rs 8.66). Further during 1he vear ended 31 March 2017 depreciation increased by Rs. 0,08 vitly a comespondding incrense in othier intome by urwinding of deferred
weome There s no impact on the total egony and proiit

Rent eqnalisation respeve

Under tnd AS, a Company s not fequired to rental expense on straight line basis if the escatation rate is-finked to generg! inflation A dingly, rem lisation reserve crented
uswder where the esealation rate 15 finked to genenal inflation e hay been reversed under Ind AS. Actondingly. the profit. for the year (mx of @ ended 31 March 207 has
mrezmdbvks 023 (Rs. 0. 3% grossd due 10 revarsal of rent equali d ms.on A

Cansequently, the total equaty as at 31 March 2017 has increased by Rs. 043 (T Apni 2016 Rs 0.19) with a comesponding decrease in other current habshibes by Rs. 0.64 as o 33 March
2017 (Rs 0 2% a5 m 1 Apnl 2016}

Delerred tax Liabilisies {uet}

Thus sepresents the deferred e mnpact of Ind AS admstments
Excise duty *

Under the previous GAAP. 1evenue flom sale of praducts was presented net of excise duty. Under Ind AS, revenoe finm sale of goods & presented gross of excise duty. The excise duty pard
1% presemed o past. of oot of goods sold. This change has resulted in an increase in 1ot revenve and toralexpenses for the previons year by Rs. 139,68 There is no impact on the 1otal equity
and profit for the year.

Arraogement containing Irases
Under prestous GAAR; mmemmm $id not ke The fegal farmofku:mmfmbmdmwkﬂmdfamhmcg Job work srrangemens. Under Ind AS, any
arrangament (even of not fueally smmmed as. !ease) which convey. tight T use-an auset in cetum for a payment ves of payments are identified as.leases provided vertain conditions are
et Incase such are ed:to be inthe nature oﬁusu. such wrangesients e m:mmhols ¢ iy or Gperating leasis as per e reguirenients of Tnd'AS

17, Leaves

The Company has identified cortain job-work amangements 1 be i the nature of aperating lease and accordingly these have beenr olasssfind as openating fease anmangement As a result,
revenpe has decreased by Rs 43,60 with a correspanding increase m other incame. Theee is no mnsct on fotad eauity and profis

Provision for-sates return ¢

Unider previous GAAP, provisive for exp E sales retorm was d-for by reducang margin from the revémie with & covrespording redy n ivable. Under Ind AS e
same s grossed up by creating a provision for sales retum. Accordingly, revenue forthic year cnded 31 March 2017 got diiced by Rs. 471 wnha oy ted i cust of goods.
Funber.trade receivable axm 31 March 2017 gotanercased by Rs. 6.00{as 21 | April 2016 Rs, b,(\O) wuh » spondiag inc n prove for-sales return

Capitalisation. of general borrowing cost
Under previows GAAP, e Company capiinlised the borrowng cost only for specdic borrowings with the cokt of the respéctive fixed assets Linder I AS. i Company 15 required 1

caprinhise borraswving cost.on goneral bortowsags as well slomy with speesfic borrowangs w case of quabifving assets. A Ry, mteress cost =30 Rs. S04 for the vear ended 31
|

March 2017 has been caprtabsed with a ponsdig imcrease w dey charged dunng the vear by Rs 023 (mequml_\. Hhie 1otk equity a3 ut 31 Maveh 2017 hag increased by Rs
B34 Apal 2610 Rs Y8

Fusthee. Propenty. plant & equipsment wcreised v Rs 7 51 as a0 31 march 2017 (Ra mif as a1 1 Aprid 2016) net of Bepreciation amd caprtal work--progress increased by R 2 19 (Rs 43) as
at b Aonl 2016

Retuined carnings
Retimsred earnamgs s w1 Aprd 2016 has been:adiasted comsiguent 1o the above Ind AS transidion adjustments,

Other comprehensive income

Under dnd AS. alf itens of income and exprense ircogmsed i a period. should be mncluded in profit or Joss the period. unless ax«zanalml fequires oF penTita clienae, flems of income ami
expestse that are tet recogmsed i prodit of loss bot are shosen s the ststement of profit and loss as "oiher compeehersive income” of defined benefit plans.

The vt sof wtber comprehenatve momme dul not exast utider previous GAAR

| ™



Mrs. Bectors Foud Speciatities Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vesr ended 31 March 2018
AN cmwnsnes ure in rupevs wpilion, wiless sbersise sotedi

83 The speaified bank notes {SBN) a8 defined under the nenlicanion wseed by the Mansin of Finance. Depariment of Feenomic dated 3% November, 2616 are no longer in existence Henee, the
Conpany has nut provsded the contesponding disclosires i prescisbed 0 Schedute Hi 16 the Companies Act. 2016 The dhsclosure of SBN mmade m the Snancal statements for 3 1March

T s as tollows

Closing cash in hand as an 3 November 206
{+1 Permitied recaipts

=) Permutied pavments

t-3 Amount deposited it Banks

Closing cash 1 hand as on 30 December 2016

*For the purpose of ths disclosure, the term ‘Specified Bank Nates shall have the same
Department of Economic Affairs number $.0. 3407 (E) dated 3 November 2016

54 Details in respect of dividend remitied during the year in foreign currency :

Number of non-cesident sharholders*

Number of shares held as.on record date®

Amount remined during the year*#

Financial year to which dividend pertains®

* Exclud: idem shareholders to whem dividend is paid in indian fapees

# Includes amount of Rs. 6.1 Million remitted during the year pertaining to the year 2015-16,

o
n

Corparate Social Responsibility
31 March 2018

ar Gross amount sequired 10 be spent by the C omp.m\ durmg t|u. year s Ry § 83

«  SBNs*  Other denonunation Towl
notes
175 139 434
1447 14.47
3 39
275 10.58 13.33
- 1.69 169,
ded in the of the G of Indba, in the Muvsiry of Finance,

For the year emled
31 March 2013 31 March 2017
2{n0s.) 2ines.)
1227 643
- 12.27

- 2015-16 & 2016-17

by Amount spent dunay the yeur on p g eV ‘ v, heaith care, erad of poverty amd providimg scholaship 1 studens

Particulars in cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
On.construction‘acquisition of any asset - N »
On purpose other than sbove 282 . 287
Total 182 - 2.82

31 Macch 2017

2)  Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Company dunmz the vear was Rs 8 63

D) Amount spent dunng the vear o % Cn iy, hoalih care, 8 of poverty and g g scholarship 1o studs

Pyrticwlars s caxh Yot to be paid in tash ‘Total
On construchon‘aceisition of any asset . . .
On purpose other than above 218 . 218
Tomt 2,18 - 2.8

For BSR& Co LLP
Chartercd Jgonnnams
gn number 161 8W W 1G6022

Anoap Becisr
Shapasang Divccosy
DN O G 3n

Paryee,

Fvand

PIN

Place: Charvsgram
Date 16 Juby 26{8

Plave Gurugram
Dare 10 July 2018

s

iy Goet
RTINS E YA

For wmd on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
Mrs, Bectors Food Specialitics Limited

Lt

Ktul St
Company Secresry

N 12000 § 811



BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower-8 Telephone: + 91 124 719 1000

DLF Cyber City, Phase - |l Fax: +97 124 235 8613
Gurugram - 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
vear then ended, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as
“the Act™) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profi/loss and
other comprehensive income. consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for sateguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company. as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
and of its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit. we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from

material nsstatement.
V Registered Office:

85 R &Co. (apar hip firm with R Sth Floor, Lodha. Excelus

No, BﬁmmlcotmmdmoBSR&Co e Apatio Milts Compound

{a Limited Liabiity P o with LLP R NM. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi
No. AABGiBﬂtheﬁectfmm October 14 0713 Mumbai « 400 011
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial controls relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, :

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Group and of its associate to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncerlainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Group and its
associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and an associate, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group and its associate as at 31 March 2018, and its consolidated profit and other comprehensive
income. consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries. whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 299.65 Million and net assets of Rs. 272.09 Million as at 31 March 2018, total revenues of
Rs. 413.49 Million and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 1.38 Million for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements
also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 0.17 Million for the year ended 31 March 2018, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. in respect of an associate, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated ind AS
financial statements. in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and an associate. and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and an associate. is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

|
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6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and an
associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the -purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on

31 March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of

the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and an associate, which are companies incorporated

in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate, which are companies

- incorporated in India, is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director of that
company in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our Report in
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditor's report of Holding company, its subsidiary companies and
its associate company.

£) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014. in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and also the other financial information of the subsidiaries and
an associate. which are companies incorporated in India. as noted in the *Other Matter’ paragraph:

(1) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of. pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates - Refer Note 41 to the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

\ (i1) The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended 3] March 2018.

(i1i) There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by

‘ the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and an associate. which are companies
incorporated in India. during the vear ended 31 March 2018,

l/,
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(iv) The disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However,
amounts as appearing in the audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31
March 2017 have been disclosed. Refer to note 52 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: 10 July 2018
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“Annexure A” referred to in our Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of the Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements the year ended 31 March 2018

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act™) .

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities
Limited (“the Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2018, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and an associate. which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Hold ing Company, its subsidiary companies and an associate, which
are companies incorporated in India. are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business. including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the fimely
preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing. issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143
(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by the ICAL Those
standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness,
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of
the subsidiary companies and an associate. which are companies incorporated in India. in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated ind AS financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain (o the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance

e
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that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated ind AS financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company. its subsidiary companies and an associate, which are companies
incorporated in India. have in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to two
subsidiary companies and an associate, which are companies incorporated in India, is solely based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Churtered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Gurugram. Haryana

Date: 10 July 2018
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Conselidated Statement of profit and oss for the year ended 31 March 2013
(Al amounts are i rupees midlion, unless otherwise stoled)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Income
Revenue from operations 3 6,939.63 6,386.52
Other income ? 1790 2).54
Total income 6,957.55 6,408.06
Expenses
Cost of matenials consumed 3 3,778.86 3.486.76
Purchase of stock-in-trade 34 11968 103.72
Changes in ies of finished goods, stock-in- irade
and wotk-in-progress 35 (70.63) 22.64
Excise duty 3330 139.68
Employee benefits expense 36 21307 80943
Finance costs 37 5778 15.02
Depreciation and amortisation expense 38 27293 249.67
Other expenses 39 132197 1,124.63
Tatal expenses 642694 5.983.55
Profit before shure of equity accounted investees and tax
Share of net profit of associates accounted for using the equity '
method 7 017 .31
Profit before 1ax 330.78 424,82
Tax expense:
Current tax 164.50 126,08
Deferved tax 5.80 7.93
' 170.30 134.01
Profit for the year (A) 360.48 290.81
= mesesS)
Other comprehensive income
Htems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 267 (2.52)
k tax relating to e ament of defined benefit plans {0.92) 0.87
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (B) 178 {1.65)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A + B) 362.23 289.16
Earnings per cquity share
[nominal value of Rs. 10 (previvns vear Rs.10)) 40
Bastc 630 308
Diluted 629 508
Significant accounting policics 2
The accompanying sotes are an integral part of these fidaied financial i

As per our repont of even date attached

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of

ors Food Specialities Limited
48PY/W-100022 / l
100 Aer ctor Atul Sud
Sanagmg Director 1¥ectnr Compeny Nevsoran
DIN.-O0108589 DIN:-02906 E &0

Parveen hmar Goel
boxecwtive Divecton wnd €16
DIN 40007297

Place Gurugram Place. Gurgram
Date: 18 July 2018 Date 10 July 2018




My, Begtors Fool Spreiatities Limitedd
Consulidated Statement of Champes in Equity for the yesr ended 31 March 2018
TAN cimasnni are o rapees million, wnless otherwne stored)

14y Equity shure cupital
Agait 31 Miiveh 2818 As 9133 March 2017
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Reserves &' Sarphns 0 ive
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> Balance ut | Apei) 2015 - 1437 5047 1538 1,248.78 - 1302

Profit for the vep - - - - L Ok £ - b2 3 13
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Mrs. Becters Foed Specialities Limited
Statement of consolidated cash flows for the yenr ended 31 March 2018
(Al amowits are in rupees million, uniess aibervise siited}

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tuxation $3078 42482
N b adj to r le profit before tax (o net cash flows:
Deprecistion and P M9 24967
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 464 7.56
Profiton sale of investments {0'67) {2.26)
Net change in fair value of financial assets st FVTPL 0.06 £330}
Bad debxs written off 339 083
Net Joss on sale of fixed assets 143 179
Employee share-based pay P 3.99 -
interest expense 3778 4502
Imerest Income {6.08) {642}
Share of profit of associates L 10.17) {0.33)
Operating profit befare working capital changes 863,09 TH7.40
Movemen in working capital
Decrease in Loans 125 {8.75)
{Increase) in other financial assets 39 2925
{Increase)}Decrease in other assets (85.47) 333
{1 VD mi ¥ (7740} 4942
{Increase) in trade receivables {11579 (131,32}
lncrasc n pmvtsmm (ki 2707
H D Y in other i (18.043 15.09)
hmm in trade payables 1183 11847
D m other fi 1 habil 1275 {424.57}
Cush generated from operations 61564 [37% )
Income tax pand (135 03) {151.63)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 463.61 545.20
B. Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of fixed assets (incuding capital wmk m progress md v:pml wdvances) (1,189.203 {375 89)
Purchase of intangible assets (including i le under de (081) (782)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (mchufms capua! work in progress) 362 300
Net proceeds of investments 4869 60.01
Net redemption/] ) i bank deposits {having oniginal maturity: of more than three moriths) 134 (11.28)
Interest received 5.96 4 60
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,138.43) {52236y
€. Cash flows from finsncing activities
Proceeds{repayments) fromAo non-currens borrowings * 392 15 15670
Proceeds(repayments) fromito current borrowings 9734 1192
Interest paid (57.33) {44.08)
Dividend paid on equity shares (including dividend distribution tax) (42 49} (34.59)
Net cash frum/(used) in financing activities {(C) 539,48 461
Net increase in cash and cash cquivalents {A+B+C) (77.32) 68.94 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13608 6714
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5)8-,11' 134,08

* Also refer note 21 {°¢) for r ctb of hab! from fi

g ACHVItES

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method” as set out m the bd AS 7 - on Statement of Cush Flow as

notificd under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015,

As per our repost of even date sttached

wad om behall of the Board of Divectors.of
viors Food Spccmlmﬂ Limited

= e

DINC 29061 ST

s

Aral Sud

Crmpeaay Ses roary

Avnntp Begctor
Maaging Director
DIN 0108589

Parveen, inr Gool
FExecid Dévcctnr s 10}
DN 7297

Place. Gungram
Date: 10 July 2018
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Dot 10 Suby 218

1.5




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Reporting entity

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited referred to as “the Company” is domiciled in lndig, The
Company’s registered office is at Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab, India. These consolidated
financial statements comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the *Group’)
and its associate. The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of food
products. The Group caters to both domestic and export markets.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

a) Basis of preparation

; The consolidated financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian
| Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),
| as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

| The consolidated financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in

% accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the
] Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Group’s first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has
been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported
financial position, financial performance and cash flow of the Group is provided-in Note 55.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Group’s Board of Directors on
| 10 July 2018.

1 i Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Group’s functional

currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions, upto two places of decimal, unless
otherwise stated.

i)  Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the
following:

- Defined benefit liability/(assets): Fair value of the plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

| = Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments: measured at fair value
— Share-based payments: measured at fair value of share based payments

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the-measurement date. The fair value meaS}w\w&\
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is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either —

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Group.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

~  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

iii)  Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements have been given below:

- Note 49 - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the
assets the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding;

— Note 43 - classification of leases into finance and operating lease;

~ Note 43 - leases: whether an arrangement contains lease’

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the consolidated financial statements for the every period ended is included
below:
~ Note 3 & 6 - useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets;
~ Note 46 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
- Note 48 - fair value of share based payments
— Note 41 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies;
- Note 49 - impairment of financial assets:
—~ Note 49 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments.
— Note 12 — write down of inventories
- Note 2m. 10 & 23 - recognition of tax expense including deferred tax, availability of future
taxable profits against which tax losses carried forward can be used

2%
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Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the
group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets. liabilities, equity, income and expense. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted. '

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated statement of changes in Equity and
Consolidated Balance sheet respectively. '

Associates :

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% to 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee on profit
and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income,

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity. including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further
losses. unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised Josses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group.

Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs. less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

va)
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. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as a separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Major machinery spares parts are classified as property, plant and equipment when they are expected
to be utilised over more than one period. Other spares are carried as inventory and recognised in the
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss as and when consumed.

Any gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each period end date, are shown under
other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the period end, are
shown as capital work-in- progress.

ii. Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at | April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment (Refer note 55).

ili. Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iv. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates
based on the useful lives prescribed as per Part C of schedule 11, of the Companies Act 2013 except
in case of certains plant and machinery such as moulds, crates and pallets where the management
has assessed useful life as 3 years based on internal technical evaluation.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease.
Leasehold fand is amortised pro-rata over the lease period on a straight line basis.
Intangible assets comprise of computer software which are amortized over a period of five years.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.

/

d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of

Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes. after deducting trade discounts and rebates. any directly attributab & G et hringing the Ao N
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its working condition for its intended use. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in Consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss as incurred.

Estimated useful life of the softwares is considered as 5 years.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted, if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. '

Advances paid towards acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each period end date, are shown
under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the period end, are
shown as intangible asset under development.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible

assets recognised as at | April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Group at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reportin g date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest-costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
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amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number
of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in the Consolidated statement of Profit and loss in the periods during which
the related services are rendered by employees,

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. '

Gratuity

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The Plan is funded with Insurance Group in form of insurance policy. The calculation of defined benefit
obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic
benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial-gains and losses. the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl). The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit lability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Other long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to oceur within twelve months afier the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the

defined benefit obligation as at the Consolidated Balance sheet date less llu;tl'-}iq@lue of the ptntassess.
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if any out of which the obligations are expected to be settled. The cost of providipg benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
Consolidated Balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Revenue
a) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return
of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured net of returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates.

Revenues includes excise duty and are shown net of sales tax, value added tax and goods and
services tax (with effect from 1 July 2017).

b) Rendering of services

Revenue in respect of sale of services is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements,

¢) Interest income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of 2 financial asset. Interest income is
included under the head “other income” in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss

d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants for capital assets are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant; they are then recognised in Restated Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
as other operating revenue on a systematic basis.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in Restated Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis in the periods in which
such expenses are recognized. '

Inventories

Raw materials, components. stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
after providing for obsolescence and other losses. where considered necessary. Materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
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Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Goods in transit are valued at cost
excluding import duties. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on
weighted average cost basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The Group has a policy for writing off the inventory of finished goods which is more than 90 days
old at year end.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an outflow of econemic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign exchange forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host contract, etc.

1} Financial assets
iy Initial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognises financial assets on the date on which they are originated. The Group
recognises the financial assets on the trade date. which is the date on which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable 1o the
acquisition of the financial asset except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
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i) Classifications and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value
depending on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash

flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management,

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition.

Debt instrument at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair value though profit and loss (FVTPL):
~ itis held within a business model whose objective is to holdassets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and
~ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate ("EIR") method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss.

Debr instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCT only if both of the following conditions are met:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recognised basis EIR
method and the losses arising from Expected Credit Losses (ECL) impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
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Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as
FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at fair value.

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at FVTOC! or FVTPL. The Group makes
such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OC1. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Investments in tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at amortised cost.

iii)  Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Group changes its business mode] for managing financial assets.

v} Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s Consolidated Balance sheet) when:

~  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or '

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

v)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Group applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind AS 709,
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial
recognition of the trade receivables.
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vi) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and its associate’s non-financial assets other than inventories and defetred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that
do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into a cash-generating unit (CGU). Each
CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU.

The Group and its associate's corporate assets (e.g., office building for providing support to various
CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset.
recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Restated Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of
the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

2} Financial iabilities

i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
iii)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

3) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidgted
Balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention 1o settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset
criteria’).

4) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not
a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Group enters into
certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ {losses).

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i.  Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous vears. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes: It is measured using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
1o set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability
on a net basis or simultancously.

ii.  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics
in the Consolidated Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that tay
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those deductible temporary differences ‘can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Consolidated Balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
| have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Consolidated Balance sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. ‘

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Minimum alternate tax (‘'MAT") under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognized as
current tax in statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT
paid is adjusted from deferred tax liability only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit
can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability.

MAT credit recognized adjusted from deferred tax liability is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

n) Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement, is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specified asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a leasc, the Company separates
payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. Subsequently, the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Where the Group is the Lessee:

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are

age

apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the le ty so as 1o achieve a constant
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs
in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset based on internal
technical evaluation or the useful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain the ownership by the end of the
lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset, the lease term or the useful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule 1l of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor:

Leases in which the Group transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Group apportions lease rentals
between the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of return
on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The interest income is recognized in
the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs,
etc. are recognized immediately in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets.
Lease income on an operating lease is recognized inthe Consolidated statement of Profit and losson a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in
the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs,
etc. are recognized immediately in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Board of Directors of the Group have been identified as being the Chief operating decision maker
by the management of the Group. Refer note 42 for segment information presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115- Revenue from contract with customers

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 1135, Revenue trom
Contracts with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognise

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The Group will adopt the standard on 01 April 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method
and accordingly comparatives for the year ending 31 March 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted.

Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28,
2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when
an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The amendment will come
into force from 1 April 2018. The Group and its associate has evaluated the effect of this on the financial
statements and the impact is not material.
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(A amonnts are v rupees authon, anfoss oilierwise stedi

3. Peoperty, plaat aad cquipnient

Gruss block Depreciation Net bloek
Particulurs As at Additions Ad'u:)lnlenl:l::rin As 3¢ Asat Charge for the Ad ”‘“l " ';I i As at As at Axat
1 April 2006 ) B 31 Mprch2007 | 1 Aprit 2016 year Adjustments during oy anrg 1 Aprit 2016 31 March 2007
the year the year
Own ussets
- Frechold fand §6 30 RS 62 t7492 . . . . £ 0 e

Leaschold naprovements 243 . 243 - 148 . 148 243 (2]

Bunldings 6% 3G 188.47 806 77 - 2549 - 23519 618 30 8138

Plant and machinery 94582 33251 423 12741 . 199 30 623 £99 07 I3 K82 107503

Fumitare and fixtures FA] 642 . K0 32 - 2 2164 24.83

Vehicles 4710 2566 i1 7165 - 1051 e 13 42 a7 1 G123

Office equipment 702 27 . 100 . 316 . 3n RN 143

Computer 606 X3z £3% - 26 216 St 22
Asset taken on fimencint lease *

Leaschoid land 4460 - - 34 60 . 59 > 11 39 4 i 44 01
Total 1,780.17 644.17 534 2,419.00 - 245.59 .32 24827 1,780.17 217373

Gross block Depreciation Net block
. Disposais/ N Disposals/
Particulars Asat As at Asat Charge for the As at Asat As at
i 1 " . £
3t March20s7  Addtlens  Adjustmentsdurieg 3 0 n e | 3t March 2017 year  Adjsstmestsduring gy o0ig | 3EMarch 2017 31 March 2008
ihe year the year
Own assets

Frechohd fand 17192 438 - 176 30 - « - - £71 92 176 30

Leasehold improvements 243 . 135 108 145 0389 L35 099 GYR 0.0

Buosldings 806.77 166.00 - 97277 25149 29335 ~ 343 781 58 G803

Plant wivd machinery 1274 10 36833 B356 1,634 07 19207 24609 289 41227 107503 1,221 80

Fumitige and fixtuges 28.06 1.48 030 2943 323 346 [eXix 666 2482 iy}

Vehcles 71.65 383 043 7305 1042 1140 [ 5 276 6123 3329

Office cauipment 109 139 402 1266 316 272 a0l 587 TR 6.79

Computer 838 230 .03 1685 216 232 - 448 &22 637
Asget taken on financial fease *

Leaschold land 44,00 26.84 e 14144 0359 0.72 - [ 401 §40.13
‘Fatal 2.419.00 44538 10.49 3.053.86 24827 267.24 443 308.08 2,173.73 254878
a) Refer note 21 sndd 25 for charte ereated on property, plant and equipment.

) Freehokl land mehdes land baving gross block smouning to Rs. 307 (31 March 2017 Re 3.07 and t Aprit 2016 Rs. 3 07) 1n the state of H hal Pradesh, pending w be reg: 1 in the name of Group

©) Buihbing mchides Flat at Nowda having gross black amounting to Rs 4.82 (35 March 2017 Rs 4 82 and | April 2016 Rs Nis and written down value amounting 1o Rs 452 (31 March 2017 Rs 4 66 and | April 2016 Rs Nib) pending to be registercd m the name of

CGiroup

d) Vehicles metides motor cars having woss lock ameantiog 1o Rs. 003 {31 March 2017 Rs0 93 and 1 Aprit 2016 Rs © 03 1 and wenten down vahe amonnting to Rs 603 (31 March 2007 Rs. 0,03 and § Apnl 246 Ry 003 ) are perching to be repisterad in the

nanse of Group

o} Refer note 31 for disclosure of eontractual

) Caputahsation of borrowmg costs relates (o funds borrowed both specificatly and gencratly to acquire/construet quabify g assers Fhe eap

342018 and March 30, 2017

for the

) Refer note 85 for | of i

* Refer Notwe 21bi.

d cost as

of propenty. slant and sawpment

ed by the Company pursiant fo transiion provision under tnd AN 101
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Notes 10.¢
L] amessings are w upees miftion, uplesk athorvive sated)
4, Capital work-in-progress

far the vear ended 31 March 2018

Pardicotars f A::n,;ms Additians (‘uvi«;is;:;wiw 3 M:::zm 7 {3 m‘::cz:zan Additions cwh::?:gal:m“g 3t M::::zms
Capal work i progress 193.95 39701 37372 11784 117.84 1,253.63 43268 920.79
3. Goodwill
Gross block Amortisation Net block
Paricatars 1 Am(“:;.olﬁ Additions Deletions 31 le:t: 27 1 Ag;l‘;ﬂlB c‘m';:_;:r e Deletions 31 3!::(:‘ 2017 3 A&KG 31 51i:c1‘20!7
Goodwitl 395 - - 395 - - - - 393 EXC3
Yotal 395 - - 398 ked - - - 308 395
Gross block Amartisation Net block
frrtedters ] Agi‘r'ﬂ.;()l'l Additions Defetions 3 .s;;; 2018 | 1 ,m\:: ;017 cmr:;_‘: e Detetivns 3 at::;zms 31 ;‘f::c:l 201731 M::;t 2018
Goodead) 193 - . 365 - - - B 293 303
Totul 3.95 - - 3.95 - = - - 3.98 398
There has beeis oo ung fossr d on goodwill g d on acquisition of Bakebest Foods Private Lamied
For the purpose of impairment testmg. goodwill 15 atlocated to the company’s operaty iz divisions which represent the lowest level within the company at which goodwill is itored for 1 prigy

d 10> the p

N of b

Thie envire goodwill of Rs. 395 bas been ol

bren catcgorised an Lovel 3 faic value based on the inputs to.the vilustion technique used

2

The vahies assigned 1o the key pti P K s
As At
Particalars 31 March 2018
Discount rate £2.40%
Terminal value eate 5%
18

Buhieted EBITOA growth rate

- The discont filc is ¥ post-tax measure estimated based on the iistorical industry averags weighted-averaye cost of capital

of future remds in (he relevant indusines snd have been asagned based on istorical dat both from external and internal sourees

AL AL

31 March 2017

12.40%
3%
0%

of Bakehest Foods Private Limited  The recoverable amount of s CGU 1 based an fair value less costs to sell, estimated using discounted cash flows. The fair vihie moasurement has

- The cash Hlow pro include specifi Tor five years and a 1enminal growth rute thereafler The } growth fate has been d based o ms 's of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growtlyrate, consistent with e
P that o matked pant would sake ,
- Budgetod EBITDA has been estimatod taking into scoouns pust experience. ’
&, Other intangible assets
Grass block Amortisatian Net Wack
Particulars Asat . Asat Asat Charge for the . Asat Axat As at
1 April 2016 Additions Deletions 31 March2017 | 1 April2016  vear Deletions 31 March3017_| Y April 2016 31 Mareh 2012
Comparter softwares 1894 2% . 21.20 - 407 - 407 [EXE] 17143
Total 18.94 2.26 - 2120 - 407 - 1,07 18.94 1713
Gross block Amortisation Net hlock
Pavticalars Asut . . Asst Avut Charge for the Detetions Asat Aswt Asat
1 Aprit 2087 ) 31 March 2018 1 Aprit2017 YAr 31 March 2018 3t March 2047 31 March 2018
Computer softwares 2420 6.36 - 37356 407 568 - 073
gl
Total 21.20 636 - 27.56 4.07 5.68 - 975 1713 F e 2 1281
i
a1 Refer note 33 for seconcil of ¢ 1 costas dered by the Company p 10 wrovisis wiler ind AS 101 {f\
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(A omounis are in milliow, nnless ailenvise stated)

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2013 31 March 2017 1 April 206
7 investment accounted for using the equity methud
Investment in associate
Unquoted investment in equity share at cost N
673,306 (31 March 2017 673,506 and 1 April 2016 673,306) equity shares of Rs. 10/~ 3882 3865 3834
exch fully paid up of Cremica Agro Foods Limited *
38.82 38.65 38.34
* Considered as unguoted since the stock exchange on which the investment was listed 15 closed.
Aggregate book value of quoted invesiments NiL NiL NiL
Aggregate book value of un-quoted mvestments 38.82 38.63 3834

Interests in associate (equity accounted)
Cremica Agro Foods Limited CCAFL'} is an assocuste of the Group and has a 44 95% owncrship interest. The CAFL s principally engaged food pr g The sud
Company was mcorpoeated in India on 6 September 1985, The principal place of buainess 15 Phillaws

Contingent fiabilities in respeet of associate
Share.of 'S gent habilities 10 respect of alegal clam Jodged agamse the entity 114 1.4 |BES

Summarised financial information for asseciate
The foli: g Lable 1ses the financsal mf aof CAFL asicluded w its own fi § djusted for fanr value ady 2t acqy and di
n accountmy policies. The table alsa reconcifes the summarised finaneial mformation (o tse carryiny amount of the Group’s interest in CAFL

Percentage ownership interest I4.95% 44.95% 44.95%
Non-current assets 4874 4843 2315
Cinyent assets (inchudog cash and cash equivatents — 31 March 2008 Rs 12.00, 31 March 207 5836 3705 7627
Rs. 987 and | Apni 2010 Ry § 23)*

Non~current lisbiliues {inclading non-current fmancial hiabilities excluding trade and othes -7 - ~
payables and prosisions ~ 31 March 2018 Nal, 31 March 2017 Nil and 1 April 2016: Nil)

Curreru Habilities (sncluding cuarent 13 | fabihivies — 31 March 2018 Rs, 13,45, 3-:Mach 12124 (i989) {18.13)
2017 Rs. 1230 and 1 April 2016 Rs. 11 435)

Net assets (1006%) 86.36 83599 8329
Group's share of net asscts {44.93%) 3882 3868 3834
Carryng amount 0 interest in associate . 3582 3R G5 3R 34

The bank sxecoumts of the assocute Group 1.c Cremica Agro Foods Limited had been freczed by the Board of Directors due 10 disprte amony some of the Directors of the
Group w.ef & January 2016 Balance with bunks as a1 31 March 2018 11 93, (51 March 201 79.83 and 31 March 2016 8.19)

Carrying amount of the interest in assotiate
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018 33 March 2017

Reveme - 03%
Other mcome 242 442
Depreciation mmd amertisation expene {0603 (11341
Finance costs {0151} e
Income tax expense (651 .35)
Profiy 038 R
Totat camprehensive income 038 0.69
Groups share of profi (44 95%) . 017 wat
Croups share of wher comprehensave sceme (44 93%) -~ &
Group's share of 1otal compecheasive income (JL93%} 017 0.3t

No dividend has been vecewved from the assuciale for the vear ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017
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Notes to tidated finsncial for the year ended 31 Murch 2018
(AN s are iy rapees miittion, waless otherwise sicned)

8 Non~urrent lpans
(Linecured, considered good}

Seeurity dieposits

<3

Other non-current financial asses

Mare moncy deposit®

Asat As 3t Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 | Aprit 206
33.56 34.81 2621
B ) 2631
968 021 322
Jﬁlu 821 3.22

*Margin money deposits with carrying amount of Rs.9.68 (31 March 2017 Rs. 0.21, 1 Aprit 2016 Kﬁ’&.}lmm 1o first charge o secure the Group's infand

letter of credit and bunk guarmttess)

10 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advince incomi 1as (net of provision for tax of Rs. 612.90 (31 March 2017 Rs. 57543, 20.33 2573 1577
1 April 2016 Rs. 280.54))
29.33 1373 13.77
i1 Other non-current assels
Capital advances 66,32 13061 R87.92
66,22 31601 27.92
N No—
12 Investories
fealued a1 the lower of costand net realisable value}
Raw materiat and packing material 14633 138 .96 163 61
Wark~m-progress 159 170 137
Fimshed goods - M ed gouds (including stock in transit Rs. 85,20 (31 March 2017 Rs. 40.87, 174.97 113,36 139.3%
1 Apnl 2015 Rs.65.02)
Stock in tade {including stock in wansit Rs. 11.88 (31 March 2017 Rs. Nil, § April 2016 Rs. Nil } 11.88 073 -
Stores and spases 872 1934 2116
385 P 153
The writé-down of'i jies Yo net reahsable valug during the year amotsted 1o Rs 1.47 (39 Mareh 2017 Rs. 1.32.1 April 2016:Re0.10):
The write-down are inclnded in ch ini jes of finished goods and workwin-progress.
During the year. inventories anwummg to Rs. 0.29 (33 March 2017 Rs. 0.30) provided as free samples were recognised as oxp in the ]
of profit and loss
13 Invesoments
i in equity ¥ at fair value through profit and less
Qunted *
1,700 (31 March 2017: 1,700, 1 Aprit 2016:1,700) equity shares of Bank of India 0.18 024 A1
Invesments in mutual funds at fair value through profit and loss
Unguoted **
Nit (31T March 2017 18813 1 Apal 2016 43,060) couity shares of 'SBE Promar Liquid Fund - 4892 102,34
U.18 48.16 10271
Ty e
Quuted
Apgregate book valne - market value 018 04 016
Unynoted
Aggregate hook vilue £ market value - 3802 10234

A
A
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14

As at As at Asat
31 Murch 2018 31 March 2017 t April 2018
TFrade receivables
Unsecured und considered good 5 83 586.07 463,14
Doubiful 1639 7.00 056
Less: allowance on doubufisl receivalsles” (1039 17.00) 10.56}
693.53 586.07 463,14
* The CGronp exposure 1o cradit and curveney yisk, and Joss ollownances selated 10 wade receivables are disclosed in sote 49 on financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balances
In current account® 4030 13476 63.96
Cash on hand 246 § 32 118
38,70 136.08 67.14
— =

*Includes debit balance of working capital facility availed from HIDFC Bank Linited and State Bank of India amounting to Rs. Nil (31 Much 2617 Re. 2364, 1
April 2016 Rs. Nil) and Rs. 0.00 respectively (31 March 2017 Rs .60, 1 Apsil 2016 Rs. Nil)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenes above

Depasiis due 10 be { within 12 hs of the reporting date 645 342 Q.50

Margin moncy deposit™ 48.06 5590 44.56
48.51 59.32 45.06
i =

*Margin mancy deposits with carrying amoun of Rs. 48.06 (31 March 2017 Rs 7,74, 1 April 2046 Rs. 56.11) are sabiect to first charge o secure the Gronp's
Other carrent financial assets

funsecured, considered good)
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging .32 2446 [ERE]
Export incentive recenvable * 85.01 037 3437
Interest acomed bust not duc on fixed depasits with banks 170 182 -
Other advances LA 400 288
97.34 180,41 69.33
T L SR

* The Grop has accrued followiug oxpost ncentives of Ra. 130 33 (31 March, 2017 Ry 110.00 and | Aprst 2016 Rs 83 78} and has alse warten oft smcentives
of Rs. Nil (31 Mareh, 2017 Re.0 34 and 1 April 2016 Rs Nil3.

a) Incentive wnder Merchandise Exports from India Schome of Ry, 157 935 (31 March, 2087 Rs T2 13 and 1 Aprd 2016 Ry 6260

b Incentive wder Duty Drawback of Rs. 021 431 March, 2017 Rs 055 and 1 April 2056 Rs. 9.09)

€3 Duty Free mpont Authorizaton of R, 48.17 (31 March, 2017 Rs 37.32and | April 2016 Rs 1217)

Other current assets

Balances with staturory government authorities 103,34 375 4.3
Advances recoverable w cash or kind 44.50 R0 2263
Less. provision for doubefis) advances secoverable in cash or kind Hady i1 14 [liai)

I{LQ7 0340 46.63

e
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13 amoenty ar in rupees meilion. wndess vificewise stated)

19

Asat Ax Al Asm
31 Mareh 2018 31 March2017 1 April 2uis

Stare Rapirs
Authorised
AT.500. 000 (as ot 31 March 211 72 87,267,622 equity shares and as at 01 Apnl 20E6 34.150.000) of Ra. txoch S04 37268 34150
Trsued, subscribed md paidonp
§7,267.622 {ns 3 31 Mareh 2017 28,633,811 equily shares and as at i1 Apsil 20316 28 633,811) of Rs. 10each 37268 23634 28634

£72.88 285.34 386.34

N N— NSRRI

2. Terms snd righix attached o equity shares

o

o

5 The Company: bas - issued one class of vquity shares having 3 par vadue of Rs. b pes share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vote per share, The equity sharcholders
gre vesitted 10 receive dividend as declared from tine o lime

(i1} In the event of liqudation of the Company. thy holder of equity shares will b ensiled 1o receive remuniog sesets of the Company. afier distribution of off preferential amots
The diserbution will e i propossion 1o the momber of wquity shares held by the sharehulder

. Reconcilintion of nummber of shares outstanding at the heginning snd end of the year
Particulars Nuinber of Shares Amount
Ortstanding as at § Apal 2016 284338 28634
Shases issued during the vear - .
Outstanding as at 31 March 2017 8413811 2Wb.34
Bons shares.asped ducmg die yeor 35633811 286,34
Ouistanding as at'31 March 31 2013 51267421 £7268
. Details of shiarvholders holding move than 5% shaves in the Company:
Parficulars Asal 31 March 2018 As w133 Narch 2017 At L April 2016
Nu. of Shures Peecentape  No.of Shaves Percentage Ny, of Shares Percentage
Equity shaves of Re.10 each lulty paid
Anoop Becior 284674 WS 11424337 B | 10.243,108 3752%
GW Crawi Pre Limited AN Tipd 19.54% 5385248 1550% 3,588,248 19 59%
Lanus Private Limited 13.020.7%) 229% 4,364,395 N 6,560,303 22 94%

Dusing the year ended 31 Mandh 2015, with respest 10 218,936 shares hetd ty Mr. Ay Bector, My, Anooy: Bector had lodyed 3 sogquast with this Group 0 regaster the rassfir of
these shates in lis name on the basis of 3 Gift Daed doted 31 August 2033 by. which Mr. Ajoy Becior had gified these shues 10 Ms. Ancop Bector and has stated mier ahus viat he
had been teft with no right. title, interes).of cancem of 2y ralure whatsorver in the these shares Howeves, since the shares e in i demaleriatived form, the Group had exprossed
its inabitivy (o regisser the 1ransfer on the basts of only the gt deed. These shares ane il not wansTernod wh o8 31-March 2018, henice wos shown s pat of bofding of s Anoop
Becior.

Azgregste sumbder of shares issued for cunsideration other thin cash during the perinid of five yenrs inunedintely preceding the veporting date

Duting the fivevess penod eodad 31 Masch 201X (31 Masch 2017), 20282939 cquiny shases of Rs 102 each have been afloted as fully pand 28 per appwoved compasiie schane of
wnalgamatan and aazmgenint

31 March 2018 3 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 3018 31 Mavch 2014 31 March 1613

Nipmbers of of Numbers of Nombers of Nubers of
e AR shares _ dares e shares shares
Fquity shares allovied 35 fulfy paal bonus shares by P T - - « - -
pitaisation of Gies
Shaces sligied a5 per appivved composse scheme of - - . 21287 vy . -
Ml‘iﬂi_:imlh’\ﬂ Jﬂd wEangans
28633811 - - 21287938 - -

. Mot .

Ll A P appie
dated 3it Sepromber T

ot Histe e

£ the Compam

s £6 Gy BB il sl anaie and gt Wt section 391 o ¥4 of Companies Al F23 6o efleet fiom apipramted
wicekiod 22 499 415 shaies td s raed 21 N7 B2 shares e congideranon other tha cash

. Shares reserved for issoe under opiions

fnformanion relaieg 10 Company’s optice plan, inclading detuls of apooms issued. excromed. mul Tapied dunng the Binancial yewr and aplions sustanding R ke end of e
Teponng perind, 1% sel o a8 Dot 48

T g Jes Been Sucasasatly gt blaky
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specintities Limited
Ntes to for the year ended 31 March 7018
(AF amorens are tm oupees aulfion. imless ptberweve start)

As st Asat
31 March 2058 31 March 2017
26 Other equity
a  Capital resenve
Balance of the beginning of the vesr 1437 14.37
Less: Movemens dunng the year hJ z
Balance at the cnd of the year 1437 3437
b Seturities premium
Balance at the beginning of the veas S30.1F 3017
Less' Bonus shares sssued 1286 34) -
Bulanve a1 the end of the year 24333 536,17
¢ Surplusideficics in the d ol profil & fosy
Baiance A the begimuoy of the vyt : 1305 908 124870
Add: Profit for the vewr 300§ 290 %3
Less Interim dividend paid (42.95) {3x.63)
Less: Dividend distribution 13 o0 sntenim dn idend i%.74) (3.83)
Balunce at the end of the year 1313 1,505.08
d¢  Reneasorement of defined benefit plang
Balance a1 the beginaung of the vex (156 -
Addition dusing the vear 1M 158
Balance 31 the end of the vear 0.8 1356
¥ Share uplions eutstanding arcount
Balance a1 the beginanng of the vear - .
Employce stork option expense 394 -
Balance at the od of the yeat 3.99 -
£ General reserve
Balance st the beginaung of e yvas 18.X8 JEX
Addition during the yexr - -
Balance av the end of the year 1538 1848

Natare and parpese of silver reserves

Capital reserve
Capital reserve is on accownt of the busmess combination transation as per the Coun Scheme dated 1 September 2014

Securities premium

Sccunbes premaum account ss wsed B recond ihie premiu on 1ssue of shares Duging she current s eaz. Boaus shares Ax e been issaed M uidismg secuntics premium in sccantmie

with pravesions of the Compamnes Act 2013

Remeasurrment of defined benefit pluns

Remcaswrements of defined benefit plans repeesents the foflowving as per Ind AS 19, Emploves Benefits .
A} acusatial pains and fossen

(b the rensrn on phar assers. cxcliding arvowss incladed in net intercst o the net defined henefit biability (asset); snd

tey any change s the effect of the tset cethng, excluding amounty mcluded in aet interest on the net defined benefit hability {asset)

Share option outstanding accevnt
The share optivn outstanding secount is vsed 1o recopnise th grant date Rir vadue of options issuad 1o vinplovess wiler the enploy ee Stovk optien scheme

Bividends

The toiowing divadends were declared b the Coropans durmg the year

R 0 78 por cqpoty share 131 Mach 2017 Ry 1y 297 2863
Prsiderad disinbutios (ax on devdend o vquity sharcholders R 74 L33
Bafance a8 e 2nd o the s rar 5169 LN

FHR g dne huss nvanomiii S Moaks




Mas,

Brotors Food Snecialifies Limited

Notes W-¢ fidated £ ial for the year ended 31 March 2018
L4 camompnsaiee in eapees milhon, npdess atervise saed)
Asat Asat As a2t
35 March.2018 31 Mareh 3017 1. April 2616
¥ Now-current harrowisgs
Term hoans (Refer wite (a))
From tanks (Secured) 103514 39¥.13 240 26

Vehicle foans {Reler note (1))

From banks {Secured) 590 9.04 686
Froms Onhers {Securedi * p32] 327 -
Loans from wlhited paries Unsevaredi® « <+ 2802 3w 2008

Long 1erm meajurities of fimance lease obligations fsecured) {Refer note (b} 980 - -
Fata) non curremt borvawings 1.081.07 'M&llil 27680
Less. Current maturities of Jony term debt (2117 (69,10} {43.0%)
Leas. Toverest acerued hat not doe o borrowings 9N 12.62) {1.80}
Noa current borrowings as per balance shect 25633 i3 $30.99
1) ferms and conditions of outsianding bosrowinas are as follows,
Particalars ICICY Bank* State Bank:of. | HDFC Bankt** HDFC Bank* < Vehicle foang* 4
Iadin*®
Peineipul amount
(as at 31 March 2048) 501 68 2598 5460 - 1093
g5t 31 March 2007) - 3258 32138 6.4 13.2)
(&5 a1 L Apnl 2016) - 131.22 6581 5047 .81
Year of maturity 202826 018-19 2023-26 2017-18 202332
Term of repayment monthly basis hly/gt rhy hly basis monthly basis monthly basis
basis

Npminal Jnterest yate $.23% - 8.33% m'um B3N - 9.15% #.‘JS% =9 35% 8.51% . 0.86%
* Th ternt foan of ICICT Bank Lid. is secured by exclisive charge on afl mvuﬂeudumﬂkﬁxdm%)dmmmmﬁwm bisiding, plant and machisery
excluding Tand save and.except those d by aidver Gnancial orgs These hoding are Turber yecured by £x Charge by way of Bypoth i of the gntire stocks and
such prber movaliley wiiding ook debts, bills whether d v of chean. diteg monies: revcivabies of the lqwr&yhu
te Fhe ten toan of Swate Bank of India is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation on entire fised-assets {PPE} of . the Grswip (other than Gremer Neida and Rugpara)
including equitable thortgage (e charge by way af EM) of factory Jand and building siwsted o) Themg Raad, Phillaur. District Jalandhiar, Punjub. Futher term Ioans are also secured
by Jeusehold rigthis (firstchiarge by way of ENT of Land and Building sitvated at Ploy No 13, Phase 1 & 1, Industriat Arca. TahBwal, District Una, Einachal Pradesh
Thase fosns are Rarther seoured by second whange an corfent assets of the Grisp fother thian Greater Noida and Raipura) anch firse charge by way of EM of progsenty situated at Wabio
Kushewal Goiea, Humbran-Laddowal Road, Tehol & Distt Ludbicna
These facilities are also secared by personal guarantee of M. Anoop Bector
vo The term Koun of HDEC Bank Laid is secured by first charge by way of hyporhecation on entire fixed ussets (PPE).of the Greates Noids unit. These loans are further secured by
way of collaterat securiy of equitable montage of Gtory land measunng 18,720 Sqm sisuated a1 11+ A, Udyog Vihae, Greater Noids.
o The oo Roan fron HDEC Bank is secured by Bess charge by way of hypothecation of stk and book debis of the subidiary Bakebest These louns ane forther secuted by way of
cotlateral securits of cquitable monyage of factory land aed building measurivg 7,040 square virds shaated at Village Vadval, Khopoh, Raigad, Malarashirs.
*Eeryvehiche Loans taken from banks and ehers are sexured by hypothecanion of respective vehicles
o 0w aecured doans ey diveciors and their relatives cany iterest & §.00% p a. These loans are subordinaie 10-the term founs rom banks and are pesmitted 16 be repaid only with
the prior approval of the hanka. Reter sote 37 on iransactions with related poties.
Term Loans
Name of the lender Penalty Clause Prepavment

Nty of intorest finstall 1% on the'entire autsiamding for the period of
Stare Baok of dia defanlt fat penalty ipenal interest) of Rs. 1000/-foreach day of delay beyond due dme of' |y, of the pre-paid

payment. aount
ICIC) Bank Default imcrest R-m:s in respeat of Domestic term Joans | In case of any delay o the

repavsent of' y i ! or § of imerest, Charges ov othey inenies due on

the facifity. defaul mmesl rate shall be Yevied al Documienied Ritte $ 2% p.a . pavable

wonthly, from the due date 511 such time ibe overdue smount is pail.

Defaolt interest Ratex in respect of International rerm losas: In cose of any. delay in the

repayment of principal mstallmen or payment of interest, charges or other mosics due on

thie facitity, default intevest tate shatt be Jovied @ Documented Rate + 2% pa. payihle

monthiy. from the dee dare 1l such time the overdue dmount is puid,

{h)

Finance lease ebligations
Faanor fease ebhgatons seliates 1o Jand porchased for bosmoss pompose dusiny Ure veas ended 3 Marcti J038. The amoun sodiudes remais wid prermsam payatde oser the lease wns
il o the effechive saterest fate metiant

the Batulily wouse deterag

| otanes tease ohuzgtions are pavable as follows

31 Mareh 2018

Particulars Fitare minimum  Inevess element of Present vislue of
Teise pay ments MLP minirnnm lease
BAVBIENS.
Withan hest than one veas fo0 08 LT
Setnoees e amd By woaes 375t 32
s thas e Losis T2 633 7

eivglance sheor sdate and e therefre pot discoend Aecudiosh
the Groap hisd ne obligason sader finaoce lease av ot 3 Masch J5E2 3 March 26t p@o

|y 8



Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limsited
Notes to Gitnted finaorial nis for the year ended 31 March 2043
Al swmenaas are o rupews millast, mdess othernise stord;
(£} Net debt recenciliation
The foltowiny sections sa1s oot an analysis of net debi and the moveisents i st deint for each of the

Asat Asat
31 March 2018 33 March 2002
Cash and cash equivalents 3870 13608
Curvent borronings 1262 73y (165 &9
Non-current borrowings » (1LDB7R 1 (442 8
merest on boreowings 1367} 331

Sevtehy EIISD DL,
Other axsets Liabilities from Buancing activities <
Cashand cash | Finance lease Nem-Current Curent {nterest on barrowings Tasal
cquivalents bligak b owing: L iy
Net debt as a1 31 March 2017 136,08 . (342,81 {165.59) 331 {7883)
Cash flows 7732 . {62849 (9714 B {199.98%)
Interest expense - ({825 - - 778 5768
Interest paid N . - 38.03) £58.04)
Other non-cash movernents
- Acguissions B {920} - - 4.0
- Fair value adjustments . - - : 14.10) 10.10)
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 5876 {9.38] $1,063.30) {262.73) 13.67} {1I08.74)
Other assets, Linhilities from financing activities
Cashand cash | Finance lease Non-Current Casrent Inierest on bosrowimgs Toual
cquivalents oblivtivns Dorrowings horrewines
Net debt 33 81 | April 2016 67.14 - {275.00} {191.33) {2.37) {402.06:
Cash flows . 6804 . 1167.81) 2624 B (72.63)
intetent expense . . N 4863 4802
interest paid : . N - N {1596 45.96)
Other nun-cash movements
-~ Acquisifions . . . . - .
- Fair valoe adjusiments . " . o . o
Net delnt s ot 31 March 2617 136,08 - {442.81) (165.5%) {3.31) {478.63)
22 Pravisions
As at Asal s
X 31 March 2018 3 Mareh 2017 } Anril 2016
Pravision for employee | .
Conypensated absénces {refer aote 46) 1203 HEN 3
Graunty (1efer note 46) 20 8% 204t 122
32.%4 31.87 20.91
—— ————
23 laceme Tax
A Amounts recognised in profil or loss
For ithe year endedt.  For the year cated
3t March 2018 37 March 2017
Current (a8 expense
Current vear 16577 12748
Tax adjustawm for carlier years 320 (L4
164,38 126,08
Deferved rax credit
Changes m recogrised temporary diffcrences ip a3
Edfecs of shanges in tax rate 018 .
L3 .93
Total Tas Expense 170.30 134.01
B, Amoums recoznised in Other Comprehensive ncome
e S 0r Ahe yeur rudded 31 March 2013 For the year entted 31 March 2047
Before tax Tax {Eapensey Net of tax Before tan Far (Espense) Net of tius
lucome tocome
20l 80 97 i 75 [ 87 (165}
Defined beaetit plan 367 LR 1,78 §2.82) .87 (LR,
€. Reconciliation of effective tan rate
For the year endel For the yvear ended
3§ Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Rate Amount Rate Ameunt
Profit hefore tax from continuing operativas 34.61% $30.78 . pEX TS 424,82
Taxawing the Group's domestic tax rate 18369 M7a2
Tax cttoct of
Non-deduciible expenses 0.32% I3 .47 e
kffect of detlevence 1o san rate of wsidaries «1.26% i3 43 2% {0.85)
Ian-eaempl mcume «1 48% {6:2%) a0, -
Tan incentives [(R1. 123 - ~3 4% (14 81}
Chapyes i estmates related w gatker vears BN (747 0.33% 40
Orhers .D6% 3467 oY 2T 10.74)
Fan expense 32.09%, 170.30 3128 134.01
D, Movement in deferred 13x balances
As at Recognized in Revognized in OCH Ay at
31 March 2017 PEL 31 March 2018
Deferred Tax Liability
Praperty plant and eauipment 1287 .24 . [E2AY
15 ey i andead Rands a1 D20 videe throsgh prodin sad Joss b2 €21%) . 003
I § e adinoe Contt oy dnvsh R Bgdaie o &) [ . .
Ul stem 0 P ey ° - X
St Fotab (a1 142,34 $0.17 - 152,53
Defereed Tn Vet
Pros siene - amplinec Benedin ity B o
Ahowares s ounhiin et altes snd adsargey 22 b
VAT credit entstboment 1y e 5 Gy
nhers 39 26 © -
Nuhe Totat by $3.49 4,39 19.92)
Set Deferved Tan Linbilities (a )b} ‘w 380 4.92




Akrs. Brotors Food Specinlities Limited

Noles to g d fi ind
AN cmempls e 365 rapeds milfion, widexs orwise shared)

24

2

»

EN

2

fur 1he year roded 3t March 2043

Asat Recognized in  Recognized in OCT Asa
1 April 2086 PRI 31 March 2017
Deferred Tax Linbility
Property, plant and equipment 12242 1048 - 13287
Investments in muual funds a1 fir value theogh profit sod loss a2 {021 - 22
Forward exchanee comracts used for hedane 206 4.44 - 6850
Orer items LAY (G.73) - 0.76
Sul- Total (23 128.39 13.9% - 142,34
Deferred Tas Assers
Provisons - eimployee huw!u» 12.08 ER N 087 16.12
Al on doubtful thk 023 139 - 282
MAT credis entirleniemt 1098 232 . 13.30
Others 0 {2.06) - 51.28
Sulb Total {by 41!& $91. 9.87 33.49
. . . . - -‘ v ot
Ket Deferred Tax Liabilities (a)-{b) ﬂiL’ 'H_z it.:?) 58.8;%_
As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2047 t April 2016

Other non-current liabilities
Delerved income
Govemnment granis 13148 3438 35.04

137.4% 3433 3504

— e wem—" T

The Group bas beew awarded grants under Export Promation Capital Geods Scheme {EPCG), Agriculturat and Processed Food Products Expon Development Authority (APEDA),
Technology Upsrdation, Extablishment, Modermsation of Food Processing Indusidies under NMEP and- Scheme for: Iraegraved. Calit Chain and Value Addition Tnfrastruciure. The
grants received in 2017-18, smounted 10 Rs 113.41 fduring 2036-17 Ry. 2.55 and during periods upto | Apnl 2016 Rs. 64.98 having net value of Rs, 43.70) were mldmomlupm

Curveat borrowings

Loans froun hanks repayable on demand (senwred}”

fulfillment of export obligations in case of EPCG purchase of specified plint and machinery in 8 specified region and for: other grants received, Th ok d under grants is
now recognised as deforred income sd is being amortsed over the usefid tife of the plant and machinery in proponion i i Which the relared 4 iMion uxpemseis sged
0273 165 59 191.83
262,73 165,52 191 .83
A — Somtonaettt

The working capitat timits of Stale Bank of India {SB1) are secured against entire curvent assels (evisting and foture) of the Group (other than Gremter Noida and Rajpural. These
loans ate further secured by second charge on eniine fixed assets (PPE) of the Growp (vther than Greater Nowda and Rajpura) and first charge by way of EM of property situated at
Wakia Kabewal Gugea, Bumbran-Laddowal Raad, Tehsil & Distt Ludbiana

These facilities are atso secared by persosal pearamee of Mi. Anvop Bevtar The faciities availed from SBI carrips Moating cae of interest @ MOLR -+ 0.25% 10 1.25% ranging from
8 15% 10 9 15% per annum (previous year § 13% 1o 10.30% per anmam)

The Group has also taken the working capital hams from HDFC Bank L3d whnch are secured against pari-passu Charge on entire currem sets (existing and future) of Noida Unit,
The tacifities availed from HDFC Bank carre floating rate of tterest o MULR + 0 10% 1 ¢ ¥ 23% per annum (previons vear ¥ 00% 10 9 05% per snnam). (Refer Note 15 cash and

cash equivalents)

Name of the lender

Penalty Clause

State Bank of India

The Growp will mamtain sdequare net working capitel ai:all Times 1o meet rhargin requirements and in case of shonfall in
NWCimoess borrowings. the Bank will charge: penal ‘interent @11.00% pa. over and. sbove the oormal inlerest fate
applicable.

In casé of non compliance of.current sipulanicny wilhin thie sipob prm!mdmum@l%pa over and sbove
the nanmal interest rate will be harped on entire (uitstanding 1 for ﬂv: plriod of delay.

rregdariey in fund based Limite: 48 2% pa on'the nﬁmmm for m period of irregulirity on the irregular portion
foor the period of iregatirits. However, in case the i* salar for the period bevond 60 days. penall
rate of interest will be charged on th entise outsianding from the 5151 day enwards

Nen-subnission of renewad data inclading Audited Batance Sheet Listed Companies o ol submitted within 7 months-
R 16,000 per suouth of deday For others, sf non submutied within 9 months of delag-Rs. 1o, 000-per maosith

10101 Bank

T such event of defauts, bank is aither o Racility. ut iberty 1o recall all the facility extendedt 1o the Geoup. | % {The rute will
be aver-and devmod 1 be an evemt of sbaove the interest rate; of the delavh for all orhay facility Bacility) on the iy amouns
for 1he delaved period will be chasyed for e Group for thi defauly period

Trade Pavables

Trade pavables
- 1 micro and smal enterposes*
- 10 others**

has dunnyg the ves, sot
erved unider MISMETY A @

> dncliades i o fodated partres Jeelve pesy

Other financisl lisbilities

Current nustursties oF losig-seem deb

Interest accrued but not due on horrewings

Payables towards capral goods
Unpaid dividends *
Security and other trade deposity

Forsard exchange vontracts used for hedying

e pegany

380 37188 289.57
3%9.70 3‘7‘7'8_5 259.37

ot gy ot s sapphiers
srader MSAED A

s therr sGius ey the MSMED vt Based on the above facrs” there are s dues to
win i note 44

1287 2 44 4t
367 331 231
107 3892 0
R ] . 143
17.62 997 $4.89
450 - *
39785 52,39 162,56

“nchedvs et anwant of Re N i31 Vanch 2607 NG b Apssd 2630 Rs ¢ 25) pavable 1o M Ny Thooios which iy Iving with srbitator due o a dispute between the shiueholdens of the

Graup




Mry. Beetors Food Speciafities Limited

Notes 1o tidated financial Tor the year ended 31 March 2418

(AH cnsanns e in Prpess soillion, mitlexs otwrwise stedi

2% Other curreat linbilities

Deferved income

Govermment grants (Refer note 24)
Advances from customers
Stansory dues
Divadend distribution tax payable
Employee payable**

** Inchades dues 10 related parties Gefer sole 47)
29 Provisions

Provision for employer beneflits {refer note $5)
{ompensated ahsences
{natuity
Others:
Frosision for Litigation trefer note (ap)
Provision for sales returs (refer soe (b

2) Provision for litigation*™
Batance 3t the commencement of the vear
Add: Provision made duning the vear
Lexs: Prosision utiisedireversed during the ve
Balance at the end of the year

*reler note 41ALD) for details of pending finigation

b) Provision for safes returm
Balance at the commencement of the year
Add: Pravision made during the vesr
Less: Provision wilisedfreversed during the vear
Halance st the rad of the year

This represents provision nade-for possible sahes retums by the castomers for sales made by the Group, as estimated on the basis of past tends

38 Currem tay liabilities jnet)

income sax [net of advance tax Ry 368 71 (as a1 31 March 2617 Rs

1L T and v at | April 2016 R 344 944]

2 Span IR Bvse inseasseonsZi i PR

|15

1013 929 §86
61 252 33,67
1490 3179 3128

. . 343
6258 5737 5186

103,79 121,47 131,27
p—— Mt R
LS 135 9%
191 156 131t
117.65 183 9§ 83 39
6.8 616 o

126.86 T12.59 [YFE
e Po— g
Asut As
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

103 9% 8539

11.67 3.

- 433

11768 103,98

.10 £61

615 .10

16,10) 851

[Rt] 610

Asal Asat Asal
3) March 2015 31 March 2M7 3 April 2016

2600 1203 w83
26,60 12,93 .43




Mrs, Bectors Food Sprcialities Limited
Ntex e S rod P amotal

for the your emded 31 Afarch 2008
stared)

TAH comesunis are i rupees millin, ndess woherwtse

3

Revenue frum sprrativns

Sale of prodicis Imcluding xcise duty to e el applicable}
Salp of senices
Job work inzome

Totat (A)

Other aperating resesne
Export inconfives ircfer souw 24)
Net gain on acoount of foscign exchange finctustions
Orbers

Totat {B)

Fetat rovenuc fram operativas | A+ B

Diher Tacom

interest moomic from finpacial Aty at amortizcd coel

Jukerest income from viherx

Cwin on gake of I csiens (htj

Net ehange s i vakue of finuscial 26500 mcasured o faw valu dwough
profit aed loss

Giovermunen) geunts (Refor note 243

Othir mssweibanvans isvoms

Cost of materials consumed

Invemiury £ithe boginming of the yew
Add; Perchaces fre)
Lass; Inverioey. 3 the o of the you

Puschase of stock in trade

Purchascx

Changcs in inventarics of Gaished ponds, stock-ine rade snd wark-in-
progress

Opcening invintoric
Fanishid ponds
Work-inprogress
Seockemetrade

Foek (A}

*‘hﬂ'g" s‘n! i'!! 15 ey
Fimshad oo

Wenk-ineps
Mkt

Total {B)

Brevizaseitncerascs in oxcisc dmy on change ia wremtoncs.of Deshed
goods {C)

Tatal (A-B)

52

Forthe year ended Feor e year eaded
3§ March 1018 31 March 37
HIMO3 AL i)
40754 W
Ko €159
136.33 1)
M #67
7252 1694
408 232.61
%’MJ& [3 X3
+17 A
[E2) 163
067 b
. 330
897 S
[T s (¥
; ] TE?]
1696 W36
e 38611
PRI 123896
FR . JoieTe,
o 10572
e e
14338 13% 39
1% 137
973 . .
ITER:) L6
17497 TEX'S
[ (&1
if 8% 873
(LX) 11338
LA
- %)
{IR83) 264




Mry, Bectors Feod Specinfities Limited
Nores 1o consslidared Boancinl starcments for ihe year onded 31 Marek 3018
(AY omenints are it nupees milinm. wnivs others iw s i

36 Empluyes henchits cxpense

Salarics und wages ¥36.75 el
Comiribetion to provident and pvhker Tunds ircfor note 461 337 3793

H Employee shure-bascd pavment cxpensc {eeler nots 4%) XL .
; S1dT wellare cypenses W5 2849
92,.-0.? £0%.43

37 Fimanee ot

fotereut sxponse oo financiat labilities measwed 5 amontiscd cast

Leas Gom banks 42.34 Joxs
Orhers .34 %17
FI5[] 5.0

3% Deprecistion and amatisation cxpense

Deprecistion on propotiy, plant and equipment W723 245,60
Asorusaiion an inangible assas 5.68 307
373.9_.) 24’{?

39 Other cxpemses

Rent isefer mote 4711 2K N 39%
Raes o aves 1464 25
Posver amd fuck CRE 2BI5
Repair and mssmsnance
Plam snd seachisery 3430 3999
Butildmys 14138 W
Dnlers 1% 411
Travelling snd conveyamee 280 .
Pavenent ta zuditoc (refor wawe (a) betaw) 77 116
Legat and professional foce [RE2 287
Printing and siatanery 3% 348
Net change i fuir value of Tnapcid asscis moasured st i volee throngh oo -
profil and lass
Adverusement and salcs promation 13633 2R
Conswmption of stores and spare puns 2%k 26468
Commission and tyokcrage i . (X1}
Commuae #ian casis ke X7
Dhivecior’s remuncratn and suting fae 1x 83 .27
Freight and foevwarding $16.%3 41433
Insacance £59 %48
Luss on sale swnite off of peoperty, plant and cquipment (net) 144 L
Al o wradz reccsvalsde and ather ok 54 755
Bank charges 27 392
Expenditare o Corpoeatz social responsibilin (refer note $4) b4 i 218
MirccBamoous expensos ¥l 1237
132197 112443
v ——
£} Faymoent to anditnes
As audaar
Stateton audn s28 366
Codisainn i 29 "2
Kennbuesamant of expenigs 03 4 3t
377 4.1&
.
30 Earming por share (£PS)
A. Basic carnings por share
o Profin fag for basic carmg e shre of Rs. i vock
Profis Jor the yvex R TFS LR 9

1 Byighicd anvrage mvsher af egnity Susres v fhanid

Balamcr o the bogimpay, o the Lon < T
EAscr of tssue of bonua shares 2863
$124
Basic Earniags per shure (e vatue of Rs 10 cach) 630 fus
B. Ditntcd earnings per shave
2 Profit ghons} fisr diited varning per shore of R, 10 o
Protis Yo the yeae F0.4% 29081
i Weightod ovveage nunthes of cquiy dwees for fddumal
Batance at the bogimning of the vesr 63 Wa3
Eifect of ss30e of bosus shares 63 243
Effuxet of cmples oo stack apons 1 1 -
XN - A6
Dibsied Earnings per share (face valge ol R, 19 vach) 0.2 2 .0%

32




Mus; Betwors Food Spectatitios Limited
Notes to consbidaed fincist statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
AV} comosmx e in ripees milfion. anlexs mberwise stoted)

41 Contingent Habilities, contingent asscts mad commiments

Asmt Asas A at
A Continpent Lishiies SHNINE  3F Mancti 2017 1 Ageid 2014
Onmcmzofmummurwmncnmmmesmm«maowt\'#m, "‘ phicable. tie Grosp ¢ fidont that e vutcomy &
the above cases would b i the favour of the Group asd ix of view i vo provision 1s requned in reapect of the

2. Claims agmanst the (roup ot ackrowledged as debts (The Group experts a favowrsblc ouieome against afl the cascs)

B lacane Tux eeister) mations 4 IR &3

i3 Relating 1o Income tax demand on wonam isatfowance for AY Miikid - ae3 and

i) Relating w0 Ineiene 13 demind oo cerues dsatlowance for AY 201412 Wi 813 il

i3 Rebating 1o Income tax demand on congin disallowsnce for AY 201314 5 <} 153 b1

¥ Relating to Tncome Wy domamd on conain disaflewance for AY 201516, A% - -

15} Sabes tax peluted maters ' 7 38 92 pY]

1) Sades Ty domand for asscssman year 2005-06 on account of Japst Tax Credic not reversed agmnet branch waneler m am pal}

and benefit of deferved pasmaem of tax on UST gakes i the stave of Nimachal Pradesh )

o Sales Tax Demand foe assesamens year 26314 on accoun of pening C forms asd ¥ forms 10 b deposited wit the - (K] .

sakes tax deparnies of Ut Pradesh.

1) Ciril vumtery .48 925 -

i3 S dury ease Jor e phed nken: on %9 yoars lease m Noida 9.1 940 .
B Inrespect nl hank guarantres

Ciarantees given by the Grovp 748 3 Lot
& Ohers . .

Differential smoomt of Customs Dty payable by the Growp i case of non Falfilownt of cxport obligation apaiest t: oru? 498 "

import of vapital goods mads ar concoastonal eakc of duty. Bascd o the pan sales pesformanice and e Nesme sales plis,
managemn is quite hopefil to meel oul the obligations by exeeating the required vedome of exports iss Tiduee:

ispocy o'l e b restroues 4 the Pay d Bomass Aut, 1908 for the lnancial year 2814518 simce 1047 1047 1047
maniey i3 subejudicions in simila case

0. Cibier pending Gitigarions
€3} The Geoup had obusinvd a sty agasnss Hunaclist Pradosh Guvorsint order hvvmgontn @ . v on ol goods caicning the 3. The sanme was reduccd s 1% with effext from 13 haly
2011 and when increased to 2% widk cffect from § March 2614, The Hon'ble High Court had s1av2d the matser The cotimared amoust of enry ax upso TE Ninch 2018 of Rs_ 99 87 €31 Mach
3M7 Re #9321 Apeil 2006 Rs. 72 331 (mcludimg inectest of Rs. 40.67 (31 Morch 2617 Rs_30 19, 1 Apni 2616 Xs. 202333 bas beew suovided in the books of assownis
The Groep hus providesd a bank guacmice for 3n mesnt of Ra. 39.48 (11 March 2017 Rs. 3495, ) Aprit 3016 Re 25.25) im this regand.

b} The Growp bod Ricwne 3 stay agains Punjsb VAT Aztinsyingenuy 1y on Parmace O basis of High Cows judgmen delé 96 Lhe S8 Point in an anerhcr case which it pending
before Supreme Court. The cstimared smount of tx and isicrest theeeon epto 31 March: 2018 of Re 361 (31 March 2M7Rs 320 1 Apeid 2016 Rs. 3 00) fincheding intcress of R 1.9 (3¢
March 2017 Ra 162 £ Al 2086 1 310 has beon rovided in the bocks of sccomnts

tc} A demandof Rs. 2 37 and Rs. 3 78 relatod with FY 20087 sad FY 2000- ly ia pending with DETC. Lediie The mames it refuscd with inges tax crdit slalocd by asscssce om
parchase of HSD The Geoup bas denandedio stan the precreding wtboss depositieg e 29% o amowsi demamdicd. The dcparicos Bas veiccted the sppest of the Group, The Groun ks Mod
the what pitction m High Court and e High court had scoopied the conteation of asscssre & remand the case 0 DETC, Ludiinna, .

The Group has cremad the prosismn in books for amount & & d has aiso L ¢ e 1.3% por wonth; Thorefore the prevision for-us smoust ol Rs. 4.4
131 March 2017 Rs 407, § Apeid 3016 Ry 3645 and Rs 775 138 Mach 2097 Re. 79K, 1 Apnl 2015 Ra. 6.305 includes an wacrest of Rs, 243 630 Masch 2007 R 1.0, 1 April 202 Ry
1:27y nad K 350051 March 2017 Re 332, 1 Apwil 2006 Rs 2585 sespctivety.

) A demond of Ks. 12 fov asscvsmons seas 201314 o accounk of peading C forma and F farms raised by Dipeey Commissioncy, Goneam Budh Nagar Nowts, Luge Pradixh ponding 1o be
dpoited wth e xabes 1 & hak boon provided fir iy the books of accoonts. . :

B Contingent Axseds
The Growp docs nat have any contingun ssets 25t 31 March 201831 March 2017 sad 1 Apn 16

€. Commitrents
Estinated amonsnt of compants remamngg 1o b execoted on camial accant inet of sdsameos) and nok pravided fow R 128 9% o o X March T Rs, 28508, 1 Agwit 3016 Re 132.3%)
Apart from the commitments disclosed above, the Grroup kas no mager Mmcmn-mmmmh*mnfmmmm

43 Semnent infurmatin

Basis far sepmentation
Bogment infrmation b grosontod in respest of the Growp's kay aperating sepnonis. The operating scgmunts e dased v the Group's wiansgsuens aod sernal roponing S i

Opersting Sepments
The Group's Board of dirccions iase bees idenuficd as the Cliief Opcoanng Decision Makss ¢CODM'). smice they are rospomnble for aff #13ior decaseaens with ruspct 2 e perporation and ¢ oo
of buasiness plaee. prepaestion of tedya. plasrng. afhisnce, socrger ad Aoquisition. and cxpansion of ow new 3

B Wz opniom of e Bosed, 1here is gaiv one tepenable sepmient i Haveswe from food prodecis s A
statements of 2w Caoup

b, ey acparane drsck For yegneent coporting 1 required 10 e made i 1 Beavciat

Eminy wiske diabnnees

A Informtion ubunt Jswolacks g wivices

i} Revenue comprises 1 31 March 2018 A March 2 ?
Revenue froem food peodscs™ . 3537 it
Tousl . 6A8587 613301

Texthwdes other opesaing sovendss
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Mrs. Beztars Food Specialitics Lisnited
Nites bt Gad

Tor the year ended 31 March 28

LAl coenstty sre in rpees million, nadess offervise stated)

8. lﬂmmmwmﬁedm

he Groug's by the Group's coumry of domicike i <. India) end othet cousiviss. [n p geopriphicsl mformaion sepRarOTVea bt buon
M(mﬂ\e, g aphy tocation of The Q15 e of the Grovp's Vidated revemmes ond N # pical maskes, regardiess of where ihe goody et
produced:
i Revenue frem extermnl vustomcns 33 NMareh 3018 31 Murch 2047
\hﬂrm Indis 480208 15480
Ouside india 2.063.3) [ 1
Tl 5.458.47 c,;sux
) Wlbln 31 Maach 29138 3t March Jm7 1 April Jns
Wthin lﬂdﬂ 3517 187 3.6
Uitstds Indha 33866 23420 15233
Yo 93,83 2007 334

The Croup foae commmen non-unent asscts o produsing goodsd procisieg Rrvces 1 damesi znd svivss markes Heooo. sepuake figurcs for ochar assots/ addumms W Tevd ssscis lave not been
Torm:shed

abest majns (From cviernal custismens)
Dasing the year endod 31 March 201K Group docs nat have tansactions with any single cxicrnal customer having 19% o more of st seveneg. 1Ry B8 for the vewr ended 31 Mach 2075

Lrases
Opersting lease

& Leagex as lessee;

Ths Geoup duss g feases Tos and For 3 prysed ranging b5 yours. Tenme of the K fud for f and : | Teasg e
mﬂuhll?ﬁ()lmzmﬂl&7‘31)1::\;km:hmwﬁlo&kmw(pmfnmlumwmgmuw

3% March 2438 312 2037

Comeme fas msae Tease p ‘eereree ax in relation fo the above Rase srangurments are pavable 3¢ follows:

Within one o ’ (LA LS X]

Later than omc.vear bew noi hater than five yours 3837 0p?

Later tham five yess i -

25, EILN

Under previons GAAP, wmmm Mmlmuhﬂepnm of Yease were accoawied for Based on the gl rndashmnm:g pbw\-mm Under ind AS. am
teven il pot legally d as lesac) g to oot 3 abect 10 remarm fir o paymcor serisaof pay met incase

u(h anargements @c determined to be in the natare of leasey, soth anangonents art seapired e alagsificd imio fuiance o apeiating beases 25 per the rcwmam of Tnd AS 17 Lrases

The Geoup ks Jotravark s be #n the: marure o operating fcuse and coordingly those have been clasufied as opcratmg bease wrangenmont As 2 resokt uf thia during ike

year the Croop has booked Ko & ing b R 30,68 IRe. 4560 for the year onded 31 Maech 20879, Thueis a o e fanue boase and i therek e

assonsod Least income anousting o Rs 36 59 iRs 15 53 foe the viaw ended 31 March 201 Thave beoe booked 24 e to the comsolidated statement of profit awd boss duviny the vear

The Ministry of Micre, Small and Modinm Enterprizes hcu ispwed 40 Office Memorandom dated 26 August 2008 which recommcads that the Micro and Smait Taterprises shhanthd MCuN S0 el
stk s e £ daan Numbr a3, ocmed e Sing of the Memorandam  Azcordimgly. the disciosnte in eospoct of umonnts jayable © ek
mmmukwaudhﬂmsm&mﬂw(ma-dmmbudnw«mwnmadmknuiwﬁwum

Particul EIT As o Asat
artieutam 33 Narch 3 31 March 207 1 April 3916
Piessupal ipcant temamang ungaal W any supitier a0 3 e omd of the arcounting vear . - N
Intaress guc theroon scntateny ypaid 1o amy sugpphicr as af e omd of the accounting s s - - “
The arnount of irgercst pand to soems af scchion 16 of the Migro. Smal) sl Mediun Enterprses DevalopimeatAct 2iR% 3hong - - -
with the amaums of the payment made to dw supspires by ond the apginied day

The smwoust of urercst duc and pasable for The pord of dekay i kg pavmest swiich have buen pad b Bovond . . -
appomvicd day dering the periady bt without adding Whe satcresk specified ander the Micra, Smail asd Modinm Emcrpnscs

Developroems Ay, 2000

The noest of marest accraed and 1emaning unpant 31 the tod of the Sooiing year. . - -
T\emmd’lumvwmmmmmé«nﬂwﬂeammhmmn}wxmmhmmmmem:vmm - . .

ahove are scusathe peid o B small emerpeise. for the parpose of di ussder ection 23 of
the Micro, Smuatl and Mediers Enerpenses Dovelapment Act, 2006

Translecr Pricing
“The Group bad eatcrod into specelicd doancatic tramsasions with selacd partics. Diving
of scxon F92F oF the Tncores Tav Act, 1961 are s agphicable 1o the Growp
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Mrs, Beetses Foud Specialitios Lintes
Notes te 1 Kt ] for the year ended A1 March 2018
A7 stsenints are in vapeys million. anless stheraise stwtod]

46 Employee benefits
The Group ibures 10 the following post-omph defized benedis plans.

) Defined Contribution Plans: .
oy fwrt “The Geoup's vostribution 1o the: Kinplayioas Previdies Pund is dephiniied s the de i Erpl
Ve Ciroup makice contribusion wwasdy providon fiwit for enployes. T 's sk % idun depiinitod 30 the g ; : g
Provident Fond and Miscell i Act, 19527 ibution puyids s the pish by ihe Group is'ot the mée specified sarler The Einpl P Furud aod Miscel)

Provisions Ags, 1952,

Drring shie yea, the Group Bas teecgnised the folliwing anidants in the wosilidared Sotement of Profit wnd Loss Gnebadid i e i< pliziee benefith oxp

N For the-yeunr emied
Partienlars 31 March 2018 31Aurch 2017
Contrtbatan 12 provident fand 236 min
) Defived Bemetit Plas:

Gratulty . .
The Group uperatts 5 posi-comploymentdofinod binchit plas for Grabisy. This plao eatitles an cmplayée 10 feceive el tronh's sabury for each yuie of vompheted sirvice o the time of
reiromentiexit: This scheme is funded by the s assets.

The employee's gratoity funid scheme & by Life & & & «wmm.mwmmmmmmmmwm payment (o vested
employeesat roticoment, deeth whilein " 5 f conp AT amount ¥y W0 3 dayx aakuy e fr euch completed yeur ol servive e pan theren!’
iny axcine of 6 montie subjuct Jono ceiling. Vesting occurs upon completion vf § years of service. The prexent valite of odligativn s detenmined Bried on scinaring vakution wang the
Projected Unit Credit Methwd, which recognere caxch poriod of servive ax Biving rse to add g bemefit chti amt i Ut sop fy te Bl up the fina
obligation

The mast rovent aciuanial valtustion of pins sssets and the prosent \ duc of the defined benefit ohganion for gratuity were carmed out a3 8 3 March 2018 The present vilas of the dofired
enieiit obligasions and e relaed varrent s sos ang pass SErvice Los. W measurd wsing e Progecied Uit Cradis Mothod,

A. Basedt on the-avtupoal valuation abaasned i this sespect, the follrwing Waote seis ot the status of the yravuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Group's Snaneislstatements 35 2

Satancr shedt date:
Asw AfW Asa¥
~MARING SMarht) tasdeie
Net deflaed bensdlt Hability
Liability for Grstuity : ne . 2197 1352
Tatat emplayce bawelit Uabilitles 2243 ¢ 16 1382
No-eutrent 2054 041 R F]
Curres 19 (B L3
B, Moveaent in net delined benellt (asset) Fahitity
The follewing uhle shows 2 suzoncilistion from the apening batances 1 the chading balatiovs. for ot defined bepefi gct) tisbitity and us CIRRPOOALE,
21 Niarch 3010 S N TV !
ohligation Asats Causeey Rabitiey l ehligative aabety (snis) Hatility
Dabance 3 a1 3 Apoil $381 30 umn 2.2 &3] 1330
Tacladed In Prof ur foxs
Currens service cost 1040 B 104 as - o84
Interent cost (invami} 408 .40 1.68 0y b3 ] s
Past service cost g6¢ > X5 . .
1568 L0 128 13.01 130 075
Included in QC)
Remeasuresnents oss igan) . -
- financial assunipsions $1.3% [EREH 1T 354 {30 L]
- demogtaphic sdjustmens - - ~ . . .
- experierce adjustmens (1.5} : {1.36) L)) : {083)
[FEIT) 1% X a3 __ieihy 51
Otber
Exposted rotm
Conributions paid by the employ . 00 {6.00) . 1.66 {100
Beneits paid 40 - (27 )] @ - PN
2.49) 580 10 8 8y 188 fa.m
Balance xs 2t 31 March gJT 3005 2343 2251 3184 2197
Dirinyg the curmnt yeis, (he gravsy srangemims wise adiusion 1 refiont oow Rgal roguin B the county E grataity by, As. a resuit ol the platt anwacndmint, the Group's
Setined peneits obligation socressed hy Rs. 866G A corsespording past scsvice coet was rcagnoed m dbe hidated § of Protit and f.nsx dunng the curront voar
. Plam sasets
Plan wsely Eonprise of the followding
Asat AS At
ggm%t 1y KIESTY W 178 § Apri2nie
s with Lafo i ¥ - BLOS% $Lo3w 21095
Investments with S5 Tite insuraioe SIRDE 1807% W%
The eatimates of Riture satary i idered in setumrel valuals .mmafmﬂum,m,mhmM”Rm)wwmmmﬁmmmw:xmn

basia ak provided i séievant dcenmming nandard
T wverall experied rate of wewim on assets i detenmiavd buscd an e actual s of retarn Suring the Currpe year,

O an unsial basis, s asser ettty msiching vndy is done Wy the Group wheeslhy the Group contribuos the a8 increnss in the yonuial Tabiliiy @ the plan inusoget in ordir © 1nanape
e habiiiy nsk.
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Mes. Bectors Food sp:cbwm Ummd

Netes to for the year ended 31 March 2018
(AH amenints ure i rupees uﬂlm, unless otherwise staved)

D. Astuariat assamptions
#) Economic assamptions
The following wers she principal sctuiriad at the iepurting date. The dixcuun rate i gunctally based upon the market yields xvailabie un G Durwls 3t the
date relevant to currency of hereliz payments for s Wwetn that aiches shc Liabilitien. Sulnry growth rte w Group's fong term et estimate s 1o salory increwses & tukes nevount of mM

seniority, promation, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors on Tong trm busis as provided in relevan sccounting standard. These vuhution nsuraptions are as follovws:-

31 Mwrch 2033 31 March 20127 1 April 3018
Discount taie N 7.53% L0
Expected rate of future salaty increase 2040 Tt 100%
) Demographic sssumptisay
Asirision rates are the Group’s hest estisate of eraplayer tumuver in fistiae oy dering favtors suck of busness R idysiry, rélemion policy, demmend & sapply i
cmplayment inarket, standing of she Group . busisioss plan, 1R Policy ctoas'p d o the relevant imdard. Attrstion sutes ux given elow have boen seveivid & inpet from
the Group.
33 March 3013 31 March 2017 1 April 28186
7} Retirement age (yewrs) [%] [ &
iy Morulity sates islusive of provision for 100 of JALM {2006 - 0%)
disabifity
i) Altrition ot Ages Withdranea? cate %) Wihdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal e (%)
Lpto 30 years. 360%, 3.00% 3P
From 31 0 84 yeus . 2000 200% 1005
Above 44 years e 1.00%, 1.00%
E. Semsighyity anslysts
% ty passible shanges st the neporting date o atw of ty " PUR— 0 s, waeks have affivtod the defined heaefit oblig sy the
amaunts shown Below.
33 Mrch 2010 34 Maseh 2017
Incremse Decrease Imereary Deeense
Discount rate (0.50% movement) 034 422 (355 [3:3
Expouted e of fiturse salny secrcase 408 [ ¥ 138 %85
£0.50%% movement)
Sengi we e ligy and d 16 AN ol terial andd hors nopiis of shange dul caltitiiled

Scmsitivities as rale of increase of ponsians m: payment, fate ul morcase of pensions. betune retitemont & Life cxpectarsy atv ot appinablc

F. Expected maturity sunlysis of the delined denefit plvag in Tutore yours

ZParticulary 31 March 201% 31 Mared 2017 1 Apeil 2016
Duration of Sefived beacfl) payrucnts

Lessthan | yeat 19 1.58 L3
Between 1-2 years 146 191 FA L)
Between 3-8 yoars 7.5 6.62 54
Qves § yoars 3158 LBt 3330
Tetal i__Lﬂ . H_.J.! %8_[_

The waighted avirige dunstion of e Jebined benetit plas obhiganion 2 the end of the 1eporting persad s 1885 yeute (3 March X7 1927 years. | Apeil 2016 1885 yeurs],

10 pon PGy ereeit plan 1o the 201819 38 RS 1519 facs.

G, Description of Risk Expesures;
Valastions we based on conain assumplions, which we dynumic in siswire and vary mlmAsMeruavammhthv ~

A} Salaty Incteates- Actual salary inerearce will increass the Plan’s lishility. Incrvasy i salary inerosse i Boture witl alse increare the kshility.
B Investment Risk ~ If Plan is froded then Tiaditi : & wotuad i mmmh&:m daf the bast date cany inmpast the

C) Discoant Rases Reduction in discount rate in subsdquent VJatimy oun inercavs the plon's Jiobility,
£} Mortality & disability - Actua! deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher dhan waumed in the valistion can inmact the tiabilses
¥} Wighdrewals - Acreal withdrawals proving higher of Jower than assved withdraeals avd change of wi ) raved af subwonp Senrtions can impat Plans latnliy

i) Other feng-term coplavee benefits:

The Group provides for vony S ab § W ployees. The eriplayves can Sury-forward x pottion of the wnutifised aceried compensated abscncds and stilise 1t in fuae service
periods oF Feccive cash lion va of emph Sie the d absences do sot fall due wislly within iwclve momihis afier tae cad of thy peniud i which the
employees reader the relaked service and ate also aos upwod w he utilized whelly within twedvi months afier die cnd of such pesiod, e bonelit s classitied a8 & hag-tomm employee
beazfit During the yea ended 31 March 2018, the Group his i ating ¥ Rs. $.00 (31 Manch 3017 Rs. 6.31). The Group determncsthe

expease Sor cmmpensasad absences haxis the mmmmmmmmwmmwm mmht!‘miomd Unit Credit Methad.
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Mrs. Beetors Food Speciafities Limited
Neter 1o cansalidated financist stiatements for the year ended 31 March 1014
AR amounts isre i rupices silfne, wntest dderwise stted)

47 Related pacties

A. Related parties and anture of retutionship where controd exiag:

Astociates
Cremica Ages Foods Lisritnd
B. Key Manwperiat Personuel (KMP)
Anovp Becier Munaging [irocior
Ishoun Bestor Diroctor
Parvern Kuziar Goet Exoestive Bintor
. independenst Dircetors
N Chand Jain
Subhash Agarwal Duvctor we . 10 Febrawny 2017
Archuns Bhargav Director 1l 1S November 2016

B. Refatives of key munagement personnel b ing transwetions with the Greup

Dharamvie Rejni E bhaan Bector l Anowp
H Bector* Beeror Bevtur

Father i - i - 1 Anoop Declos 1 &‘ﬁm
Miother I " I ~ [ ehmibener | Wb

Spouse 1 RusiBotor | Dharumv Beswr | Nehu Gupty 1. Reshuni Recior -

{ . i - Lo S0t Becwe T fae Beer
- b B
[peBee T A e : G Borier
Son Anous Beclar Anoop Bevter - Suvie Britoe
Akshay Becior Beginr : -
* Deccused uns 2§ Deceriber 2087
E. Related entities of KMP
Partaership Grm
Sunshine Foods
Public/Private Limited Compunien
Mex. Beetors Cremica Dairies Private Limted
Hindu Undivided Fansily
Dharamviz and Sons {(HUF)
Arop Beier {HUE)

Pareoen. Goel (HUF;

F. Key monagement persenny) compensasion

ahets For the year eades  For the Yeaz ended
Farte o BLMaTh IRy M Merch20y)

Shoteieen eaployee benefis 4951 .23
Pust-cmployment defined benelis 448 2%

Director sitting feos . - B8 03
Emplovor share Susod paymen: - 456 :
Taotal compensation $414 4512

GURUGRAM) &
ke




Mry. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Notes for the year cnded 31 March 2018
Al asmonnts are in rupres mitlise, waless vtberwise stosodd)

G. Transnctions with refatsd parties at commercial terms®
A number of key mansgemenr persumnel, of thoir selated partios, hoid positions i pthes entitics that rexait in them Baving contial or signilicantinfloence aver thowe entitics. A number of

mmmwxﬂamammummwm:mm of the ows with key P and their related parties were Do mRIC
faw:mble an thc avatfable, ar those which might vessonubily be expocted to-be avaitablz, i reapect of simiter stansuctions with T ) relnted ontities o un
wem'x dength hasés. The aggragate valie of the Uriup's : fattug 1o bey # e wnd entitios veer which they have cowrol wr significant wifluence is s follows:
Particatars For the vear ended  For thy yesr suded
38 Marek 2018 3E Mareh 2047

Uaseeured losn taken from

- Angop Bocor 3070 2150

- lslnuas Bectoe N 1998

~ Dharumwir Beetor v $.40

- Ry Bector - o0
Unsexured loan repaid 1o

- Andop Becior 277} 29

- Ishasn Bector X 1

- W' Bettor .38 30

- Rajni Bector 183 S50
Finance cost oa foxa taken

- Anoap Becuoe 849 133

- ishaan Bector ax2 (154

» Dhararmvis Bector a3 423

- Rajni Bector aa? [
Others

Rent paid

- Dharamviz Becor a9 L1

~ Angegy Becast ES A

« Aminyp Becwsr HUF . k34 306

Reat received .

- Cronxa Agra Fouds Liamited - o .

Contribution te providens sad oiber funds

« Raskivs Bowtor $.33 G

- Neha Gapla 42 EOH

Interim dividend puid

- Asbop Bector 1114 1142

~ shasn Beocu 179 [S1

~ Ao Beews HUF 130 X4

- Rasdami Bucsor U9 13

- Suvir Boctor 19 o

Centwltancy charges paid

- Subhash Agarwal 661 an

Salary puid

- Rashay Hector i b

- R Becror 182 2w

- Neka Guota .08 1R

* Transactions ae et off Sales Tax Seyviee Tax/GST wherever applicahic.

H. Related party balances 35 a1 the year end:

" Axst Asar An af
Ouistaadiog balances 3N March2018 31 Marck 2017 1 Apri 2616

Trade end other payables

- Anosp Betor (e .48 04X

- Tshaan Boear an2 282 2
B 6.3 axy a8

.9 83% €633

- hoha Cupia §iv ) wig

- Rajnt Bewser ax @3

- Dharamvar Becwor B9 AN

Unsacured lonns

- Iskaan Bxtor 634 1733 -

- Aneop Beclos 1787 1346 1558

~ Rujei Becwor o 117 064

~ Dharamvir Bector . 0.53 452

Advances and other receivables

« Cremica Agro Foods Limited 607 a8 608

Nun curreal imvestments

- Cremwd Agro Foods Lunned WH2 Wob awi

1. Personst Guarantees of Direclors and relatives of Direetors for loans obtnined from 1he banks
Personal Guarantées of Mr. Anvop Bector are lowards outstanding loazs vbisined frocs the bunks (Refer note 313

Al transactions were made on nommal commercial serms and conditions and af ane's ek prive.

N
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Mry. Bectnrs Faml Sporistities Limited
Nates totinanciat stasements Bre the year cndel 30 March 301%
AT amoants a1 in rapecs million, unless otherwise simed)

48 Shure-basied payment. ary

Al Dy privn.uf sharc-hased

i, Shure eption pregramme (cquity-sctticd)

O 30 June 2017, die Compas cuisblished shay, option that cantde cerlam emplosces of fic Company 16 parchase shares m the Company. Usdee thase
wans. Bolders of vesicd optives we eotiticd to purchase sharss a1 the exerdise poice of the shares ot respestive date of grant of options. The ke terms and vonditions
cehdhlkmmuhwp!mmnfmdlopinslemhmbybel&mim‘ .
ESOP schemes Grant Due ] Exree Vesting conditians
Employecs Stock Option Flan - 2617 §Geant 1) iden-2017] - 34323 R yews and $months [Servics conditions
vocs Stock Opticet Pant - 274 7 {Graest 2) 38-Jun-200 7] et condstions

O 14 3ty 2007, the Company mashifind share opiion programme by ity grans holders of the Company: for bonus shares in sthe Campany in the 1atie of 13

ESOP sifemes Grawt Date Ne.of Options  § Exercise | Vesting Pesing l Verting conditions
Eatplonces Stotk Option Plan - 2017 (Grant 13 36-June 203 7 B962 l’% 6212 ses and 9 maeths e condiions
: fpervice from gram
Ewrployics Stock Option Pran - 2017 (Grant 7) FoJon-2017} "SR] TIAEY |3 Veark and Fwaonihy [Service contont

ee froms prant

B. Mrissrement of fair values

i Equit, ded xharedd § pay ary

The 236 vatuc of epiims and the saputs used m the measurenem of e grans date faee vatues of the cquityacitied share Based pasment plans see as folfows

Eopheyees Stork
Optisn Pan - 2117 )
Gramg
3t-Mar-2018
Fair vatuc of aptions at prant date 12481
Emerpeine vato por shise ir gramt date 34708
Excroise pecc-at the grass dime 34924
Excrcise peior after bonus issuc 18
Expettnd yolatibey (woightedaveragey 3%
Expevted B fwoighted-av eraped Iy
Expecied dividends 82
Rish-Tree imeres! rate thased un zonermmcns 3.3
Expectial vobuitit has deca based v an cvah f the historisal volutility of the Company pacriculorty histovical period with
e expectad tonn The expogied izrm of the ha been based on kistarical cxpers 0d pinersl npGon Hchsviie.

C. Recomitiation of autstanding thare sptives
The vumnber ard wirghledoa stage cxerise prices of share aptions zedar e shars eption mogramms were as folliny;

Woighted average
Nomber of aptisax everase price

3t March, 20138 31 March, 2018
Emplovecs Stock Optios Ploas2617
Outrons sitatisding a5 2t the begmning of the year - -
Adik Optices gramied deeing the vew 2 4] M
Add: Options, acroand due 10 bosng share 79278 1o
Lasy: Ehmevns dxpsad dusiag she v . .
Less: Optioms sicrened durug the vouwr - -
Options vutstanding a5 3 the vou ond 145242 13342
Fcercisable as a8 31 Masch 201% . -

The gyt eusstandng 1 3 March 2015 bad an exercrse prce of Rs. 17412 and 2 noightodeaverage contrmcnend tef of 36 vems
D. Expensé recugnised v stuternent of prodit and bess

For e dennls of the setared cnphavoe boneli EXPRRERY RR Bole 36

Ve apvwy e i ouenmtanndts icph Mindky

go




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Notes to financial ststements for the yesr eaded 31 March 2018

(A apremnts wre i llion, uniess othervise siredi

4% Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

L Accounting classifications and faiv values

A, Fimancial instruments by eategory

As at 31 March 2018

As 3131 March 2017

Asat | April 2016

FNTPE Amortised Cost FVTPL Amaortised Cost FVTPL Amnrtised Cost

Financial assets
Nem-current foans - 3356 - R - 2021
Unher son-current financial assels . 968 - .21 - 322
Investsents 618 - 4826 - 102.70 -
Trade receivables - 693.83 . 536.07 “ 463.14
Cash and vash equmvalents . 58.76 - 136.08 B 67,14
Bank balances other than cash and cash “ EL 3.} - 39.32 - 43.00
equivalents
Current loans B - - - - -
Other current finamcial assets 653 Gy §2 2416 76 25 [RE 3822

6,70 43516 7242 892.74 113.8) 662.99
Financial Habilities
Non current borrowingzs . 956,93 - 373754 3699
Short term borrowings - 26273 - 163,59 - 191.83
Trade payables - 389.70 - 377.85 - 259.37
Other financial liabilitics 4.90 29213 - 15444 - 163 56

4.90 £,962.09 - 1.071.59 - 84778 -

B. Fair value hisrarchy

This section explains the judys and est made i determiming the Gz vatues of the Baancil instruments that are:

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are dis

ed in the fi

To provide an indication about the reliability of the wputs used 1n detennining fair valug, the Group has classificd its financral instruments into three levels prescribed under the
Tndian A ing Standard 113, An explanation of each Jevel follows imdemeath the able.

As at 31 March 2018

Particulars Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Investments
investment in equity shares and mutual funds 018 - - 0.18
Derivatves
Forgimi exchange forward contracls - 162 - 162
are measured at amertised cost (or,

Particulors As-at 31 March 2018

i Level | Level 2 Level3 Total
Financial asscts
Nonecurrent loans - - 356 33.56
Cnher son-current financial assets . - 968 968
Trade vecesvables - 693 83 693.83
Cash and cash equvalents - 58.76 88.76
Bank batances other than cash and cash cquivalenis . - 48.51 48.51
Curent foans - - - -
Other curment financial assets - - 90.82 20.82
Total financial assets - - 935.16 938,16
Financial tiabilities
Non cusrent borrowings - . 956.93 956.93
Short term burrowings - - 26273 262.73
Trade puyables . - 389.70 389.70
Other financral habidites - - 292.73 292,73
Total financia labilities . - 1,902.09 1,902.09
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - fair value measurements
Particulars Ax at 31 March 2017

) Level} Level 2 Level 3 Towt
Investments
nvestment in equnty shares and mutaal lunds 48.26 - - 48,26
Pepvatives
Foseren exchange forward contracts - A6 - 24.16




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Nates to financiat statements for the year eaded 31 March 2018
A sonngs are e gvdhon, wndess sthorwise stareds

Asaets and Habilities which are mensured at amartised cost for which Fair values are disclosed

Particuls As at 3T March 2017
srticubirs

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Non-carrent loans - - ‘gf; 3;;’:
by non-current Hnancud assels - . 535'(;' *86‘07
Trade receivables - - 38607 586,
Cash and easl couvalents - . 13608 1.30.03
Bank balances vilier than cash and cash equivalents . - 3932 39.32
Clarrent Joms - - . ~1_ . ~1_
Other current fimamcial assets - ~ 623 70.23
Total financial assers - - $92.74 892.74
Financial liabilities ‘
Naon current bogrowings B - 371374 EYAND
Short tersn borrowings - - 165 59 165,59
Trade payables E - 377 8% 37748
Other financial Jiabitines - - 15444 184,44
Total financial liabilities - - 1.071.59 1.071.59

yalue measurements

Particul As at | April 2016
arbculars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Ivextnents
Tvestwnt in equity shares and motual funds i02.70 . - WL
Pherivitives
Forgipn exchange forward contracts - (LR - 1.4
AsS iabilities whi h.ummms!vzm,mm:m;!,sgmgwmjmmmm
N Asat 1 April 2016
Particulars Level Loz Level 3 Towl
Financial assets
Naon-eurrent loans . . - 262 26.21
Chthes nonscurrent financial assets - - AN 3.22
Trade vecevables - - 463.14 463,14
Cash and cash equivalents - . 6714 67.14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaleuts - . 43,06 45.06
Current Joans - - . .
Other current financial assets - - 3822 58.22
Total financial assets - - 662.99 662,99
Financiai labilities
Non curren borrowings - - 2309 238.99
Short fenn bartawings - - 191 83 191.83
Trade pavables . - 25937 259.37
Cthas fisanessl bakshnes - . 165,56 165.56
ol financinl inbilities . - 847.78 847,75

Level 1: Level | uerarchy includes financial mstruments oieasured nsing quoted prices’ NAV published,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an aciive markei is determined using valuation iechni which ise the use of abservable market data

¥

amd rely as lutle a5 passible on entitysspecitic estimates. If all significant inputs required 1o fairvalue an instrument are observible, the instrument is mchuded in level 2,

Level 3 If one ar more of the Segnificant inpats 1s pot based on observable market data, the instrument is included in feve) 3. This is the case for unlisted equity secunities

There are no tansfers between level 1 and fevel 2 during the year

Valuation process
‘Fhe tinance department of the Group performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes for level 3 fair values, The Group relies on

them for instruments measured using level 1 valuation The Group using quoted price/ NAY's published, for the derivative instraments. measured using level fair values, the Group
obtams the valoation from the bank from whome the derivatives are taken. This team reports directly to the Chief finaneial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and

results are held between the CFO and the finance team af Jeast once every vear in fine with the Group's reporting periods:

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each reponing period.




Mrs. Bextors Food Specialities Linsited
Notes to financial starensents for the yesr inded 31 Marck 2018
(41! amonnis are in million, untess otherwise stoted)

€. Fair value of financiat assets and Bahil

asured at amortised cast

As at 31 March 20138 As 3131 March 2017 Asat i April 2086
Carrving asount Fair value LCarrying armoynt Fair value Camu_n" 3 Amount Fair value
Financial assets =
Nonvcurieni Joars 33 34 33 2 M8 318 2621 62
Other non-cutzent financeal assets 968 9.68 o2l on 322 2
Trade reconvables $93.23 593 83 386.07 58607 " 463 i4 453,94
Cash and cash equavalenis 5876 5376 13608 13608 £7.14 5714
Bank balances othet than cash and cash equival 4851 488 932 5932 4506 43,06
Currert loars - . - - - -
Other currest financial assets 20382 2082 76.25 76238 5822 5822
23816 53516 4 39373 562.9% 59

Financial tiabilities o - 2 T T e
Nen current bosrowings 95693 Y5593 3N $¥2 41 230.9¢ 23049
Short term basrowings 28273 26273 163.59 16559 19183 191.83
Trade payables 38970 38970 7788 37782 25937 3937
Othser current fmancial Jutulities 24273 s ) 354,44 18443 lt}g}é

1.902.09 1.902.09 1.075.59 1.071.59 84778 M7.28
The canrying amounts of made secevables. cash and cash cquevalents, other bank bak curtent loans, other cuntent financial .\:seu shosi-werm borrowangs, rade payables,
other custers financial fiabilities ate dered 10-be the same as then fair values, due to their sh nature. N P o da

values accordingly the same has not been discoumed
The faw valos for security depoarts were calonlned based on cash flows discounted using a current Jending rae. They ate classified as feved 3 fai valises 1n the fair value
# y due to the inchy of unok bie inpas includs weedit.

P

Financial risk management
Risk managemen| framewark

The Greup's nsk masagement polices are estabhished t sdentity and ansivse the 11sks taced by the Group, 1o sel appropriate tisk limas and conteals and o monstos 113ks and
adherence 1o hmits. Risk management policies and systems sre reviewed reguianty w reilect changes m market conditions and the Group's actroties ‘The Group, through us

g and dards avd p d . anms 1 ¢ imed and contro) n which 3l employ thew reies and
obhganons
The Group's internal suditor how i witle the Group's risk policies und p dures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk

management framewark in 7elation to the risks faced-by ike Group Internal Audit undertakes both tegular and ad boe reviews of fisk management controls ond provedures,
the cesuhis of which are reporied 10 the management

The Group has exposure to the followang nsks arismy from financial instruments:
- credit sk,

- liguidity nsk: and

- markel ngk

The Group's activities expase 1t to market nsk, hquidity nisk and credit risk. In order 1o mimnise any adverse etfects on the lnmnua\ petfonmance of the Group, demative
financial ostrumems, such s Toregn exchange forward contracts are emered to hedge certain foreign 13k expy . & pves are used exclusively for bedgrng
purposes 3ad not 38 trading o speculative mstrumens.

& Credit risk
Credit cisk 15 the ek of Gnanceal loss 10 the Group i a or 2 10afi f i fatls 4o meet its { obl Jring st a 1 losk 10
the Croup Credit sk arests provcapaily from siade iecorvables, devvative foncid mstraoents, Yo and advances, cish and cash mw»aluus and &p«ms with banks

Trade receivables
The Group's evposite fo cedit sk s ntluenced swmly by the sndividua! chansctensiies of each Huowner, 2 alse comsndtis the factors that may
mfluence e eredit visk of as customnor base, inginding the default risk of the industry and country m which caktamers cperate

The Group esablshes an allowance for impaoment that represents us expected credit Tosses i respest of Bade and other recenvables The management uses « sanphfied
approach for the putpose of omigukiton sf evpedted cradit foss for tade secenvables Ao sopairment analysts 15 performed a1 each repontng date

The a3k 2 ias establistied a credit pobiey under wineh each new cuslomer is amalysed indivaduatly for credin worthiaess hefore the stindard payowents
and defivery werms & conditions. e offered The Group's review nclades external mnngs, of M are. walbble financal statements. credit agensy miormation. sadusiy

fi and by i Sate hovts are esinblished for cach and y. Auy sales ovceeding those limis require approval fiom the
appropiate authon?y as per policy I momioring oustomer credit ek, customers are grouped ac:aldmg 1o thisy aedit charactenistics. mcludmg whether thiey v e
radi slust ks @ legal entn . whether they are a ). deaters oe end . thew geographic focation, industry . wade Instory with the Groap and evistenee of
pres sous Sinancaal difficsdues

A detanlt vt Trancial asser w when comnteruy T 10 meet pas mentwithen mnty davs when they il due

The Group based o internal asacssiment i s driven Iy the historscal experrence: current facts avarable s relation to default aind defavs i collecnion theteaf. the tede

nisk for srade recervahles is constdered fow The CGroup eatimates s ol for trade recervable using Sifetmee expeated credit Soss. Individual recenvaivles Wiodh ire Smsn
to b uncolfecble are written of) by reducing the carrying f wade svable and the amount of e huss & giised 1 the edated S of st and
J.oms within other expenses

Cash and cush eguivalents and depaosits with banks.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are held with Hanks which have bigh credis g The Giroup consaders that its cash-and cash equevatents hove low credi nsk based
ou the evternal credit ranngs of the conpterparties




Mrs. Bectors Food Specintities Limitest
Nutes to financial sialements for the year ended 31 Marcch 2018
LAl arnnnnts are in mitlton, wnless otheneise stated

Security deposins . )

Thee Group furmished seomity deposits o its lessor for obxuining the premises on leuse and smargin money deposits to banks. The Group considen tat its deposits bave low
creditnisk o negligible risk of defauit as the parties are will esrablished entities and have Srong Capacy 19 meet the obligauons. Alsa, where the Gronp expects that there
an unzeramity in the tecovery of deposit, it provides for suiatable impairment on the same

Particulars As at Aswt Asat

Murch 1618 31 Maweh 3017 1 Apeil 2016
Financial axsets for which loss AMowance is measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Losges
Trde Recavable 0432 59,07 26370

Hecociliation of {oss allownnce Pravision

Pariiculurs Ampant

Loss Allowance o § Aprit 2016 (0.56)

Change in Loss alowasice .44}

Loss Allowance on 3t March 2017 (.00
g n Loy alfowance (3.39)

Loss Allowance on 31 March 2018 {10.39)

it. Liguidity righ

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Gronp wilt encounter difficully in meeting ihe obligarions associaied with 5 fincial labikities thut are sented by dehivering cash or amtber
financial asser. The Group's spproach to managing liquidity 15 10 ensure, as far & possible, that it will have sol¥icient figuidity o mes its Tinbilines sehen they are due, wnder
bath normal and stressed cond . wathowt 3 p losses o riskwng darmage 10 the Group’s reputation,

Pradent liguidny rigk mphes p sufficent cash amd mark, securities and the cash Mlow generased from aperations 1 meet obliyations when due
and (o close out sarket positions Due 10 the dysame nature of the undetlying ugmesses. Group reasury mamiaing flexibibicy m fonding by masmaming availabuhity under
comnutied eredst fnes.

M itors colling fi 5 of the Group's liguidity pesition { g the undrawn borg g Sacilities) and cush and cath equivalents oa the banis of wepected
cash. fows, This. is generslly. carnied out at Jocal feved in the operating compinies of the Group i sccordance with practice and Timits ses by the Group. These limics vary by
focanan 10 take w0 accouwnt the Yiquithty of the market ix which the emity 1o adds the G5 liquidity palicy invelves projecting cash flows i
inajor curtencies and considering the tevel of Houid assets eCeRsary to mieet these, monitoring balince sheee Baquidity ratios against internal and extenmal regulatory
and maintzining debt ing plans,
Maturities of financial liabitities
The foll g are the 2 ! matwrites of financial fiabihitees at the reporting date The ameunts sre 1085 wrid und d. ad exclude erest
paysnents and teciude the impact of BeLUR agrecments
Carvyving anount Contractun cush Nows
Ap Total Upto § year Between Jand . More than & year
31 Mareh 2018 . years
Financial lisbilities
Non curvent borrawings ke ] 95693 .o 586,91 270062
Short enm botrowings 26273 227 %273 . .
Teade pyables T 38920 389,70 - .
{nher curremt financial Nabiliries 29763 20363 29743 - -
Yol 1,906.99 — 1060 93406 £36.91 270.02
Carrying amount Contracinal eash. Nows
Asat Totat Upto | vexr Betaven Land & More than § year
31 March 2087 EXES
Financial Habilities
Now curran batrowings kY2 el KxE g (LA A% ]
Ehrost term bomowings 18559 163 59 163 5¢ - -
Teade pavables A37.88 172,45 7788 . -
Chbey caerent financial Babilities 15444 13449 15444 - -
Total 107489 103640 214.89 323K 073
Carsying ainonnt Contraciwal cash flows
Asat Towml Upto § year Between | and & Aare than & year
i April 2016 ¥eary
Financial tiabiliies
Nen gurrent brrronsogs 23099 2309 - paiig d -
Shott tersy borrawings ior ¥3 [R40 5] 101 %% . -
Yrude pavabies 28937 25937 8932 B -
Cther current franciat liabibines 16536 143 56 163 S5 - -
Yotal 84738 84738 516,70 23094 -

The wflasiomtows disclosed m the above wble represent the centractual wadiscoumed cash flows veliting to denvative financial tabidwes held for rist B 2emEny
Peposes and which are nm wsealty closed aur before comractun) matity.

1 Marker risk

Marker nisk 15 the risk that Changes 1 markel prices - sueh a3 formpn exchanye tates and interest sates ~ wiltaffect the Group’s incovine o the valug of s holdings of fancal
Hstruments. The objecteve of markes nsk TMAmIPErent 15 ko manage avd comrol macket risk within pza bl . while g 1the retorn

The Growp wes dorvatves hive orwird contracts to aanage markes nsks O aLcow of foren exchange. Al such HIBACUMS are Curred it wathin The pndelngs s by
the Bowrd of dueciors




My, Bevtors Fond Specialities Limited
Notes to Tinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2038
(A ameanas are in million, anless othenvise siatodi

Currency rish
mﬁmwuamdwfmagu:umwnskoﬁmwn that are & & § o a y other than entily’s functionat ¥, hence
vate flucvuations arises. The risk is that the functional currency value of cash flows will vary as a rosult of movenents in exchange rates.

Conency nisks related 1o the csh aredit Joan have been hedged vsing foramed comraces Wken by the Growp.

In respect of other monetary assers and liabilities denoninsted i foreign crrenciss, rhc (‘mup % policy 15 10 ensure that i1s et exposure is kept to an sccepnable level by
buving or sefline foreian cutrencies at spot rates when 1 addeess sh i

Expasure to currency risk
The summary quantitative dats about the Group's expasure 10 cirency nisk as reponied to the management of the Groug 15 as foffows:

As at 31 March 2048

Usb Euro

Financial asset

Trade receivables 5.22 -

Forward contracts receivables 1483 -
Totat 20.07 -
Financial liabilities

Pavable for capital assets . oot 63
Fotat 0.0 a3
Net exposure 1o foreign currency risk 20.06 sﬂali
As at 3 Mareh 2047 usp Eurs
Financial nsset

Trade receivables 135 (A 2)

Forward contracts receivables 628 -
Tota) 9.60 (%)
Finunciat Habilities B

Pavable for capieal assess o @00
Total .61 001
Net exposure (o foreign corvency risk !Iiii_a 0.2.
As af § April 2016 usp Eure
Finzncial asset

Trade sevavahley 233 o4

Farward cvnracts recenables s00 -
Foixl 1323 AL
Finauscial Habilities

Pavatie for capial assess . -
Torat - hd
Net exposure (o foreign curvency risk l_@;} .14

Sesitivigy analysi

A by possibl o g (weakeming) of tse Ry apuiost all other Canencies as &8 31 March would have allecicd the of fi
‘knwmxmed ma !nicmx aarreney aad atfected equiy sed profis @ oss by the amounts shawn below This analysss assumes that ol other vanables, e parncslar interest
1H1eS, 1EBAID Constan

Particul Profit or loss Equity, net of tux
Artieulans Strengthening Weuhening Strenghening Wenkening

31 Mareh 2018

USD (1% movement) 12% 112,90} 844 1539
EUR (1% movement} 10.2%) 925 16} ik
31 March 2017

UISD (1% e movemens) o4 [LRELY 1402 1363
EUR (1% movement) #H06 18 19y 0 e 19 fiisa

Intecest rate risk
Fhe Group’s mam mterest ale ok anses from lometerm aod shosttorms botrcwirgn with sitable satws, whicl vapose the Groug cash flow 1o miceest oo sk G
noaaily msntams most of 15 lony Tetm bicrowmngs ot MOLK XX in Rupees. Group ks aff tne fong tessn fans froen State Bank of ldie. HDFC and 1011 Bask




Mrs. Bectars Food Specialitios Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018
(AH omomses are wmillion, undess othenwise stavd

5

Exposure to interest eate risk
Fhe wterest rane profile of the Grgp's anterest- brearing financiol mstraments as repened w the management of the Group is as follows

: " Ampunt
Particulars 31 March 201831 March 2017 1 Apri 2016
Fixed-rate instruments )
Fanvial assets 59.89 61 ‘ﬂ 1828
Financial Habilities {2312 {34.99) {20.68)
3477 26.36 27264

Particulars - Amoun - .

31 March 2018 33 March 2017 I April 2016

Variable-rate instruments
Fiuancial assets - .
Financial Habilities (1.312 55y (579.34) (13032

§1,313.55) {579.34) (450.32)

Fair vatue sensitivity analysis for fxed-rate instruments

The Group does not-accoumt for any fixed-rate fi inl assets or financial liabilities ;1 fair value through profit or foss. Therefore, s change in interest rates at the reponting dote
would sot affect profit or loss. ’

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would have increased or decreased equity by Rs,0.23 atier tax (31 March 2047 Rs. 0.} 7. L.Apni 2016 Rs. 0.18). This analysis
asswnes that all other variables remain constant.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instraments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below
This analysis assumes that al} other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constan.

Profit or loss (net of tax)

INR 100 bp increase Hi0 bp decrease
31 March 2018

Yariable-toté instruments (8.58} 838
Cash flow sensitivity (net) . {3.58) 8.58
31 March 2017

Vauriable-sate instruments 3.7% 379
Cash flow sensitivity (nef) ) EXD) 379

Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain 2 strong capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain e development of the business. Management
monitors the retum on capital on a yearly busis s well as the level of dividends to ordinary sharcholders which is given based on approved dividend policy.

The board of di s sceks to maintain a bal between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of bormwinés and the advantages and security afforded bya
Sound capital position.

The Group capital consists of’ equity attributable to equity holders that includes equity share capital, reserves, relained earnings and fong term borrowings.

Asat Asat As at
31N } 31 Mare) } it 3016

Total Habitities 1.347.47 51433 4100
Less - Cash and cash cquivalent 5876 136,08 [YNE
Adjusted net debt (a) 1.288 7t 478.23 403 86
Total equity ib) 2667 69 2.353 16 2098 36
Capital gearing ratio (a'b) 48.31% 20.32% 19.25%
As a part of its capital management policy the Groop ensures « pli with all and other capital requirements related to its contractual obligations.

44




Mrs. Bectors Faod Specintities §dmited
Notes o fimancial statements far the year ended 31 Sarch 2018
e samsenty are i pilison. paioss otherwsse Mg}

s

o
~

Adids {

frarsunt 1o ph 2 of Dis ssson 11 of Schedude 1 1 the Companses Act 260 3. Goneral fo1 the preparation of fudated finonciat " of Divaion
of $chedule 10
As at 31 March 2018
Net Assets . . Shavein otber Shave in 1018l
Sh: it
iYotal nssets « Vol Kubititiesi are in prefi comprehensive incotoe . somprehensive income
Ax%of Ampnnt AsZiosf  Amesnt  As Yhofeansolidaied  Amount As % of consatldated . Ambunt
canselidated consalidated other comprebensive totat comprehensive
et avsety pralit IBTORC _iucome
Name of entity i ihe eroup
Parent
Mes Bectons Fusdd Specratires Limasd K8 347 233630 b F TN A 27 T, 171 KX BE% Az
Subsidiaries
Balebest Foods Prsate Liowed i 18, PEIREH Hh by KOs 22, wud 16.037% Swuy
Mrs Bactors Enclish Ovess Lionted X8>0 04% 0 Hat B . (130 17}
Assnciate (Havestment a3 per the vquity
method)
Cramcs Ao Foods Lamied s, INN? o 88n, #i? o lerty - 0.048%, 0i?
Elimination NP (Y S, iNGY -4 Y (13.00)
Tot: - % 3 -
2] lgb 25730 100% Jm 100% 1.7_5 100% 362.36
As at 31 March 2017
Net Assets Share in profie Share inymm- Share Sr! totsl
2 rom) nsis e
As % of Ameunt As% ol Amamnt A5 % of comelidated | Amount As% of comialidated  Amount
cousalidated tonsolidntrd sther camprehonsive totat comprebensive
net-assets prefil fngome income
Parent
Mus. Dectors Food Specialities Limited B¥ 33% 20728 BT 2 Jxw 4 K30 (10 KA R, 25138
Subsidiaries
Bakebest Foods Private Limited DN 23538 128 3730 £43% o 12.88% L
Mirs Bevtors English Oven Limited a2, ney %, . o 1, - 000 o0
Associale (Invesiment as per the equity
mzthed)
Cramicd Agro Foods Lintited 1.65% 3563 @.40% 0x RGN - [URD SN .31
Elinsinatian 0% . D04% LR} A% - COPN o1
Toud T XTI S Y5 A O W EEN

The specified bask notes {SBN) a¢ detined under the noutication ssued by the Muusin of Finance. Depanens of Evesonns dated 0% Noserrber. 2016 are no boager m exswence. Hence, the Group
has not provided the correspanding disclosures as prescnbed w Schedule 1E w the Companes A1, 2014 The disclosuee of SBN made i the financial stotements for 31 March 2047 is as foliows:

SBNs* Other denominntion Total

. notes
Closing cash in hand a5 on 8 November 2616 278 175 4.50
1+ Peronatted receipts (LX) 14.8¢
{+) Pernutted panvments . 390 300
1=) Amgunt depgsited in Banks 278 10,58 1333
Closing cash m hand 35 on 31 December 2016 - £77 1.7}

*Fot the purpose of this disclosure, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes' shall Bave the same meamng provaded i thie notification of e Gm emmen of India, in the Mimsiey of
Finance, Depanment of Ecanomic Affirs pumber 8 O 3407 (E) daied 8 November 2iH 6

Details in respect of dividend semitted during the vear in foreign curvency :

Particniars Fav the year ended

M 13 313 2017
Nunther of pon-resident sharholders® 2inos 2inos)
Numnber of sharex held as on record dae” 12.230030 H135%
Amount remitied durma the vear*# . 12,270.0%

. 2015:36 & 2016-
Fintncial year 10 witich dividend pettains® 201536 & 2016

17

* Excludes non-resident sharcholders 1o whom dividend is paid in indian nupees.
* Includes amount of Rs 6.135.01K remitied during the vear pertaining 1o the year 2015.16
Corparate Socist Responsibility

!
a}  Gross amount required 10 be spent by the Group dunng (hc\cal was FL\ KRS
b} Amount spent duning the vear on p ¢ eny ty, health care, erad of povern and providing scholarship 10 students
Pasticulars In cayl Yot in Yotn
Ch construction‘acquistion of am dssit - . -
On purpose other than abase 282 - 282
Total 2.82 - . A2

h 2
2} Gross amount required to be spent by the Group duning me year \\:u Rx $.68.
B Amount spem dunng die vear on p i 0! . healihs care, erud of porern ond providing scholarship 1o shadens
Particulars o dneath  Vettobepaidineash ]
On comstruction‘acquistion of any asset - . IS
On purpose other than above bAL] - 118
Totsl FXT] N Py
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(i}

(i)

(itiy

(i

(i}

(i)

First Time Adoption of Ind AS
As stated m note 2, these are the Group's first financial statements prepared i accordance with Ind AS

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been apphed in prepanng the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the comparative mformation
presented m these financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2047 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS st of Binancial position at | Apnif
2086 the Group's date of wansition)

In preparing its opening Ind AS statement of financial position, the Group Yas adjusied amounts reported previously in Mnancial statements prepared an accordance
with indian GAAP {previcus GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from. previous GAAP 10:Ind'AS has affecied the Group’s finaneial position, financil
performance and cash lows is set out i the following tables and the notes that acGroup the tables,

Exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Tnd AS 101 optivnal exemptions and mandatory il pplied in the. ition from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS

ftt AN optional exemptions

Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits o fiest-time adopier 10 elect to comtinue with the carrving value for afl of s f\rupcn_\. plant and cquipment as recognised i the Ninancial
statement as at the date of iransition 1o Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the dare of ransition after making necessary
adjustment for decommissioning liabilitities. This exemption-can also be used for imangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrving value.

Leases

Appendix C to ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a OF arrang ¢ ins a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17. this assessment should be
carried out at the meeption of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of faets and carcumstances existing
at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not materiai.

The Group has clected 1o apply this exemphion for such contracts‘arrangements,

investments in associnies ' .
ind AS 101 pernuts.a first-ime adopier to chaose the previous GAAP canmying amount at the entity's date of ransition to Ind AS 10 measure the myestiment i the
subsidiary and associate as the deemed cost,

Accordingly, the Group has opted to measure its investment in associate at deemed costi.c, previous GAAR carrying amount,
Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimntes
An enuty’s estimates in accordance with Ind A$ at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the xasme date in accordance with
previous GAAP (afier adjustments to reflect any diff in.ac ing policies), unless ihers is objective evidence that those estimates were in error,

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformuy with previous GAAP,

The Group made estimates for Investment in instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL) and impairment of financial assets based on expected
credit loss model in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required undér previous GAAP,

Classifieation-and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity 10 assess classification and messurement of financral ussets on the basis of the facts and circumstances tat exist a the date of
transiion o Ind AS.

De-recognition of financial assets and habilines

Ind AS HH reguires a firsi-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions vecurning on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a firsi-time adopter 10 apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS Tug retrospectively from a dane of the
entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed 1o apply Ind AS 109 10 financial asseis und Ninancial Habilities derecognised as & resalt of past transactions
was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions,

The Group has elected to apply:the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 108 tively from the date of trsasition 1o Iid AS.

(This space has heen intentionally {efi blank)
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.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 191 requires an entity 1o reconcile equity total comprehensive incime and cash flows or prior penads The following 1ables represent the reconciliations

from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS.

Reconciliation of equity

Particulars

Asall April 2016

As at 31 March 2017

Note Previous Adjustments ind AS Previous Adjustments Ind AS
GAAP* GAAP™
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property. plant and equipment 4, 10 173046 43 71 178017 212204 5169 297371
Capital work-in-progress i 189.64 431 19393 115.635 . 219 117.84
Goodwill on consolidation 1} 398 - 395 249 1.46 395
Luan and advances . ¥
(rher imangible assets 1894 . 18.94 17.13 - 17.13
Intangible assets under development - - . 353 355
Fquity accounted investees 3834 - 3834 38.65 38.45
Financial assets
(1 Loans 2021 . 2621 34.81 . 34.81
(i) Other non-current financial assets 3 . 22 0.21 - 0.21
Current tax assets (net) 26 76 {114y 1577 3870 (1297 2573
Other non-current assets 8792 - 87.92 HO01 - 10,00
Current assets
Inventories 325.53 - 32553 276.09 - 276.00
Financial assets
(i) Investmenms 3 95.72 6.98 0270 41.86 6.40 4826
(i1} Trade receivables 9 436.54 6.60 36314 57997 6.1 586.07
ait) Cash and cash equivalents 67.14 - 67.14 136.08 - 136.08
(v Bank halances other than ui above 43,00 - 45.06 39.32 - 39.32
v Loans . . . .
{vir} Cther current financial assels 2 7303 (37 09.33 92.63 778 10041
Other current assets 66,65 - 66,63 6340 63.40
TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS 3.263.13 44.80 3,308.02 3,734.59 62.65 3,797.24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 286 34 - 286.34 28634 - 286.34
Other equity 1.800.65 1147 1.812.12 2.047.46 19.36 2,066.82
Non-current liabilities
Financial habihities
{1y Borrowings 230,90 - 23000 37371 ~ N
Long-tetm provisions 2091 - 2091 31.87 - 31.87
Disterred tax labilities (net) 6 56.70 4.91) 3199 62.69 (3.84y 38.85
Qther non-current linbilities 4 35.04 35.04 34.38 34.38
Current liabilities
Financiaf liahilities
(1) Borrowings 191.83 - 191.83 165,59 - 165.59
() Trade payables 25937 . 259 37 377.85 - 37785
(1)) Other financial liabihies 165 56 - 165,56 154,44 - 154 44
Other curremt hiabihities 245 134.56 (3293 131.27 11511 6.36 12147
Shori-term provisions 9 87.67 6.6 94.27 106.89 6.10 1299
Current tax habilities (net) 28.53 (0.02) 2853 12.64 0.29 1293
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3.263.13 44.89 3:308.02 3.734.59 62.65 3.797.24

*The previous GAAP figures have baen reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirentents for the purposes of this note.

|4
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Reconciliation of total compréhensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Particulars Previous Adjastments Ind AS
GAAP*
Revenue .
Revenue from operations . 2.7.8.9 6.247.011 139 53 0.386.52
Otiter scome 348 1298 8.36 2134
Tutal inconte 6,259,99 148.07 640886
Expenses
Cost of matenals consumed 9 349147 4.71) 3.486.76
Exeise diy ? . 13968 139:68
Purchase of stock w trade . 105.72 « I(lSjZ
Clhanges in inventories of stock-in-trade 2197 (0.33) 2264
Employee benefits expense i 81195 (2.35 30943
Finance costs 30.66 (5.65) 45.02
Depreciation and amortisation expense ) 4,10, 1 241 80 .87 24967
Other expenses 5 1.124.68 (0.05) 1.124.63
Total Expenses 5.849.2 134:29 5.983.58
Profit before share of equity accounted investees and 1ax
Share of net profit of associates accounted for using the equity method 0.31 - 031
Profit before tax 584957 13429 5983.86
Profit/ {loss) before 1ax 411.04 13.78 42482
Tax expense:
Current tay 126.08 - 126.08
Deferred tax crediy 6 3.67 4.26 7.93
Profit/ (loss) for the period (A) 281.29 9.52 290.81
Other eomprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profil or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1 - (2.52) {2.32)
Income tax relating 1o remeasurement of defined benefit plans - -0.87 0.87
Total other comprehensive income for the vear (B) P— (1.65) {1.65}
Totat comprehensive income for the year (A + B) 281.29 7.87 289.16
Reconcifiation of total equity as at 31 March 2017 and 1 Aprit 2016
. Notes 1o first- .
Particulars 7 j
icu time adoption 31 March2017 1 April 2016
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 2,333.83 2.087.00
Adjustments:
Fair value of forward contracts 2 3.03 389
Measurement of investment in equity shares 3 {0.38) 4.56
atfair value ‘
Rent equalisation reserve 5 0.24 0.9
Capitalisation of generi borrowing. cost 10 352 282
Amortisation of goodwall written back . 11 146 -
Total adjustments 7.87 1146
Netimpact brought forward from Opening batance sheet £1.46 -
Total equity as per Ind AS 2.353.16 2.098.46
Reconcitiation of total compreheasive income for the vear ended 31 March 2017
Particulars P.éota o ﬁ':“' Amaount
time adoption
Profit afier tax under India GAAP 281,29
Adjustments
Actunial Toss reclassified to other comprehensive inconte 163
Fair value of forward contracts 303
Maasurement of mvestment in equity shares at fair value 10.38)
Rem equalisation reserve 024
Capralisation of general borrowing cost . 352
Amontisation of goodwill written back 146 -
Total adjustments 952
+ Profit after tax as per Ind AS 290.81
Other Comprehensive Income (1.63)

Fotal Comprehensive income for the vear 289.16
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Empact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Particulars " Previous Adjustments Ind AS
GAAP*

Net cash How from operating activities 4,788.71 {4.266.69) 322.02
Net cash flow from mvesting activities 497210 442870 - (34330
Net cash flow from linancng activities R03.93 (741 11) 62.84
Netincreasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 620.55 {579.02) 41.83
Uash and cash cquivalents as at § April 2016 656 78 {391.10) 65.68
Cash and cash cquivalents as at 31 March 2017 1,277.33 (1,170.12) 167,23

D, Notes to first-tinte adaption:

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS. remeasurement i.¢. actuanal gains and Josses amd the return on plan assets. excluding amounts icloded in the net interest expense on the et defined
benelnt Hability are recogmsed in other comprehensive mgome instend of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurement were forming purt of the
profis or loss for the year: As a result of this change, the profit for the year (net of 1ax) ended March 31, 2017 increased by Rs. 1,65 (Rs. 2.52 gross). There 1s no
mpaet on the 1otal equits as ot 31 March 2017

~

Fair valuation of derivatives
Under the previous GAAP, in respect of foreign currency receivable, the Group entered into forward contracts 1o hedge the foreign currency receivables. As a
result, the Group used 1o amorntise the premium and restate the forward as per the requi of AS-11

Under Ind AS, derivaiives which are not designated as hedging instruments are fair valued with resulting changes being recognised in profit or loss. Total equity as
at 31 March 2017 increased by Rs. 6:91 (1 April 2016 - Rs. 3.89). Due to said fair valuation the profit for the year (net of tax) ended 31 March 2017 increased by
Rs. 3.03 (Rs. 4.63 gross) as a result of the fair value change. Correspondingly, asscts for forward exchange contracts used for hedging created under previous
GAAP increased by Rs. 7.78 as at 31 March 2017 (as.at | April 2016 reduced by Rs. 5.72) and other current hablhty for unamortised premium created under
previous GAAP by Rs. 2 79 as at 31 March 2017 (as a1 1 April 2016 Rs. 11.66) got reversed.

3 Investment in equity shares at fair value
Under the Indian GAAP, investments in equity shares were measured at lower of cost or faie value. Under Ind AS, these investments are required 10 be measured at
Tair value through profit or loss The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recm,ms(.d in retained canungs as at the date of transition and
subsequemly in the profit or loss for the year endcd 31 March 2017,

The profit or the year (net of tax) ended 31 March 2017 reduced by Rs. 0.38 (Rs. 0.59 gross). Accordingly, there is an increase in the total equity by Rs. 4,18 as at
31 March 2017 €1 April 2016 - Rs. 4.56) with a corresponding increase in value of investments by Rs. 6.40 as at 31 March 2017 (Rs. 6.98 as at | April 2016).

e

Property, plant and equipment

The Group has been awarded with Export Promotion Capital Gramt (EPCG) and Technology Upgradation, Establishment, Moedernisation, of Food Processing
industries under NMFP schene which are condstional upon impon of certain assels and purchase of plant amd muachmery i a speaitied region respectvely. Under
previcus GAAP, such capital grants on account of duty waivers were being netted ofF with the cost of the respective nem of praperty, plant and equipment.

Uinder Ind AS the iransfer of resources from the government i the form of a waiver of expensesiduty needs 1o be accounted tor as government grant Accordingly.,
the duty wasved ofl under EPCG Scheme and NMEP scheme has been rocognised as government gramt by debiting the property, plant and equipment with a
correspanding credit to deferred income. The deferred income is releasid to Statement of profit and Joss in proportion of depreciation charged over the useful life
of the asset

Accordingly, property, plant and equipment as at 3] March 2017 has been increased by Rs. 44,18 (as.at 1 April 2016 Rs. 43.71) net of accumulated- depreciation
with 2 corresponding screase in deferred income under other non-current lisbilities by Rs. 34.38 as at 31 March 2017 (as at | Apnl 2016 Rs. 35.04) and under
other current habdslm bs Rs 9.79 as at 3} March 2017 (as at 1 April 2016 Rs 8.66), Funher during the vear ended 31 March 2017 depreciation increased by Ry
2.08 with a cor £ inc in other i by unwinding of deferred income. There is no impact on the tolal equity and profit.

L

5 Rent cqualisation reserve

Under Ind AS, a Group is not required \u recognise rental expense on straight line basts if the escalation rate is linked to general inflation, Accordingly, rent
equalisation reserve created under arrangements where the escalation rate is linked to general inflation rate has been reversed under Ind AS, Accordingly, the profit
for the year {net of taxj ended 31 March 2017 has increased by Rs. .24 (Rs. 0.38 gross) due 1o reversal of rent equalisation reserve created as on transition date.

Consequently, the total equity as at 31 March 2017 has increased by Rs. (.43 (1 April 2016 Rs, 0.19) with a corresponding decrease in other current Liabilinies by
Rs 064 as at 31 March 2017 (Rs 029 asat | Aprij 2016}

G Deferred tax Liabilities (net)
This represents the deferred tax impact of ind AS adjustments

7 Excise duty
Under the previous GAAP, revenue 1rom sale of praducts was presented net of excise duty, Under Ind AS, revenue from sale of goods s presented gross of exeise
duty The exaise duty paid is presented as pant of cost of goods sold. This change has resulted 1 an increase in total revenue and total expenses for the previous
vear by Rs. 13968, There is no impact on the total equity and profis for the vear.
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& Arrangement containing loases
Linder previous GAAP, arrangements that did not ke the legal funm of lease were accounted for based on the legal form of such arrangements e.g. job work
arrangement. Under Ind AS. any arrangement (even if not legally structured s leased which convey tight {0 use an assel in return for a payment or series of
payments are identificd as leases provided cenain conditions are met. In case such arrangements are determined 16 be in the nasure of Teases, such arrangements are
required to be classified into finance or operating leases as per the requirements of Ind AS 17, Leases

The Group has sdentified certain job-work arrangements 1o be in the noture of opersting lease: and accordingly these have been classified as operating lease
armangement. As o result, revenuehas decreased by Rs. 45.60 with n comesponding incredse in otherincome. There is 5o impact on 10tal equity and profit.

9 Provision for sales return .
Under previous GAAP, provision for expecied sales retur was accounted for by reducing margin from the revenue wuh a corresponding reduction i accounts
recervble, Under Ind AS the same is grossed up by creating a provision for sales return, Accordingly, revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 got reduced by
Rs. 4.71 with a corresponding reduction in cost of goods,

Further, trade receivable as at 31 March 2017 got increased by Rs. 6,10 (as a1 | April 2016 Rs. 6.60) with a cortesponding increass in provision for sales retum.

10 Capitalisation of gencral borrowing cost
inder previous GAAP; the Group capitailised the borrowng cost only for specific borrowings with the cost of the respective fixed assets. Linder Ind AS, the Group
is required o capitalise borrowing cost on general borrowings as well along wih specific borrowings in case of qualifving assets. Accordingly, interest cost
amounting to Rs. 5.64 for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been capitalised with a corresponding increase in depreciation charged during the year by Rs. 0.23
Consequently, the total equity as at. 3} March 2017 has increased by Rs. 6.34 (} April 2016 Rs. 2.82).

Further, Propenty, plant & equipment increased by Rs. 7.51 as at 31 march 2017 (Rs nif as at 1 Aprii 2016) net of depreciation and capital work-in-progress
increaced by Re 2 19 (Rx 4 31 as at | Anril 20163

11 Amortisation of goodwill writien back
Under previous GAAP, goodwill was required to be amontised over the pened of 5 years. Under Ind AS goodwitl shall be tested for impatrment and will nol be
amortised. Accordingly. profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 got increased by Rs. 1 46 with a.cormesponding increase in value of goodwill,

Furtber, total equity during the year ended 31 March 2017 increased by Rs. 146 (Rs Nil as at'| April 2015). The Group has taken deemed cost-exemption for
tangible and intangible assets and accordingly net vatue of goodwill as at ) Apnl 2016 shall be deemext 10 be gross value as at 1 April 2016,

12 Remained earnings
Retained camings as at 1 April 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments,

13 Other compirehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should. be inclnded in profit.or loss for. the peniod, unless o standard requires or permits
othenwise. items of income and expense that are not recognised i profit or loss b are shown in the statement of profit and Joss as “other comprehensive income”
includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans

The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

behalf of the Board of Directors of
ors Food Specialities Limited

o

‘Atul Sud
Company Secretary

DIN:- 00007297
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 July 2M8 Date: 10-1uly 2018
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PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL.
ATTENDANCE SLIP

*DPID
Regd.FolioNo./*Client Id.

No.of Share(s)held
(*Applicable for Members holding Shares in electronic form)

Name & Address of the registered Shareholder

| hereby record my presence at the 23rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited Held on Wednesday,

August 1, 2018 at 5.00 pm at Theing Road, Phillaur,-144410, Punjab

Member’s/Proxy’sSignature

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialties Limited

CIN: U74899PB1995PLC033417

Registered Office: Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab, Phone (01826) -222826, 225418
Website: www cremica.in, Email id: cs.bis@cremica.in

Bkt itk iewe, Jusk for posd

PROXYFORM

FORM NO. MGT-11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Rule19 (3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):
Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

*DPId.

Regd.Folio No./*Client Id.

(*Applicable for Members hoiding Shares in electronic form)

I/We, being the member(s) of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited holding shares, hereby appoint:

(1)  Name: Address:

E-mail id: Signature or failing him;
(2) Name: Address:

E-mail id: Signature or failing him;
(3) Name: Address:

E-mait id: Signature

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held
Wednesday, August 1, 2018 at 5.00 pm at Theing Road, Phillaur,-144410, Punjab and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are

indicated below:

Resolution No. | Matter of Resolution

1. To Receive, consider and adopt:

a)  The audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financiat year ended March 31, 2018, the reports of
the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon.
b)  The audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 and the reports of
the Statutory Auditors thereon. . .

2. To confirm the interim dividend of Re. 0.75/- per share paid during the year as the final dividend for the
year ended 31.03.2018

3. To appoint Director in place of Mr. Ishaan Bector, Director (DIN NO. 02906180), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Director in place of Mrs. Rajni Bector, Director (DIN NO. 00108730), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers herself for re-appointment.

5. To Ratify Appointment of Statutory Auditor

6. Appointment of Mr. Rajiv Dewan (Din No: 00007988) as an Independent Director of the Company

7. Raising of capital through an Initial Public Offering

8. Adoption of New Articles of Association

9. Increase in the Authorised share capital and alteration in the Capital clause of the Memorandum of
Asscciation

10. identification of promoters and promoter group

11. 'To Re-appoint Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel, as the VWhole-Time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years




12. O gve authority under section 180(1)(a) of the Companies act, 2013 to sal, lease or otherwise dispose of, to mortgage/ create charges on the
ies of the company.

13. Tobonmvinemsofthepaid up capital and free reserves under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies act, 2013

14, Increase In FPI Limit

15. Increase In NRi Limit
Signed this.......... dayof........... 2018.

Affix
. Revenue
f Sh B
Signature of S| areholder(s) Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Note: .
This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, before the commencement of
the Meeting.
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